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HIGHLIGHTS 2022

VALUE FOR MONEY ORIVING

CONSISTENT GROWTH

< Total sales 5C.6% higher than pre-pandemic

4

& Value driving

» Average price per game lower thanin 2019
ootfall growth of over 46%

STRONG BALANCE SHEET
SUPPORTING INVESTMENT

< Over £20m of strategic capital invested
< Two new centres and 11 refurbishments
<> Fully repaid bank debt and Covid-19 deferrals

FINANEIAL HIGHUIGHTS (53 WEEKS T0 1 IANUARY 2023)*

STRONG SALES GROWTH DELIVERS A PROFITABLE YEAR

N STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERRANCE FINANEIALS

RESPONSIBLE STEWARDSHIP
FOR SUSTAINABLE GROWTH

& Pay rise delivered early supporting lowest paid
& Scope Tand 2 Net Zero commitment by 2030
& Over £2m in bonuses to share success

FOCUSED CUSTOMER
PROPOSITION FOR THE FUTURE

< World's first bowling loyalty app
<& Pipeline of new UK centres
& Over eight million customers and growing

SUSTAINED CASH GENERATION

+39.8%

Like-for-like sales growth versus 2019, the
last full year of trading pre Covid-19

£39.6u

Group adjusted EBITDA after rental costs,
+68.2% vs FY19

10p peR sHaRE

Dividend reinstated for FY22

+0.9%

Like-for-like sales growth versus 2021 for
the 33 weeks post recpening

£2b.Im

Adjusted profit before tax,
+84.1% vs F¥19

29.3p

Adjusted EPS

£27.2m

Full year free cash flow

F10.1m

Bank net cash, first time in Group history
ending the year with nil bank debt

£20m

of strategic capital investment in six
refurbishments, five bowling upgrades
and two new centres

»
T
H
*
T
.
3
-
a
%

Please see rote 2 to the Financial Statements, for the definition of these Alternative Performance Measures (APMs).
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AT A GLANCE

UNIVERSAL APPEAL

<m,cm*o“_‘:ojm<
<» Fun for all ages
{» Entertaining environment

SUCCESSFUL MODEL

 Cash generative with robust balance sheet
- Well invested estate welcomes customers
= High margins reduce impact of inflation

STRONG TRACK RECORD

< Total sales +50.6% vs pre Covid-19
< Group Adj PBT CAGR of 15.0% since 2017
< High-returning investment strategy

SIGNIFICANT OPPORTUNITY

< Room for expansion in UK market
< Favourable property market
<& Consumer trend towards experiences

743

CENTRES ACROSS THE UK

1170 1,700

BOWLING LANES  EMPLOYEES

3 32

KARAQKE ROOMS  ESCAPE ROOMS
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14M oo

OF FAMILY ENTERTAINMENT SPACE

>1300 373

AMUSEMENT MACHINES  POOL TABLES

17

LASER TAG ARENAS SOFT PLAY AREAS

& Other
entertainment
activities

# Food and drink
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8 MiLLigy

ﬁcmﬂoﬂma in 2022

mhm Qﬁ mmusz* st

Like-for Jixa
Qur Strategy 5 Broving highiy SUCCessfy gt qm:sm::m. Irowtn in sa)ee and B
profrt, Ocamxmncdé teams focus an disciplinag rapita) m__Snm:,Om Qeneratas .
Seng refyme. We focus on the key drivers of Growth and haye Lontinued

assed even i MVEST in the CUstomer Proposition with 5 stanificant refurbishmgny

. Programme ang 8w Cantrg Openings,

H : We weltomead two ney, Centres 1o the Group in 2027 ang havea already, Consistenr growth p 5 <hall
th atis Mmore Uﬂo_n_.nmmim Qx_mz ever. Opened g nay, CEME I Crepwg wmvém% 2023 @1:@5@ aurtotal to 49 Uk (50% excluding the Chair}
Mhave been very SNCalraged by how well the business has Navigated the Centres \Wa Rave 4 53Hd pinefing for growth and expact g oper atleaqr of tombineg eXperience |n
n:m:m:mmm of casr orice nflation. we were ; i e four ey Centres this YEar Despita this SiQnificant IVestmen; Programpng,
impace of rising prizas, We endad the 8T without g, bank debr ang the Boarg TeCOMMends 5 O busingss has transfonn,

MEtation o oy, i i ] worked hard to finaj dividend of D per share which together WIth the intarim dividend paig Vested, wirs, higher Quality
reduce oyr cog f ionaf efficiencies. in Qctober 2022, will rota 10p for the Year as a whele, SCTSYSTEIT that Combines tap,
"ewards app and the (ateg; " digita)
We are focuseaq an Providing grear <m..cm.€7303m< social Sterainmen: Our People are the MOST Criticy] part of a_m?m_i..:m great service o our Monegy, Preposition g better than e
for groups of 4 2G2S 15 gat together ang enjoy sach Othere company., CUstomers, g, excellent Derformanca has enatleq U5 10 Share the rewards reflected i the scafe and profitabi;
This is 4 CONsurMer npeq that ig Perhaps moge relevant loday than ever of succegy with SUrteams Mogg _.EUoJm:.%_ We acted amn_‘m_,\m_{ in SrOwWn our gajag by over 50% and n
before gng we have bagn delighted ¢ welcome 5 recard number g October 1o bring forward oy, Raurly paig colleagues' ancual pay, fNcreage YEAr with g healthy ey tash POsItion,
CUSIOMers this vear by s menths, Thig Meant that oy lowest paid team Members received We are in 5 strongar Position than Ve to nayi ! des ahead.
BN average of ooy Pay increase 1, help them Manage tha winter pericd. .

White the MaCro-econgm,c J:o_wnwvm looks a;m:m:m_jm for the year ahead, 2023 hag Started wef, With demapg Bmaining oy in the firgy en weeks
lam confident thay we haye 5 business Made, LUStomer Proposition gng 2022 hae been 5 Yo of significans developmeny inour COrpGrate ofthe vear We have claar plang i place g Mitigate the Impact of Inflation
pricing strateqy that is well sitag to the environment. We offar affordabie Jovernance The Board hag dedicateq consideraple time 1o m<&:mgn@ and are determin ey 1o continge to offer oy EUSIOMers gregy value for
Sntertainmene that Peaple of 35 2985 can enjoy together, ang We have 5 the risks that we face due o climate change ang we fave developed our Money. Whija i s difficule e predict what Rappen fo, the balance ofthe
pricing Structure ang ange of act ities to g every family budger, That is Strategy tn Minimiss oy impact o, the climate 1 10 insuyl gy, the businggg year | am confident thay the Strength of the Group is Such that it will be
why we sen U Grogn Growing fasyer than almage any other business in from futyra risks, We have =stablished g £5G Commitiee to oversae the able to continye to delivar excellent FEturns for s mjm_.m:camﬁ,
lefsure ang 739,%:3‘, _MEEmBmimro: of aur Sustainability Strategy. This Committae s chaireq

by Sangitg Shak wha joinad the Boary as an independarn; Zc:.mxmnc?.m

Direcior in the Second half of 2077 bringing a wealth of EXperience in ADAM BELLAMY
Fovernanca ang SUstainability, o, Board team has grear diversity of taleny CHAIRMaN

and wsaimmmm_ mzo§.3m itto navigate the Complexity oma_m:(msi@, 2V March 2023
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.\a CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT AND OFERATING REVIEW

RECORD-

VALUE-FOR-MONEY SOCIAL
ENTERTAINMENT DRIVING RECORD
GALES AND PROFIT DELIVERY

STRATEGIC REPORT BOVIRNAKEE FINANCIALS

"0UR TEAMS WORK
TIRELESSLY T0 DELIVER
HIGH-DUALITY SOCIAL
ENTERTAINMENT

GRAHAM BLACKWELL
CHIEF EXECUTIVE QFFICER

2022 has consolidated TEG's position as

a leading business in the UK leisure and
hospitality sector. In our first undisrupted
financial year since FY19 we have increased
our sales by 50.6% and our Group adjusted
profit before tax by 84.1%. This is a business
that is bigger, better, stronger, and more
resilient than it was prior to the pandemic.

Ten Entertainment Group ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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puring FY 22 we W inupan e cales growhn that we mxnmzm:nma inH2 P21 Another step forward in sales Aleap $orward in profit

and mmf{mwﬁ ayeer of qmmoa sales &t £126.7tm. OUF :fm.;ov:rw sales £yy3 15 the first £l financial year of trading sirce Fr19. We knaw taatthe A sustained lavel of sales grewth del yerad across the whole UK estate has
Were Hu@.m@u wighey thar Y9, Koqm _Bnoim.jiﬁ we nom;:‘Ema 1o grow pent-up gemand after reapening the summer of 2021 and he beneflt of led to @ aignificant =tep fopeard in profit. Only around 50 of the rotal
nFY22 nCBUEm,n 10 H_z.m vom,..ncs,a.ﬁ poomin sales of F Q For r,,jm 33 UK sraycations was going 10 make FY212 tough act to follow, Howevet we cost base 15 directly vanable peith wohme- Tris rmeans that with such
,_:mm«rp cormparaite agalr st quOnm:,am on 17 May 2021 O fike-forfike sales ynew that we had ayglved and refocused our aperation. 1@ create amoTeE Qoaqg:nma fonall growdn we wave been abie 19 generate pperationa!

for FYZZWere 2 futher -5.5% up- .,:zm m_.‘os;r was u:.jo_u.m_:\ n_‘_.<m: by ariractive customer ?ouow.&o: than ever hafore. fficiencies 1@ offsetthe wnpact of cost nflasion. The regult s that Group
adgitional (el and A0 increase N S neillary saies: with litle efi@nce

. adpusted orofit pefore 1% tas taken @ significant feap forward 1@ t260m,

on price increases. I fact we have reducad our average realised price Total sales of g126./min oy?? 15 a Group record and i 50.6% higher tran +24.1% comparad 10 9

far bowing sirce ~119. Fzusing ON leveraging ouf valuefor-money Y19 L ie-for-like sales growth compared 10 P9 is £3% B with 2 furthet ’ ,

propositen O GIEW footfall. 3.5% growth from the 5 3ed week of trading and 7.3% growth from the new Uging Group Adjusted ERITDA after rantal costE B reasure whwch is broadly
. . ) rentres puilt since panaks Campated 1 Pl fike-Tor Tke maoéﬁ.j i 557, aquivalent o the cld 1asa? EBITDA measWie the business dalivered £359.6m

Cost pressures ! D22 e peen well aom:&mjﬂmu inthe an,w and the We were o,mwmmn_ 1o continue he sales mome N and take 2 further inFY22 which is 68.2% better £han in Fy1gandisa catic of 31% of sales. Pre

Grovp was M mane 0 e Howevar, with aut energy prees S step forward i Y22 Covid-15 the Grovp was operating 23 EBITOA 1o sales ratio of ¢ 28% wihieh

92, i { 2024 -+ r 5 Wi ignifi i i i inflati
oY, fixed unth Sestarber 2024, long-tert rental agreemear with ouf WS  significant progression daanite the mpact of flation.

|ardlords in olace, and 2 business mogdet thatis reliant on ovl smdertying The ~50.6% sales ma.&qj was n:_._nﬁw:{ delivered throud™ nighet footfall

fired asset DISE e Pave DEET yripacted €55 than rmary. Where we ave of ~41 7%, & compination of more new custormers and existing customers A strond and stable cash _u.ummzo:

seen inflationay [ rassures, in Wages. cansumables, and food and drink, we \isiting more frequently and a53rd srading week 0 the yeaf g gepts of the oyur profit delivery nas rahlad US 1O focls on Ol srratagic forivies
have worked had to generate operationdl cost efficiencies 1@ Ffget those growth derived from an increase in revenue per heac {'RPH. Our strateqy puilding new ,,nm.nﬁmm mma gesKing 1 ONF risting estate Sw%m 9@29
pressures nd have chosen et to pass those rises on 1o our pUSTOTMETS: ip merease 1he et of activities a5 well as inproving our food and . . '

e seinstated dndend payments i 2022 with an interim divigend p
Ociober of 3P pet share and we are recammendind a final dividend of

T pel share o be paid at he end of MaY. Cyur cash priorites nave always
ween Clear We aim &0 balance ouf selffunced iryestment pIOQrarmme with
cetuTRing TONEY o oLl shareholders through @ Uﬁoﬁmmem divdend policy.

heverage ofering has meant that customers enc 1o spend longer with us
when they wisit and narticipate in rioe activities. Average realised piice per
game for howling reduced t© £513inFY2d compared 0 ¢5.21 00 FY19. This
modest reduction of (1.5%) 752 function of holding our headlire prices at
3019 levels, with incraased part ination v Jeals and promotions. This

(32 s also be2? 4 remarkable ye3 o delivery far oW crrategy. We have
ywested oVer £70 0 In oLk Husiness B continue to gve our customers the
best possitle sociah enteftainmert expeliente. Ouring the yeat we have
Lndertaker s ¥ meje” refurbishments: cormpleted the rolt out of Pins &

St ngs and Gur [aplaigie) sygtems) refreshed the lancs and bow NG

) o ; N . P ) strategic choice was targeted at maintaning our axcellent value-for-maney We are Em.wm_ma that aven with aur accelerated strategic irnastrnent
expefience 0 five Zentes: gocm? o NEW cantros nto e Grow preposition in grder 10 pmaintain momentum in foatfall growth. This means programmie, We have turned 2 modest net debt of (£2.5M) at the end of
and mmﬁ,ovmm_uym pipeline of sites 19 adc atfeast four fusther new ihat on average @ tarmity af four powled at Tenpin for just over £20; excelient Fy7) into anet cash halance of ~E10.Am At e end of P22 This rmeans
centres in P23 walue companson O the majority of altarnative entartain rment options. that we Now have a SetuTe ¢ash posan 19 insulate the puginess against

B highly profitable yaar of growthis @ great achievernent, put « mustbe
daliverad ir @ 5 ustainable oy, During FY27 we have said partl Sutar focus
o suppoTting Sy amazitg collpanues as well 35 develop™@ g ~ew chrmate
strategy whizntargets Aefivering Mat epn &r SCOPES | & 2 errissions by
7030, We have paid over £2m in bonuses 1o ensure that our rranagenent
and site-based tearns Can ghare In OUF cuecess, e have also kept @ close

Doﬁm:m_w._ risk ar allow Us 30 act swiftly and decsvely crould maos

|n the first U weeks of Fy23 sales have continued to grew: Although wé oﬁvoac:,&mm .

are lapping 8¢ excantional performance i P22 we have stil delivered
otal saies growtn of 7.6%. Ona fikefor-like hasis the m:os:j 15 2.7 %. First-class customer exper
We have been msmo:ﬂw@mn, by this parformante i shese first weeks of the
year, but it s still early in the vear and we remain focused on ensuring we
continue 19 Jeliver an excellent pxpetience for caur custames.

jence

2077 has pean ayedl where we have continaed © focus on delvering
the very best customer experienc® in leisure and Pospitality inthe UK

eye on base wages and salanes 1o enaure that o7 pesple 318 well equipped Qur priorities have been N value for money. vanety of garmes 5@??&3
1o deal with the cralienges of the: current gh tavels of (nflaticn. QU We are conhident in 2uf ctratady and our road custeme’ appeal and arcillary products, and great customer Gerice.
atrategy Nas peen developed 10 enslice that not only dowe minimise oW belheve that saleswil carnain resiient despite the ECONOMIC conditions , . .
. : . . . . . . : Our customers depend on us 1o deliver @«mwn.aw,cm enteriairment. Thatis
ipact on the i ate DUt alse that we are el praparec -o deal with e expect the year e delver modest sates growth in Fy23 and ae .

- . - . . iy we held our prices at 2019 Lovels, which has meant that our relative
some of the COnSECUETICES of changes weather paiter™s in-he UK. confident that we £an manage out cost base W ensure that cales at this . . e s

. ) vahue against other gisuTe and hospital ty piferngsis potter than avel
o . el will deliver vqorﬁw.c,m growth. . T .
Fy 22 has been o ymar of 5130 cant purmail and change the broade? Curing the surprner of 022 we were {nvited to Downing grreetas part ofa
political anc aconcmic Jzummwvamm nhas focused 00 the elements that @a<m33m3 rask force tocused on helping qun...?mmmma farmilies rmake their
e can control great customer sarice; 2 s and social anvite ament for money 99 further in fhe surmnmer nolidays. I SLpPOrt of this initiative, oW
all ages: unrivaiied value for meneys eAciting garmes and activities: and a suramer deal for Kids, available duringthe gurmmer nolicays, was justES for
triandly welcorme: Ne have beelt rewarded with over aight mill on vIsEoTs cridrenfora garne of bowling and & urge” meal. We il that this was
rhig yean reusting Us ¥ qive afl an amazi™d venue to have fun, 3¢ ua.om.o:\ gne of the most attractive 1815Ure qunomﬁo;m available anywhere
entertained and razonnect oo ally with each other i the UK. We wilh continue £ offer our customer® great piced deals that
suit ther.
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2 nomjﬁw:& o
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’ ! ansUre rhat our st as renr 3 Jnd g ] i o TG .oawmmjﬂm S 3% Crage O
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.w2m noﬁﬂm:m proofch LB E oegenid T Y , poiane curface use of rapUrpose Y i additen we noBijnmm work end
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CRIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT AND DPERATING REVIEW CONTINUER

Sustainable development

Cur business has grown significantly during FY22, building on a highly
successful FY21 where we emerged from the pandemic with great
strength. Curing the year we have developed our sustainability strategy
and have focused on supporting our key stakeholders as they navigate
the difficulties ‘n the broader economic landscape.

We formed a Board ESG Committee in 2022 which has helped to bring
together the many positive steps being taken across the Group. We have
identified that although ti e Group is a relatively low carbon inzensity, with
only 1,740g of CO, per customer visit, there is still much we can do to
reduce our footprint and move to Net Zero on scope 1 & 2 ermissions by
2030. The four principal areas of focus in terms of our carbon “ootprint
are our site energy usage; our food and drink supply chain; our waste;
and our new building and refurbishment programme.

We continue to focus on energy reduction across our centres. We have
now completed the rall out of our modern and efficient pinsetters which
has resulted in an 3% reduction in energy usage per site. We zre now
focusing on low-energy LED lighting throughout our centres. ‘We are
planning to utilise the roo’s of our centres for micro generation from
solar arrays which should orovide up to 30% of the energy usege of a site.
We plan to install at least six solar arrays during FY23. We have combinad
these significant actions with a policy to purchase 100% renewable
energy supplies.

Cur food and drink supply chain is an area where we have made good
progress in FY22, *We have introduced more plant-based opticns to give
our customers choice but we expect in the short to medium term that this
remain a minority of the food consumed in our centres, \We are actively
working with our suppliers to select the products that balance cost, waste
and carbon, and have made it clear that future purchasing decisicns will
balance all three nzeds. We are confident that our suppliers can reduce
their carbon impact but in the meantime we have made our entire menu
carbon neutral through thz purchase of REDD++ carbon credits. This
investment in leng-term carbon sequestration will offset our food and drink
in the short term while we consider ways to reduce the overall impact

Wl

Waste in our centras will te a core focus during FY23. Althougn we ut
100% recyclable packaging for our food, we know that we can do better
to improve our recycling rates. ‘We are targeting a minimum 50% increase
in recycling rates in FY23 through site-based incentives and customer
COTPITIATACAGTTS &6 we'l a3 rraldng it easier tnan ever 1o1 ow custorners
to recycle.

STRATEGIC REPORT

We have focused on our teams’ wellbeing and financial security during
2022. In difficult times it is important to provide the right support to our
colleagues. The successfui financial results means that we have paid over
£2m in bonuses to our people to reward excellent service and performance.
These bonuses have rewarded colleagues throughout the organisation and
not just the senior management teams. We alse decided to bring forward
the April 2023 wage increase by six maonths for our hourly paid team
members to ensure that our people were supported during the difficult
cost of living pressures of the winter.

Cutlook

FY23 has started well, with like-for-like sales in the 10 weeks to 12 March
being +2.7% compared to FY22. We are pleased with this cantinued sales
growth, and are cautiously optimistic for the year ahead. We are confident
that we have a fantastic custoemer proposition and will continue to focus
on providing the best value-for-money social experience in the market.
However, we are mindful of the strain on our customers' finances and will
not be complacent in assuming that the success of the past two years
autormatically continue.

Cur target is to maintain modest like-for-like growth, supplemented with our
pipeline of new centres throughout 2023, We have already opened Crewe in
February and are under construction in Milton Keynes and in Dundee. We
fully expect to add more centres to our estate as the year progresses.

We expect cost pressures to persist, but we are confident that we are
operationally well set up to mitigate them where we can without
compromising the value for money that we ofter our customers,

QOur strategy is delivering great results and we will continue to invest in our
priorities of maintaining the quality of our product, growing our estate, and
developing our digital footprint. We will manage our cash spend to ensure
that we allocate capital to these high-returning projects while returning a
dividend to our shareholders and maintaining a cash surplus.

Our recard performance in FY22 will be a very tough act to follow, but
we deliver a great expenence and value for our custormers and have

the right teamns in place to maximise the potential of the business. We wi
continue to focus on value to drive growth and to Invest in the experience
to ensure that our customers continue to visit us throughout 2023.

GRAMAM BLACKWELL
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
21 MARCH 2023
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MARKET OVERVIEW STRATEGIC REPORT GOYERNARNCE FINANEITALS

Fy

EXPERIENTIAL LEISUIRE

ing is a growth sector ¢ UK market undersaturated with only ¢.340 centres
< Recently vacated retail space ideal to convert
< Consumers prioritising experiences over purchases

¢ Exposure to supply chain challenges refatively low

< Competitive soci
2 Bowling accessible and enjoyable for all

<> Range of activities to increase frequency
2+ Food and drink tallored to enjoy with games

A POSITIVE BUTLOOK

< Nearly two years of growth since reopening
Relative value for money strengthenad in market

COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGE

& Established social entertainment offering

& Well-invested estate gives best customer experience
< High-margin model helps protect from inflation

< Labour model gives operating efficiencies in growth
<& Partnerships with suppliers keep costs low

0
< Affordable treats remain a priority for consumers

< Value-for-money creates resilience even in downturn
< Tight cost controls creating profitable growth

< Digital reach and engagement strongest in sector

Ten Entertainment Group pl¢ Annual Report and Accounts 2022 °



Our core bowling proposition is supplemented by a
wide range of activities and great value food and drink.

LEVERAGING OUR COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGE...

Cur experience is known and
trusted in the market wi
abroad appeal to familics,
students, work colleagues
and groups of friends.

Qurwell-invested estate

of 4% centres across the

UK offers a vade rangz of
entertainment and a high-
quality custormner experience,

Technology drives growth
through the most modern
powling equipment, latest
vides games and a fully
integrated digital ecosystem

Our talented colleagues create
the fun and entertaining
cnvironments Lhat ensure our
customers ave 2 great tme
and cur business thrives,

g partners deliver
the experience, including the
latest in bowling ard gaming
technology and a tallored food
and drink while you play.

Bowling is the original
competitive social activity and
our experiencad leadership
tearn know what it takes to
entertain our customers.

STRATEGIC REPART

HOW WE DELIVER GROWTH AND z:z:::zv

& Benelits of incroasing scale
< Highly attragtive landiord
model results in low rent

QO High-margin -
eConomics -

& Strong improvement in

Q@ Highly cash
profitability since 2019

qenerative model
¢ Cost efficiencies offsetting

¢ Long-term trend of ! : :
the impart of inflation

sales growth
© Disciplined capital { Property and central
allocation costs down

& Proven model of sales
driving investment
& Investment returns =30

¢ PET CAGR 0f 15
since 2017

GOVERNANCE FINANCHALS

THE VALUE WE CREATE FOR E:EEE@V

CUSTOMERS

SUPPLIERS

We offer our customers a
broad range of entestainment
oplicns at great value, creating
a memorable and enjoyable
experience overy time they
visit one of our centres,

PEOPLE

We wark with suppliers to
ensure a mutually beneficial
working relationship. We
expect our suppliers to
wiork within cur ethical
trading policy,

PARTNERS

We invest in rewarding,
training and supporting our
employees to reach their
potential and enable them to
deliver a first-class customer
experience,

INVESTORS

We have strong long-term
relationships with a core set of
cretical business partners who
help us create a competitive
ac santage and deliver a best-
in-zlass customer experience.

ENVIRONMENT

The Board governs the
business inthe best interasts
ot investors by delivering
consistent returns through a
proven stralegy for growth.

INDERPINNED BY:

We krow our business can
have a widar impact beyond
our direct stakeholders and we
waork to ensure we are having
a positive impact on local
communitias,

Ourculture  Robustrisk  Afocuson High
and values management sustainability standards

See page 12 See pagel? See page 20 See page 17
for more for more for more for more

Ten Entertainment Group ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL - STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNANCE FINANCIALS

Competitive socialising is at the heart of the experience. Bowling is one of the most established and popular forms of experiential
leisure in the UK., Our centres promote a friendly rivalry, which is enjoyable for all generations of families and friends.

Value for monoy - J o Arange tallored 1o onjoy * Boosts spend par head - Bestination for 18-30s "~ Sector-leading gameplay
average £5.13 per game wehile you bowl 257, of revenue Increased online reach Drives supplermeniary food
Entertainment for . Increasing varicty of Increased dwell time

97 daser tag sales growth and bar revenue
all generations plant-based options

Impulse purchase since 2019 Space efficient in centre
Reusable assets Leading value for money Strategic partnership Drives ropeat visits . Broadens appeal

Fixed cost of sales Sky Sports/BT Sport/Prime Blend of traditional and "~ Refurbishments deliver : Increases frequency of v
available in all centres modern arcade games

machines and pool tables of the estate offers ong or baih

Ten Entertainment Group ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022




OUR STRATEGY

We inspire our teams and partners
to innovate and deliver the best

in customer experience. Fun,
technology and entertainment

for every player.

Cur purpose drives and shapes all
of our decisions and priorities.

Our purpose drives and shapes

all of our decisions and priorities.

We engage with, listen to

and value feedback from our
customers and teams. We are
centinually learning to build an
amazing experience for all.

We develop and reward our
people to focus on results
and drive for excellence
inentertainment.

Qur culture unites our people
and inspires them to deliver
on our purpose and vision.

A first-class customer experience...
see page 13

...digitally enabled...
see page 14

...in high-quality centres...
see page 15

..with increasing UK coverage.
see page 16

Monitoring and maintaining
our culture is a vital part of
our strateay

STRATEGIC REPORT

GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAES

Ten Entertainment Group ple Annuat Report and Accaunts 2022




A

STRATEGIE PRIORITIES STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNANCE

OUR INVESTMENT HAS BEEN TARGETED
T0 DELIVER A MEMORABLE CUSTOMER
EXPERIENCE FROM EVERY VISIT:

> Diversification of experience to maximise space -
Houdini escapa rooms; karaoke; laser tag and more
< Affordable pricing for everyone

Service-focused employee incentives to drive high
performance across all centres

<

< Simplified menu tailored to e enjoyed while playing e

WHYIT I IMPORTANT ACHIEVEMENTS IN THE YEAR

Giving our customers a great value We have added more games
entertainment experience every time:  and value than ever before:

< Value for money drives loyalty < 10 new escape rooms

<+ [ncreased revenue per head ('RPH'} < Bespoke local pricing to suit markets

<> Variety of games drives new customers < Over £2m in bonuses to reward success
< Great service leads to repeat visits <& Held bowling prices at 2019 levels

& Entertainment with broad appeal < Doubled revenue from ancillary

offerings

Ten Entertainment Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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STRATEGIC PRIDRITIES CO4TINUED STRATEGEC REPORT GOVERHANCE FINANEIALS

OUR INVESTMENT HAS
BEEN TARGETED T0 IMPROVE
DIGITAL CAPABILITIES:

< Modern bowling tachnology integrated to new web platform
2 Newly developed CRM system enabling targeted deals

< Significantly strengthened social media engagement

& At table or lane food ard drink ordering

WHY T 15 IMPORTARY ACHIEVEMENTS N THE YEAR

Connecting our customers digitally We have delivered
increases their loyalty and frequency:  customer benefits with:
< Generate growth from new customers < 59% of bowling sales booked online
< More engagermnent with custorers < Enranced securty 10 protect customers
< Dnive addizional experiences online < Enharced database segmentation
< Reward lovalty to 2ncourage return visits < Cortinued growth in TikTok presence
< Targeted offers re evant to custorners < Expanding use of influencers
& Launched loyalty and reward app

Ten Entertainment Group ple Annual Report and Accourts 2022
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STRATEGIC PRIDRITIES EENTSRLER STRATEGIC REFORT GOVER ,  FINANCIALS

IN HJGH-QUALTTY

w®

QUR CAPITAL INVESTMENT PROGRAMME
IN THE EXISTING ESTATE 15 FOCUSED
ON THE FOLLOWING KEY AREAS:

2 Refurbishirg our centres - targeted investment 1o keep centres
maodern with best- n-class entertainment experience

£ Catch up maintenznce - ensuring all centres are maintained
10 a high standard and any pandemic shortfalls are caught up

<+ Best-in-class bowling - using latest bowling technology such
across the estate to give a lower cost base and
an improved experence for our custormers

WHYIT IS IMPORTANT ACHIEVEMENTS IN THE YEAR

A well-invested estate is a proven way to Continuing to provide a vibrant and modern
maintain customer satisfaction: bowling experience:

Like-for-like growth vs FY21 of +5.5%
Sector leading sales growth

O Growth in lice-for-like sales

< Cost-saving opportanities and efficiencies
> A meodern and contamporary envircnment
O Investment

Six major refurbishments

1 low-energy solutions
< Competing across Izisure and hespitality

Five bowling equipment refurbishments
Scoring systern update programme compieted

COC T O
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STRATEGIC PRIDRITIES CONTMUER

OUR PIPELINE COMPRISES EXISTING
BOWLING CENTRE ACOUISITIONS
AND NEW BUILD DPPORTUNITIES:

<

Acquire bowling cantres - driving significant uplifts through

implemenzation of sector-leading processes and experience

& Develop naw centres - converting brownfield sites into
entertainment centres ncluding selected city centre locations

wr

~

leisure or retail sites

WHYIT IS IMPORTART

Our winning model still has scope
to expand throughout the UK:
Growth in -otal sales and profit
Reaches more customers

< Excallent rasults from new centres

< Geared for growth

<D

< Optimising new centres for local markets

Grow the pipeline - identify new opportunities in existing

ACHIEVEMENTS IN THE YEAR

A significantly expanded pipeline
with two centres added in 2022:

> A new-build centre in Walsall

Harlew acquired and refurbished
New-build Crewe opened in Feb 2023
Dundee & Milton Keynes in development
Pipeline continues to grow

<>

GG 0D
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STRATEGY IN ACTICN

JING CeN

THE NEXT GENERATION DF BOWLING CENTRE : WALSALL

In September, the Group opened a revolutionary new bowling concept.

REVITALISING RETAIL SPACE

Walsall is the next generation of social
entertainment offering. The site is a 32.5k
sq ft, former Mothercare and Peacocks, that
has been transformed into far more than
just a bowling centre, it's a best-in-class
entertainment experience.

LATEST TECHNOLOGY

New style lane seating and booths, complete
with LED strip lights, create a 21st century look,
while enabling improved energy efficiency.
The new lanes give every group privacy from
their neighbours and their own individual
bowling experience.

SECIAL ENTERTAINMEINT

The cantre offers a range of seating and
environment, from intimate booths to
Instagrammable décor, making itideal for
large sacial groups or family fun.

MAXIMISING SALES DENSITY

As with all of our recent refurbishments, the
centre is designed with an efficient customer
journey in mind. We have optimised selling
space throughout.

Walsall offers a large arcade, vibrant pool area,
two private karacke rooms, a fully immersive
laser tag arena and three exciting escape rooms.

The first six months of trade have exceeded
expectations and we are delighted that this is
already one of our top 10 sites in terms of sales
per square foot, showing the benefit of designing
amodern centre from scratch,

Crewe opened in Q1 FY?23 and construction is
already under way in Milton Keynes and Dundee,
both of which will be open in the middle of

this year, We expect these sites will deliver the
positive reception from customers we have
experienced in Walsall,

GOVERNANEE

_PROUD TO BRING
TENPIN'S UNIQUE ENTERTAINMENT
T0 WALSALL

STUART INGLES
WALSALL GENERAL MANAGER

Ten Entertainment Group ple Arnual Report and Accounts 2022
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HEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS ['HPIS]

MEASURING OUR P

STRATEGIC REPORT

The Group's performance and results during the period can be seen across many metrics and KPls that are reviewed by the Group to understand our operational

and financial performance. Please see note 2 to the Financial Statements for the recon

TOTAL SALES

ieb 7w

2022 T £125. 7
2021

2020

201 [

2018 [N £76.4m

LIKE-FOR-LIKE SALES GROWTH

+5 0y,

2022 - RSN
2621 29.0%

PIYIY (17.4%)

2019 o

2018 B2

ation of APMs,

ADJUSTED EPS

29.3p

2022

2021

2020 JEERTS)
2019 __193p)
2018 [ 16.6p]

NUMBER OF CENTRES

48

2022 R R :
2021 T
2020 T
201> TS
201+ T

GOVERNANCE

FINANEIALS

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES
1 AFIRST-CLASS
CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE
2 DIGITALLY ENABLED
3 INHIGH-QUALITY CENTRES
4 WITH INCREASING
UK COVERAGE

GROWTH DRIVERS

A - MORE CUSTCOMERS

B - VISITING MORE OFTEN
C - WITH HIGHER SPEND

BANK NET {DEBT)/CASH

£10.

2022

2021 i£2.5m) [
PIpIY (£12.6m)

2019 g4m) I
2018 (g42m)

Definition and how we performed

is tre prirrary driver of the
Group's profitability and long-term value
creation, The Group recorted total sales
growth of —5C.6% versus FY19, the fast full
year of sales pre Covid-19. Consistent
growth allows the Groun to continue the
rofl cut of new sites 27d re' rvestment in
the exist'ng estate througi refurbishments.

Definition and how we performed

This 15 a critical measure of underlying
growth ir the business. The Group
resorted a +5.5% increase in like-for-like
sales versus 2021 for the post-recpening
period. This is sighFicant as H2 FY21 was
arecord-breaking peried for the Group
which has subsequently been beaten.
Consistent fike-for-like sales growtr
demonstrates the success of the growth
strategy. It aflows the Group to defray its
fixed costs over a broader sales base which
enables growth in profitability.

Definition and how we perfarmed

The Group's basic earninas per shareis a
reflection of the underlying growth being
delivered to sharehalders. EPS was ata
recor? level in FY22, highl'ghting the strong
investment case presented by the Group.

Definition and how we performed
Increasing LK coverage is a key measure of
the Group's growth strategy. During the
Covic-19 ¢losure period, the Group focused
on conserving cash but we are now once
again focused or estate expansion.

Two centres opered in the year, with an
expectation of a further four to open

In 2023

Definition and how we performed

The Groun's bank net cash is £10.7m (2021
Debt (£2.5m)) ar increase of £12.6m_Ths
‘sthe “irst time the Group has been ret
cash positive since the IPC. Bank net cash
comprises gross bank borrowings of Enil
(2021: £14.0m) with cash and cash
equivalents of €10 Tm (2021 £71.5m)
Strong profit performance in FY22 has led
o "o net debt providing a strong base for
investmentin 2023.

OBOOHHEE

Target and link to strategy:

Tetal sales are driven by improving the
revenue from our existing estate. through
driving “epeat customers and development
of offering, with the strong revenue from
new sites. Gur new site in Walsall is in the
top 10 sales for the Group, while the
acquisition 'n Harlow has doubled the sales
that the previcus cwnars were achieving
froen the same space. This shows the value
createc frorr cur propasition,

0OO0HOG

Target and link to strategy:

Like-for-like sales is driven by investing

in new praducts, growing andillary sales,
improving service, enhancing our digital
integration and ensuring that the core
bowling product is well invested across all
of our certres. Focus on the four p
of the strategy will generate like-for:
sales growth.

0050006

Target and link to strategy:
Deliverng strong £EPS gives investors
canfidence in tha Groun's leng-term,
strategy, allowing for the continued
Investment in new sites and the
refurbishrent programme.

006000

Target and link to strategy:

By increasing the number of centres in
the estatr, the Graun s 2ble ta attract
custemers in new market segments.
New sizes are targeted at generating
an ROl of »30%, allowing for strong
shareholder returns,

(1121 334 JANREC]

Target and link to strategy:
Targeting banx net cash between £5m -

£72m allmes the Group 1o furd ite strategic
growth plans, pay dividends to
shareholders and manage rick with a

liquidity buffer.
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS [WPIS') CORTINY

SURING ¢

EBITDA/CENTRE

il

REVENUE PER HEAD {'RPH’)

2021 [IEEPNY

2020 [ c0.17

2019 [T
el £0.48m)

2020 £13.99
2019 £14.60
2018 £14.76

STRATEGIC REPORT

GOVERNANCE

HRANCIALS

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES
1 AFIRST-CLASS
CUSTCMER EXPERIENCE
2 DiGITALLY ENABLED
3 IN HIGH-QUALITY CENTRES

4 WITH INCREASING
UK COVERAGE

GROWTH DRIVERS

A - MORE CUSTOMERS

B - VISITING MORE OFTEN
C - WiTH HIGHER SPEND

FOOTFALL

g.2u

2022 |y

2027

2020

2019 [N
2018 5.3m

Definition and how we performed

EBITDA per centre takes the total Group
adjusted EBITDA and then adjusts for the
tatal rent cost. This creates a broadly
consistent measure with IAS 17 £BITDA
{reported from 2017-2020). This allows

the Group to track the underlying cash-
generating profitability of the estate. The
calculation takes into account the number
of sites trading at year end. Growing
EBITDA per centre at a similar rate to sales
shows the steps taken to offset inflationary

O RISCLUNES e oG ouaressiul.

Definition and how we performed

RPH is the average revenue by customer
per visit. Th s is the total revenue per
centre divided by the footfall. RPH has
increased by 2.8% since last year and
increased by 6.3% compared to pre
Covid-1¢ levals in 2019, This reflects
customers' increased spend on food,
drink and increased engagement in
ancilfary activities,

Definition and how we performed

Footfall is the measure of the number of
unique bowling sessicns played Thisis a
crucial measure of overall custermer
demand and is carefully managed by
centre to ensure that bowling capacity and
footfall are balanced to optimise revenues.
Total footfall was over eight million
customers in 2022, over two million more
than the previous Group record.

]
QBOBLHEE
Target and link to strategy:
We operate large centres that have the
space to offer a wide variety of
entertainment for cur customers, Each
centre has a fixed cost base which we work
hard to optimise. We tailor the customer
offering to ensure that we deliver sales and
profit density from each centre in order to
continue to deliver strong financial returns.

0060E

Target and lirk to strategy:

Investment in a first-class customer
experience Is 3imed at increasing the dwell
time and offering more products to
customers {o 2ncourage them to spend
more, Being d gitally enabled enhances the
overall custorrer journey and ease of
ordering additional services such as food
and beverage whilst maintaining high-
quality centres encourages customers 1o
increase their dwell time.

000000

Target and link to strategy:
Due to our fixed bowling asset base, driving
higher footfall allows us to better utilise our
assets, driving revenue. Higher footfall
subsequently drives ancillary spend.

Ten Entertainment Group ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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REPORT FROM THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE ['ESG'] COMMITTEE

OUR APPROACH

The Group is committed to balancing cur environmental, social and
governance impacs to demonstrate our responsible business approach for
all stakeholders.

The Board regularly reviews the Group's ESG performance and sets out in
this section our goals and performance during the year

In FY22 the Board established an ESG Committee chaired by Sangita Shah,
an independent No-Executive Diractor with considerable experience in the
field. The Committee seeke ta review and deploy best practice n guiding
the Group's Focus and Goals.

OUR FOCUS

1. ENVIRONMENTAL

We have developed our strategy to deliver Net Zero for scopes 1and 2
emissions by 2030 and our Task Force on Climate Related Financial
Disclosures "TCFD" section sets out the strategy for the Group to deal with
the key risks identified. Principal focus areas are direct energy usage; food
and drink supply chain; waste management; and our building footprint.

We are committed to taking care of our people, providing safe and fun

working environments, We are committed to fair pay and recruitment,
embracing diversity and inclusion throughout the Group.

3.GOVERNANCE

Our Board decision making focuses on the long-term needs of our
shareholders. We have clear and robust policies in place to meet and
exceed our obfigations under the Carporate Governance Code and we
rigorously review our practices to ensure we treat stakeholders with
respect and dignity.

T

GOVERNANCE

OUR GOALS

We fully endorse the UN Sustainable Development Geals ['SDGs" and use
its framewaork to guide our policy and decision making. We consider the
following goals to be where the Group can have mest impact and have
highlighted in this section where relevant.

9
v
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REPORT FROM THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE ['ESG') COMMITTEE CONTINUED

. eNIRONMEN

SECR REQUIREMENTS

SLOPE BREAKDOWN {LOCATIDN-BASED]

STRATEGIC REPORT

SVERNANCE

HNANCIALS

Previous Year Current Year ?mso:m Year ncam:.ﬁ <m_w_.

{20271} (2022) Var, % (2021} (2022) Var, %
Scope 1: Operation of Facilities - - - - 560.5 —
Scope T: Combustion 1,201,837 2,662,918 121.6% 2209 482.1 121.4%
Total Scope 1 1,201,837 2,662,918 121.6% 2209 1,049.6 375.1%
Scope 2: Purchased Energy 10,472,520 16,197,022 54.7% 2,223% 31322 405%
Total Scope 2 10,472,520 16,197,022 54.7% 2,223.6 3,132.2 40.9%
Scope 3 Indirect Energy Use 427,860 722,157 £8.8% 102.9 179.6 74.5%
Total Scope 3 427,860 722,157 68.8% 102.9 179.6 74.5%
Total 12,102,217 19,582,097 61.8% 2,547.4 4,361.4 71.2%

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS INTENSITY RATIOR

INTENSITY RATIO REVIEW [LOCATION-BASED]

Previous Year

Current Year

Year on Year

Previous Year

Current Year

{2021} {2022) Variance 2020 (2021) (2022)

Nuember of Centres A4 48 4.3% Intensity Ratio 447 55.38 102.67
Intensity Ratio (tCO,e/Centre} 55.38 90.86 64.1% Difference - 10.68 4729
Variance % — 239% 85.4%
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REPORT FROM THE EXVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AXD GOVERNANCE ['ESG') COMMITTEE CONTINUFE

HUAL REPORTING METHODOLOGY

i qurm».mmmmn._ |
Location-Based | (Supplier Specific) Var, %
Scope 1: Cperation of Fac 560.5 560.5 ! 0%
Scope 1: Comaustion 891 489, w 0%
TotalScopet 10406 10496 0%
Scope 2: Purchased Energy 322 L s | @ssw
Total Scope 2 ' 3,132.2 : \o‘&o (96.9%}
Scope 3: Indirect m.:m@\ Use 179.6 179.6 0%
TotalScope3 179.6 ! 179.6 T %
Total h.aw.m._ 4 1,325.8 (69-6%)

SECR NOTES & EXCLUSIORS

Notes

2 Qur methodolagy has been based on the principles of the Greenhouse Gas Protocol, taking account of the 2015
amendment which sets cut a ‘dual reporting’ methodolog for the reporting of Scope 2 emissions. In the 'Total
Footprint” summary above, purchased electricity is reported on a location-based method.

& We have reported on all the measured emissions sources raquired in The Companies (Directors’ Report) and
Limited Liabilitv Partnerships (Energy and Carbon Report) Pegulations 2018, except where stated.

< The period of our report is 27/12/2021-01/01/2023.

> This includes limited emissions under Scope 1 and 2 {gas & fuel used in transport; purchased electricity), except
where stated, and limit2d emissions under Scope 3 (fuel uszd in persenal/hire cars for business purposes).

<> Energy use and emissicns figures relate to our UK operations (including offshore energy and emissions) only,
except where stated.

£ Conversion factors for UK electricity {location-based methodology), gas and other emissions are those published
by the Departrment for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs “or 2022-23.

{ Conversion factors for renewable electricity (market-based methodology) are published at
https://energy.drax.com/support/fuel-mix-disclosure/

2 F-Gas consumpt'on now included within scope 1 reporting.

& Electricity and Gas has baen pro-rated to cover the 27/12/2021-01/01/2023 period to match the financial year.

Exclusions

& There are no known exclusions,

STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNANCE

ENERGY EFFICIENCY ACTIONS

In the pericd covered by the report, Ten Entertainment Group has continued
to procure a 100% renewable electricity contract with Drax power; 97% of all
purchased electricity is now 100% renewable. In addition, the following
energy-saving measures have been implemented during this period:
Replaced a gas fired water immersion with an alternative electric boi
Replaced an immersion heater element and installed a new
unvented cylinder to ensure efficient activity.

ern

A continued replacement of new compressors in seven sites
to improve current efficiency. Equipment upgrades have
alsc been made following recent centre refurbishments,
including the purchase of efficient pizza ovens
and crushed ice flakers to support the cocktail
machine installations. With regards to lighting
controls and upgrades, there has been
a continued transition to LED lighting
from fluorescent tube for over-lane
lighting in nine centres which are
also computer-controfied,
and front of house LED

lighting in four centres.

Ten Entertainment Group ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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REPORT FROM THE EXVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE ['FS6') COMMITTEE EORTIRUED

iAol (N CLIMATE-RELATED FINANCIAL
BCLOSURES [ TCHD

CLIMATE-RELATED DIGCLOSURES

Inaccordance with tha LS Linsting Rule 9.8.6R(8) we present our 2022 “CFD compliance statement and confirm
that we have madz climate-related financial disclisrs for the yzar endea 1 January 2023. Disclosure of the actual
and ootential Impacts of climate-related nsks and opportunities on an organisation is funcamental to understanding
how the business strategy may be nfluenced. Climate-relatec issues can affect several important aspects of an
arganisation's finz~cial performance and position, both ~ow and in the future.

R

The Task Force provides recommendat’ons for climate-related financial disclosures structured around four
trematic areas:

1. Governance

2. Strateqgy

3. Risk Maragement

4, Metrics & Targets

The four cverarcaing recormnrmendations are supported by 17 specfic recommended disclosures focusing on
assessing climate-related risks and opoortunities. Ten Entertainmrent Group and its Board recognise *he importance
of adopting t~e TCFD recommendations and reports climate-related information consistent with this framework to
ensure h'gh-quality and decision-useful disclosures. This enables users to understana the impact of climate change
on our Group ar d the wider community and envircnment.

BIVERKANLE

The governance disclesure cons’ders an organisation's governance around climate-related risks and oppertunities.
The strategic oversight of ciimate c~ange 15 owned by the Board.

The Group's day-ta-day governance of climate change ‘s overseen by the ESG committee which was established in
2022 Sangita Shah, an independent Non-Executive Directer of the Group was recruited to the Board with significant
experience of delivering against a sustai~ability ard goverrance agenda anc is Chair of the Committee. Two other
independent Nor-Executive Directers anc an Sxecutive Diractor (the CFO and Company Secretary) are also
mambers of the Comrmittee.

Cl'mate crange 1s covered within the remit of the ESG Commitiee under fou- working themes:
1. Operational carbor

2. Value chair

3. Climate change and business strategy

4. Engagement and eccountability

The ESG Comrrrittee reports on 'ts activities o the Board,

STRATEGIC REPORY GOVERNAKCE FINANCIALS

BOARD DVIRSIGHT

The Group corsiders climate change to be a sig

ificant board-level strategic issue.

Overall responsibility for climate-related risks and opportunities sits with the Board. As part of our activities

to address risk, cimate change is a standing Board agenda item included within the Sustainability update.
Chimate-related financ’al issues form pa-t of Sustainability, whicn the Board will review and take action as required
on risk management policies and business plarning.

The Board ras undertaken carbon literacy training in the last 12 months to enhance its understanding in this area
and has had active discussions throughout 2022 to identify its risks and opporturities and to formulate a
sustainability strategy.

MANAGEMENT'S ROLE

At management level, the climate change agenda is maraged as part of the delivery of our sustainability strategy
which is a core pillar of our overall business strategy. As part of this, our actions in relation to climate change are
drven by our Net Zero strategy (formulated 'n 2022 and currently being finalised). This sets out clear goals, metrics
and targets to operaticnalise our approach

Each year we will ‘'ncorperate a detalled review of climate-relatec issues and performance as part of our planning
cycle to assess progress and actions and to ensure that our ‘net zero' programme s fit for purpese in delivering
for the business anc all of its stakeholders.

We retain a special’st consultant on an ongoing basis who provides any specific technical advice that is requ'red
ir relation to climate-related nisk, in respect of mitigation, adaption and trarsition.

NEXT 5TEPS

We are commeited to transparercy in our governance approach and the Board's oversight of climate-ralated risks

and opportunities. Management are committed to developing and executing our strategy on an ongoing basis i

line with the TCFD recommendaticns. We will continue to engage at all levels of the business to consider how we
canintegrate best practice into our internal governance structure and processes.

OTRATERY

The strategy disclosure looks at the actual and potential impacts of climate-related r'sks and opportunities or the
organisation's businesses, strategy, and financial planning.

We acknowledge trat climate-related risks and opportunities have an irmpact on our business. We are therefora
impiementing a clear strategy to respond to that. Qur focus 1s on:

< Mitigation of our impact, by recucing our eraissions

< Managing ay Transiti

n of physical nsks in -elation to adaptation.

We have made considerable progress in 2022 in reviewing the busiress risks and formulating an action plan to
reduce our climate-related impacts. We are currently finalising our Net Zero strategy, providing a clear framewerk
of how we manage our climate-related risks and opportunities.

Ten Entertainment Group ple Arnual Reoor: and Accounts 2022
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REPORT FROM THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE [£56'] n__zz_:m,mmz:zmmm

TASK ZORCE ON CLIMATE-RELATED FINANC AL DISCLOSURES {'TCFDY)

tMISSIDNG REDUCTION STRATESY

As part of our Net Z

erc strategy, we are adopting s'x key principles to guide our approach:

Make sustainabilty central to everything we do with a sustairability mindset throughout the ousiness

Take proactive zction bv implerrenting changes to our business to reduce our irpact on the environment
Ergage with and report to our key stakeholders

Renew ou- approach ard use technology where required to address the sustainability challenge

1
2
3
4. Bacome efficie~t by design {ircluding buld rgs)
5
)

. Rebalance our ‘mpact (zhrough carbon offsetting) where other actions taken are not su‘ficient

We have three headline commitments in relation to emissions reduction:

23 We will align our strategy witn the fatest climate science as guided by the Science Based Targets initiative (SBTi)

& Weinterd to hecome Met Zero for our scope | and 2 emissions by 2030

< We ‘nterd for our scope 3 emissions to align to Net Zero by 2050 (as tris Is the date for UK society set by the
Government) ard we belleve that this will provide us the right framework fer managing our transition to Net Zero
and support our reputation by al'gning with best practice.

Thaese

Our most significant climate-related risks and opzortunities 'den

the key actions we are taking.

are reinforced by resource level targets, which are further detailed in the metrics and targets secticn.

ied from ou- process are below, along with

Top risks

Changing low carbon consumer
behaviours towards sustainable
food and drink alternatives

.._le o_uvo.l.._.._:.i.mm

Development of supply chain
standards

Key actions
Full carbon neutral menu

Changing low carbon product policy
regarding carbon abelling

Developrment of products with lower
lifecycle emissions

Engagement to set standards
around carbon reduction in the
supply chain

Offsetting and insetting (collaborative
investment to reduce odr supply
chain emissions)

Confirming our commitment to

Net Zeic by 2050

Top risks

Changes in rainfall patterns;
increased flood risk and cnanging
customer demand during peak
times as seasons shift

Top opportunities

Investment in climate resilient
buildings/reducing operating costs

Key actions

Review climate risk for every site,
identify opportunities for
renewables and flood risk

Increasing tem peratures and
droughts resulting in potentially
decreased demand for indoor
activities and Increased nzed
for cooling

Create an environment where we
maximise yield in favourable
conditions and manage variable
costs such as operating and labour
costs to a minimum during low
footfall periods

Net Zero buildings target, whole
life approach

STRATEGIC REPORT
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Top risks

Changing consumer behaviour

Top opportunities
Supporting consumers in their
transition with a sustainable leisure

Key actions
Adoption of our Net Zero strategy,
confirming our commitment to

offering Net Zero
Attractiveness to stakeholders as Ouraction on climate change Recycling and waste reduction
investors demand action on increases attractiveness to nitiatives

climate change

investors and customers

Whilst all organisatio~s will have a signi¥’cant iImpact frorm the costs of the trans tien to Net Zero {(both directly and
i eve tat we can control or mitigate costs well th-ough our Net Zero strategy.

irectly} we bel

With regards to the three scenarios that we consider in this risk assessment, these are surnmarised as follows:

Description

Smooth transition to <2°C

Disruptive transition to <2°C

No acceleration of action >3°C

Overview

Transition to a carbon-neutral
economy starts early and the
increase in global
termperatures stays well below
2°C, in line with the Paris
Agreement.

Global climate goal of keeping
ternperatures well below 2°C
is met but the transition is
delayed and must be more
severe to compensate for

the late start.

Where no policy action
beyond that which has already
been announced is delivered,
resuiting in above 3°C of
warming. Therefore, the
transition is insufficient for the
world to meet its climate goal.

Qutcomes of
our analysis

We experience a high level of
impact from transition risks

in this scenario, with higher
levels of pelicy and legislation
Impacting the business in the
short to medium term. The
physical risks are least extreme
which mitigates medium to
leng-term challenges in our
supply chain.

Physical risks under this
scenario are higher than the
smooth transition as there are
significant differences in the
impact on the environment,
impacting our supply chain
mere severely. The transition
risks are high and disruptive
and arc likely to have a
material impact because of
the pace and nature of the
interventions required.

Whilst we experience much
more limited transition risks in
this scenario, the physical risks
are much more severe. This
has significant impacts on cur
supply chain in the medium
to long term as the world will
have to adjust to much more
significant change and
environmental damage from
the impacts of the global
temperature rise and the
consequent effects on

our climate.

Assumptions

There is early and decisive
action to reduce global
emissions in a gradual way,
with clearly signposted
government policies
implemented relatively
smoothiy.

To compensate for the
delayed start a deeper
adjustment is required,

as evidenced in a steeper
increase in global carben
prices in a late attempt to
meet the climate target.
Under this scenario, physical
risks rise more quickly than in
the early pelicy action scenario
and transition risks are severe.

This scenaric tests the
organisation's resilience

to both chronic changes in
weather (e.q. rising sea levels),
as well as more frequent and
extremne weather events (e.c.
fiash Hoods). Theretore, under
this scenarie, there are limited
transition risks, but physical
risks are significant.

Ten Entertainment Group ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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REPORT FROM THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNAKCE ('S5’ COMMITTEE Emzzmmm

TASK FORCE ON CLIMATE-RELATED FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES ('TCFD

METRICS AND TARGETS

The mretrics and targets d sclosure looks at the metrics and ta-gets used
to assess and mar age refevart climate-related risks and oppo-tunities.

METRILS HGEE

Cuur operational management of climate-related risk is measurec th-ough
the below metrice.

< Erergy efciercy (kWwh per m? bullding floo- area) to meas ure the
affectiveness of our energy conservation

<& Renewables/P>A (% renewables/% self-gencrated) to mezsure our

‘ransitior to renewable energy

Waste targets (% recy-led/lardhll avaidance) to measure the

effectiveness of our approacr to waste management

< Food and drinx menu kgCO e per cover) to measure the effectiveness
o° our decarbenisation of our menu {39% of our carbon footorint)

< Supply chain engageme~ttargets (% of suppliers engaged) ©o measure
the engagement of our supply chain n managing our climate risks/
opportunit'es

o

GREERHOUSE GAS EMISEIONG

Emissions data ir respect of the 2222 reporting pericd, based on
operational contiol, are disclosed as follows:

1,034 7.28%

Combustion 1,034.2¢ 6.00%
- Buildings :

Combustion ~ 154 9.11% 0.09%
- Vehicles

Scope 1 1,049.60 7.39% § 1,049.6C 6.09%
Electricity i %64 0.68% 3,132.20 18.17%
Scope 2 ! 96.6 | 0.68% | 3,132.20 | 1B.17%
Purchased goods 71560 50.09% 711560 4°27%
and services

Capital goods 2,475.40 17.43% | 2,475.40Q 14.36%
Fueland energ 1,577.80 11.11% 1,577.80 2.15%
-related activitizs

Waste generated 422 1 297% 422 2.45%
in operations

Business travel 1,468.10 1 10.34% 1,468.10 8.52%
Scope 3 13,058.90 91.94% 113,058.90 75.75%
Total 14,205.10 | 100.00% | 17,240.72 100.00%
{Lotaticn) refers to location-based reporting; (Market) refers ta market-

based renorsing. Both cefinitions are i line with the Greenhouse Gas
. All stated variances are of our Jocation-hased emissions.

GREENHDUSE GAS EMISSIONS INTENSITY RATID:

Bravious Year Year an Year

STRATEGIC REPORT

Current Year
(2020-21} {2021-22) Variance
Total {tCO.e) 6,4458 14,2053 | +120.4%
Intensity Ratio 0.00144 000174 | +20.7%
(tCO.e/Customers) k

Emission reperting notes

<& Our methodology has been based on the principals of the Greenhouse
Gas Protocol, taking account of the 2015 amendment which sets out
a‘dual reporting’ methadelogy for the reporting of scope 2 emissions,
In the Total Footarint’ summary above, purchased electricity is reported
on a market pased method.

O We nave -eported on all material emissions within cur Operat'onal
Control as gefined within the Greenhouse Gas Protocol.

£ Tre period of our report is 27/12/21-01/01/23.

& Tris report includes emissions under scope T and 2, except where
stated, and includes emissions from scope 3 sources relating to
business travel, purchased good and services, capital goods, employes
commuting, fuel- and energy-related activit'es, water and waste.

& Allmaterial emissions have been included within this disclesure,

& Conversion factors for UK electricity {location-based methodology),
gas and other emissions are those punlished by the Department for
Environment, Food and Rural Affa’rs for 2022-23,

& Conversion factors for UK electricity {market-based methodology)
are published an the fuel mix cisclosures on sach supplier’s website,

Statement of exclusions

There are no known exclusions.

Energy efficiency action

Energy efficiency improvements are a core focus for the Group to reduce
its climate impact.

Dunng 2022 the Group comoleted its programme of ‘ns*allation of
energy-efficient pinsetters. This project has recuced energy consumption
per certre [on an underlying steady volume basis) by 8%.

ine Group's focus s now on the installation of energy-etficient LED Tighting
throughout its centres. This programme is aligred to the refurbishment and
new build programme

Durnng 2072 tne Group has replaced over 20% of the estate’s heating
and cocling systenrs with more modern and energy-efficient systems,
with particular focus cn reducing the gas boilers within the Group.

GOVERNANCE FINANCIALS

DURTARGETS

Our Net Zero strategy will work towards the below targets:

1. We intend to become Net Zero for aur scope 1 ard 2 emissions by 2030
2. We intend for our scope 3 errissions 1o align to Net Zero by 2050

NEXT STEPS

We will continue to drive forward to deliver significant carbon reductions.
We are on track fo- alt of the decarbonisation targets (shown above) and
will continue to reduce our mpact on the environment across all three
ern'ssion scopes in line with climate science.

Ten Entertainment Greup ple A~nuzl Report and Accounte 2022
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REPDRT FROM THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GDVERNANCE ['ESG'] COMMITTEE CORTINLED

Our dedicated team of over 1,700 people has
contributed enarmousty to the success of FY22.

It has been extremely welzome to have a full year
uninterrupted by Covid-19 closures and this has
meant we have been able to focus on performance-
based rewards, helping our people to share in the
Group's sUCCess.

We have invested heavily in our processes and policies
to ensure that they represent best practice in the
industry te support and protect cur teams. Our fully
digital training and on-boarding tools continue to
develop and evolve, giving our workforce everything
they need to be successfal,

We were delighted to we come the members of the
Harlow team to our busiress under a TUPE transfer,
and we raplidiy assimilated those team members into
mare effective ways of working, giving them access to
better pay, more benefits and a clearer career
development pathway.

Communication is key to managing a fast-rnoving
multi-site business, and we are very pleased to
caontinue to be at the forefront of Yapster's
development. This gives our teams all the tools they
neead to understand whaz is golng on in the business
and allows them to communicate at all levels.

During FY22 we were acutely aware of the impact of
the cost-of-living crisis, particularly on our hourly paid
colleagues. We brought “orward our increase in hourly
pay by six months, making the increase in October
2022 rather than April 2023. This helped 87% of our
workforce to manage an otherwise difficult winter. We
also continued our performance-based rewards, and in
2022 have paid out over £2.0m in bonus payments to
help our teams share in the Group's success.

Crur peopie are at the heart of everything we do and
our success is dependent on them. As our growth
continues, the happiness and wellbeing of our
employees is key. We will continue to focus on
employee engagernent, to enhance our culture and
deliver our long-term goals.

e had our Company-wide Tenpin Cup football
tournament. This was the first opportunity for
colleagues across the estate to get together since we
reopened post Covid-19. Every centre in the estate was
rapresented, with hundrads of players getting together
at Star City Goals for a day of competition which
culminated in the team from Camberley and
Bexlayheath winning the ladies’ tournament and Leeds
winning the mer's. Alongside the friendly rivalry on the
day, our colleagues raised over £1,200 for Macmillan
Cancer Support.

“owards the end of 2022, we launched our Menopause
Policy. This was supported by a menopause awareness
video and a menopause support group. Thisis a
drop-in session for those experiencing menopause

and want to share their story, get advice from others

or for colleagues who want to find out more about the
menopause and how to suppert their team members.,
We believe that supporting those facing very real
mental and physical challenges at this time in theit lives
is crucial to being a responsible and caring employer.

To augment existing support systems and benefits, we
added free counselling from the Licensed Trade Charity
“or all our employees, This is in addition to our
“mployee Assistance Programme, a full range of mind
and body benefits via Medicash and even more via
Tenpin Treats. The vast array of discounts offered by
Tenpin Treats has been especially helpful during the
current cast-of-living crisis.

STRATEGIC REPORT

The Group is passionate about internal personal
development, With a Chief Executive Officer who started
on the shop floor more than 30 years ago and has
progressed through the business to the very highest
leve), this is a company that passionately believesin
developing its internal talent, Cur Operations Director
has been with the business for over 15 years, starting as
a centre manager, and the regional management team
has over 80 years of combined Tenpin experience.
Building a programme for the leaders of the future is
fundamental to the Group's success.

A new management induction process was faunched to
ensure new managers are fully trained and supported
through this crucial period of employment. Part of this
process is weekly check-ins with their nominated
Regional Trainer, to ensure the new manager feels

fully supported and has the best chance of success.

In addition, we launched a team member induction

to support our hourly paid team members.

One of our real headline successes in 2022 was our
Training Champions proegramme. The Training Champions
are long-term team members or Unit Supervisors who
are multi-skillad and passionate about training. They
take responsibility for team member onboarding and
induction at site level, re-training of team when required,
keep a focus on the customer journey and have regular
check-ins with the team. We have an ongoing support
process for sur Training Champions to suppeort and
develop them further, thus improving the skills of our
team and delivering a better customer experience.

We designed a leadership programme for General
Managers. The programme will be launched in January
2023 and will run over the course of 12 months with a
range of activities to achieve a blended approach.

We have created two further management development
programmes to support more junior managers to
progress within the business. These programimes

GOVERNANCE HNANCEALS
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are extensive and designed to deliver competent,
rmativated managers who love to run our businesses.

We continue to build a pipeline of strong junicr
managers making sure that we are building the
leadership of the future.

Diversity and inclusien is central to cperating our
business. As a leisure business that welcomes over

8 million custorners each year, it is important that our
centre teams represent the communities that they
serve. Tenpin is a welcoming and inclusive envirenment
for everyone.

The Group's policy on diversity is that no individual
should be diseriminated against on the grounds of race,
colour, ethnicity, nationality, religious belief, political
affifiation, sexual orlentation, gender, gender idertity,
age or disability.

The Board recognises the benefits of diversity,
including gender diversity across the crganisation.
Board appointments are made on merit while ensuring
that there is an appropriate balance of skills and
experience available to lead the business. The Board
currently consists of 42.8% {three} female and 57.2%
{four) male Board members while the total Group
headcount is split as below:

Female Male Toial
Board 3 4 7
Exec + Direct Reports 19 16 35
Managers 125 M3 238
Staff 854 608 1,462
Total 1,001 741 1,742

As at § March 2023

Ten Entertainment Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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We are confident that as we “ontinue to progress
towards a gender-balanced workforce, our gender pay
gap will continue to reduce.

There are a number of steps we are taking to improve
our gender balance that we expect to positively impact
our gender pay gap, including:

I Reviewing our partnerships to attract a diverse and
exciting workforce

Using our networks to share our people’s stories and
ideas, celebrate differences and showcase our
amagzing talent

Through the use of technalogy and gamification,
enabling remote learning and virtual networking
intreducing a job evaluation scheme and grading
structure

Ensuring our people leaders feel enabled to support
and develop a diverse and flaxible workforce through
the creation of tools, support and guidance

We truly believe that getting the best from our
people means equipping our leaders with the right
skills and support to enable this

We recognise that there is still a lot more to be done,
and we will continue to shape a more diverse and
inclusive culture at TEG. Full details of the latest Gender
Pay Gap report can be found on our website.,

We believe that our provision of affordable
entertainment that crosses the generations and brings
famity and friends together has a positive influence on
the communities that we serve. Our centres are fun
for all ages to enjoy and we strive to ensure that our
customers have a safe environment in which to
socialise with friends and family.

In the summer of 2022 we were invited to Downing
Street to help support the government in making
summer heliday activities affordable and accessible

to all. The result was that throughout the summer
holidays we entertained our junior customers for £5 fora
game of bowling and a burger and fries. That was a price
accessible to a very broad range of the UK papulation.
Throughout the year, bowling at Tenpin is an affordable
experience with an average realised price per game of
only £5.13 representing genuine value for money.

Our centres provide drink and focd as part of the
experience, and we understand the focus on diet,

and wellbeing. We are passicnate about our food and
strive to always provide the best quality food to our
customers. We are focused on making progressive
changes going forward to meet changing customer
expectations, including continuing to review our
meat-free offering. We continue to work with our
suppliers to reduce the amount of sugar and salt in the
products we use and ensure all our products are from
sustainable sources and that we have a range of

healthier options available. We communicate regularly
with regulatery bodies, local councils and our suppliers
to ensure that we have an appropriate mix of gaming
machines in terms of content and quality and age
appropriateness.

STRATEGIC REPORT

The Group supported Rays of Sunshine, MIND and
Macmillan in 2022. Our annual Tenpin Relay raised over
£1,100, which was split between Rays of Sunshine and
MIND, We also raised over £1,300 for Macmillan Cancer
Support at our annual foothall tournament. Money was
also raised for various other charities including Children
in Need, Lions Clubs and Tommy's Charity by individual
team members at a focal level.

In 2023, we will be creating a charity committee and
raising money for Macmiilan Cancer Support. Macmillan
provides physical, financial and emotional support and
we believe this practical support is vital to coping with
cancer at a fundamental level. We will focus on the
following:

<> Awareness

We will raise awareness within our teams to drive
fundraising activity both locally and centrally, We wili do
this via the charity committee and our internal
communications platform.

<> Events

We will continue to support established annual events,
such as our Tenpin Relay and Football tournament,
both of which are very popular. We wil} zlso encourage
individual and local fundraising events whether for
Macmillan or other charities.

GOVERNANCE HINARCIALS

The health and safety of everyone who enters our
centres is of upmost importance to the Board, Qur
colleagues and suppliers deserve to work in an
enviranment that ensures they return home at the end
of the day healthy and our customers expect to have fun
in centres that maintain the highest standards in safety.

The Group has a Health and Safety Committee that
meets on a regllar basis, with business sections
represented, to ensure consistency across the Group.
This Committee is supported by independent health
and safety experts, who are on top of all the latest
requirements.

The Committee then reports into the Board, with any
issues or improvements required being discussed
during Board meetings, where health and safety is a
standing agenda item.

Ten Entertainment Group plc Arnual Renort and Accounts 2022
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REPDRT FROM THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SGCIAL AND GOVERNANCE ['ES5") COMMITTEE CONTHNUED

BOARD DECISION MAKING

In cempliance with Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 ('5.172"), the Beard of Directars, both individually
and together, actina 2&. that they consider, in good faith, would be most likely to promote the success of the
Company for the benefit of its stakeholders. The Board has dasignated Julie Sneddon, Senicr Independent
Non-Executive Director, as a key point of engagemerit with the workforce. See stakehclder engagement on
page 32.

RESPECT AND DIGNITY _ .,

The Group respects and supports the dignity, wellbeing and human rights of cur employees, customers, supply
chain and comm nities in which we operate, and is committ2d to ensuring that everyone working throughout cur
operations and within our supply chain is treated with dignity and respect.

We have a zero tolerance approach to modern slavery of any kind and are committed to acting ethically and with
integrity in all ou- business dealings and refationships. Full details of both our Human Rights poficy and latest
Modern Slavery staternent can be found at www.tegplc.co.u<

We operate an irdependent whistleblowing hotline, with mcdern anonymous digital as well as telephone access.
There were no whistleblowing incidents reported in 2022,

INFORMATION SECURITY

The Group and the Board take information security matters ery serfously. The Board is updated at each meeting on
information security and has conducted a detailed information review during 2022. There have been no significant
information security or data breaches during 2022 or the previous three years.

The Group is vigilant in its approach to threat management and uses internal processes and outside agencies to
ensure that its threat awareness and protection is up to date. We treat our customers’ data with respect and do not
share or sell infermation to third parties other than these agencies we use to help us with our communications
strategy. During 2022 we significantly upweighted our website cookies policy and continue to develop and monitor
our IT security. :

FAIR TAX POLICY :

The Group is committed to fair and trangparent tax practices, and compliance with all applicable tax laws, rules and
regulations, wit1out exception. The Group aims to achieve an optimat tax position for the Group, which dees not
mean the lowest tax result possible in the short term, but rather the optimal tax resuit, considering sustainability
and continuity of the pesiticns taken over the longer term. The Group does not (and will not) enter into artificial
arrangements in order to aveid taxation or to defeat the stated purpose of the tax legislation, nor does it {nor will it)
undertake aggressive tax planning. The Group's tax policy i€ available on the Ten Entertainment Group ple website.

STRATEGIC REPDRT GOVERNANCE FINANCIALS

NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION STATEMENT

We comply with the Non-Financial Reporting B.Dcm_.mjgms.a contained in sections 414C (11} of the Companies Act
2006. The below table, and information it refers to, is intended to help stakeholders understand our position on key
non-financial matters and navigate to where further detail can be found-in this report.

Requirement Policies Additiona) information

Environment Environment statementand  Environmental and greenhouse gas emission disclosures
Health and Safety policy on pages 21 to 26 and heafth & safety on page 56

Employees Diversity, gender pay gap, See pages 27 to 28 of Environmenital, Social and Governance
Health & Wellbeing Strategy

Human rights Slavery and Human Trafficking  Stavery and Human Trafficking statement on page 29,
statement, Whistleblowing whistleblowing on page 56, Data Protection policy
policy, Data Protection poficy  on page 56

Principal risks Risk Regfster Risk Management and Internal Control statement on page

55, Principal risks on pages 41tc 42

Business model Our business rmodef and strategy are described on pages 10

and12to 16

Qur non-financial KPis are explained on page 18 to 19

Non-financial key
performance
indicators

Anti-corruption
and antl-bribery

Bribery Act policy and
audit services

Page 56 for Internal and External Audit services and Bribery
and Anti-Corruption policy

Ten Entertainment Group ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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SECTION 172

STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNANCE

LI &

The Board believes that talancing the interests of stakeholders with our corperate purpose and the
desire to mairtain high standards of ethical conduct is embedded in the way we do business.

As required by section 172 of the UK Companies Act 2006, the Directors
have acted *o promote tha success of the Group for the benefit of its
stakeholders. In meeting this responsibility during the year, the
Di-ectors nave had regard, amongst other matters, to!

O

2 the likely consequences of any decisions in the long term
the interests of the G-oup’s employees
the need to foster the Group's key relationships

[SRE o)

& the impact of operations on the community and environrnent
<& the Group's reputaticn for high standards of business cor.duct
the need to act fairly and responsibly

< the current economi: and political cimate

“THE BOARD WORKS T0 EMBED HIGH

STANDARDS OF ETHICAL CONDUCT IN THE WAY WE

00 BUSINESS. WE CONSISTENTLY ENGAGE WITH OLR
STAKEHOLOERS TO ENSURE WE MEET THEIR NEEDS.

JULIE SNEDDON,
SENICR INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ten Entertain ment Group ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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SR T
Acceleration of our pipeline and investment - Despite - Investors — The Board considered that the value created from successfully improving and expanding our estate w - Adecision to continue investing in the estate despite

the ongoing economic uncertainty, the Board has : maximise shareholder returns with the proven model of growth delivering return on investment of aver 30%. . economic uncertainty means that 11 centres were

e R <5 T

P OO

remained committed to :;.«mmﬁ.nz@ inthe _,“.%Egm,.ijjﬁ Our Customers - The Board wanted to cantinue to develop exciting and diverse entertainment centres for our ) refurbished in 2022 alongside two new centres added
of our nms,w_“u.mwm and expanding our estate, investing over | ¢ stomers to enjoy and concluded that well-invested centres are the best way to continue to enjoy growth in footfal, | 10 the estate.
£20m in FY . s . i i i i

: OLr Environment - Invastment in cur centres inciudes key energy-saving initiatives such as new pinsetters, low- : mo:gc.m.a growth in the business has increased

: . . )

* enzrgy lighting, efficient heating and cooling systems and modern insulation. Uﬂo)ﬁ;mg__é and cashflow, thereby freeing up further

. o . ) o ) - funds for investment and growth in the future.

: Qur Suppliers - The Group has a track record of growth when it invests in the business which is to the benefit of our | ) ) . )

" ke suppliers and partners. We commit to long-term relationships with our business partners and when we grow our - Dmm__u_.nm the investrment of over £20m cf strategic

| centres we maintain our commitrment to therm. . capital expenditure, the Group ended the year with nil

; bank debt and over £10m of available cash.

i - The Board plans to continue with self-funded and

_— e oo sustainable investment in a more profitable business.
Reinstatement of dividend - The Board took the Investors - The Board aims to maximise total shareholder returns with a balance of reinvestrnent in the business and | The paying of a dividend provides the market with a
decision to reinstate a dividend in Septemberin returning a dividend to shareholders to generate consistent returns on investment. Returning a proportion of profit “strong indicator of long-term financial viability.
response to a sustained return to strong trading to shareholders also ensures a disciplined approach to capital allocation for investmeant, ' This instils confidence and makes the shares a maore
Cur Customers - The Board determined that the payment of a dividend would not impact the ability to investinthe  * attractive investment propasition for potential

- estate or continuing to provide great customer expetience. investors, increasing the price and value for the

" Qur People - The Board determined that reinstatement of a dividend was affordable and posed no risk o the existing shareholders.

" leng-term future of the business, thereby maintaining job security. In additien, the Group has increased the bonuses
e FRYVEDIR toteam members as part of a strategy to ensure that all stakeholders share in the Group's success. S
Maintaining prices at 2019 levels - The Group has " Our Customers - The Group understands that customers are being faced with price inflation and has taken the Customers come to our centres because they want
chosen to remain committed to holding bowling prices - decision to improve our value proposition by remaining an affordable entertainment venue for friends and families “ value-for-money entertainment.

at 2019 levels in spite of high inflation being seen in the ' to socialise. This helps maintain and grow footfall,
economy. The average realised price of a game of
bowling in FY22 was £5.73 which is slightly lower than

. * Ag our primary assets are fixed, the Group is focused on
. Investors - The Board believes that by maintaining our value proposition and focusing on driving footfall to generate . maximising the utifisation of our assets and maxirmising
. 'evenue growth, the Group will be in a better position to weather the economic headwinds, protecting the value for  * our capacity and sales density.

n FYT9. . shareholders. : The Board believes that by maintaining value and
" Our Suppliers - Keeping our base value proposition and driving footfall resuits in greater ancillary revenue, driving : customer goodwill, they are more likely to have repeat
volume for our suppliers. We work hard with our suppliers to keep costs down, giving them the opportunity to also « visits, improving the use of our asset base.
. benefit from the increased footfall. .
1 Our Colleagues - Ensuring our centres are busy with customers results in the ability to continue to ensure that shifts
" are wel! staffed to ensure that we have sufficent people to welcome and entertain our customers. During 2022 our
R i o ::...:...zm colleague numbers grew to a record 1,700 as a result of the footfall growth,
Bringing forward hourly pay ahead of National : Our Shareholders ~ The Board manages the business for long-term sustainable profit growth and it was deemed that * We are better able to recruit and retain people and
Minimum Wage ('NMW'} increases - almost 90% of 1 staff retention, morale and customer service are all enhanced by ensuring that our people are well supported " provide a great service to our customers. As a resut,
colleagues are paid on an hourly rate that is finked to financially through difficult times. we continue to enjoy footfall and sales growth that is

the National Minimum Wage. This usually increases Our Customers - In order to continue to provide a high-quality custemer experience we need to ensure that our : sufficient to pay for the inceased cost base.

every year in April, but growing inflationary pressures ~people are motivated to deliver the best possible custormer service.
led the Board to conc¢lude that the 2023 increase should |

be brought forward by six months to Cctober 2022. The Our Colleagues - The Board appreciates that noﬂ.oﬁ._z_:@ challenges are affecting all our team members and made

Board will cantinue to monitor pay rates to ensure that the n_mm_m_oz to pull forward projected 70p NMW increases to October. é:mj the Government decided that the April

they are adequate to sUpport our people. ;2023 increase would mn.Em_i he oN.P the Board agreed to increase to this level from Decernber 2022 to help our team
- members navigate their own cost increases.

Ten Entertainment Group ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022 9
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SECTION 172 CORTU

Strategic priorities: 1 A first-class customer experience, 2 Digitally enabled, 3 In ~igh-guality centres, 4 With increasi~g UK caverage.

STRATEGIC REPORT

GOVERNANCE

FINANCIALS

The below sets out who we consider to be our key stakeholders, what their interests are, some key engagement areas in 2022, and examples of how
our mﬁmrmro_amﬂm jﬁmﬁmmﬁm _l_cm:nm ﬁrm way we ao _ucm_zmmm

Our investors are the shareholders whe
have invested their czpital into a business
that delivers consistent returns through
a proven strategy for growth.

<<I< S\m mzm>mm

We meet Enc_mq:\ sﬁj currant mja
prospective shareholders to assist them

n understand ng the business so they can
make informed decisiong, and so that we
can uncerstard what they expect from us.

IOE e<m mzm>mm

We communizate with our mjmﬂmjoama by:

Annual General Meeting

Investor roadshows for results
announcements

Hybrid of face-to-face and virtual
Majority of investors prefer video calls
Full content of uncates on website
Committee Chairs for spec

32%

OF THz SHEARE REGISTER MET WITH
MANAGEMENT DURING 2022

Link to strategy:
2,3, 4

Great custamer experignces start with great :

Our employees are the dedicated
people wha create the fun, entertaining
environments, 6 ensure our customers
have a great time and that our business
thrives,

Customers are at the heart of what we do.
We offer social entertainment for a wide
range of ages and groups looking for a

variety of entertainment activities at great ;

value for money in a safe envirenment.

Our strategic partners help us provide the
latest in bowling and gaming technelogy,
as well as developing our food and drink
offering. We work closely with our
partners to keep our entertainment
experience fresh and relevant.

The wider community and environment
are impacted by the business decisions we
take and we work to integrate into the
communities in which we operate.

employees. We engage regularly with our
*eam, to understand their opinions and to
train and cevelop their skills. We aim to
provide a consistent and open culture
across the Group, to attract and retain great
talent, alicning these with the purpose,
values and strateqgy set by the Board.

We listen to our customers’ feedback so we
can continually improve their experiences in
our centres, We are continually developing
our products, to remain relevant and to
appeal to more customers.

We engaged with our mav_o<mmm through:

" Yapster our mobile messaging app

7 Access to discounts through Tenoin Treats :
- 'Talent Talk' appraisals ‘
.~ Succession and development planning

_+  Epic Ideas prograrnme to improve service

Cenfidential tools to escalate concerns

< Workfcrce engagement at Board level

Qmmﬁ ﬂms.ma and incentive ?omﬂBBm

3%

OF MANAGEMENT ARE FEMALE

- Link to st-ategy:

1,2,3

We con %Qma with our customers ﬁjﬁocm:

Social madia with >220k followers
Targeted emails to highlight discounts

*» Competitions and prizes

Bespoke loyalty and rewards app

=M

| CONTACTABLE CUSTOMERS IN DATABASE

“Link to strategy:
"2,3

* Regular feedback to assure high standards i
(7> Meet and greet at the entrance
* 2 Smooth integrated booking process

We have strong relationships with cur
suppliers to ensure that our objectives are
aligned in delivering a great service to our
customers at great value for money. We
work with suppliers to develop innovations
in gaming and customer experience.

We Eo% with our partners g

Creating long-term partnersiips

> Making timely payments and acting fairly

> Meeting regularly to align expectations

Acting in partnership to resolve problems
Working together to drive innovation

>4

" SUPPLIERS PAID INFY22

._Nwh

Sharing plans to provide security of supply
<& Setting clear ethical trading stance

Our UCmSmmm can jm<m awider _EUmQ
beyond our direct stakeholders, and we
want to ensure that we are having a positive
impact on lecal communities and
minirising any envirenmental impacts,

We m:ﬁuo; our community by:

<> Engagement with local interest groups
-2 100% of purchased energy is renewable
2 Investment in energy-saving technologies
2 Charitable partnerships

= Custermer waste recycling engagement

< Local pricing approach

<> Formation of an ESG Committee

- PLAN TO DELIVER NET ZERO FOR SCOPE 1
AND 2 EMISSIONS

Link to strategy:
1,3, 4

Ten Entertainment Group ple Annual Report and Aczourts 2022
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STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNANCE FINANCIALS

“STRONG CUSTOMER
DEMAND FOR OUR
VALUE-FOR-MONEY
DFFER HAS DRIVEN
SALES AND PROFIT
GROWTH.

ANTONY SMITH
CHISF FINANCIAL OFFICER

ALES GROWTH DELIVERING
ECORD LEVELS DF PROFITABILITY
ND CASHFLOW

Following the Group's return to profitability
after the pandemic, TEG has delivered its best
ever financial year with record-breaking sales,
profit and cash and an adjusted earnincs per
share of 29.3p which is 52.0% higher than in
FY19. The Group is in rude financial health

and is well placed to continue to invest

to deliver profitable sales growth.

9
R
A

£26.1M 23.3F £272M

GROUP ADJUSTED ADJUSTED EARNINGS OF FREE
PROFIT BEFORE TAX PER SHARE CASH FLOW

Ten Entertainment Group ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022



FINANCIAL REVIEW CORTINULD

Since reopening in May 2021, we have consistently
delivered sales and profit growth ahead of expectations
and hava built on trese foundations to drive sales
growth throughout FY22. Our focus on value for money
for custorners and making operating efficiencies as we
increase our footfal has ensured that this sales growth
has been profitable Despite inflationary pressures,
sales growth of 50.6% compared © FY17 has delivered
growth in Group adjusted PBT of 84.1%.

Th s profit performance has meant that the Group

has been highly cash generative in the year. We have

a clear capital allocation strategy that pricritises
financial security; investment in growth; and generating
shareholder returns. A3 a result, for the first time in the
Group's history we have ended the financial year with

a net cash position with no drawings on our banking
facility. This has been delivered while still investing
over £20m in our strategic growth programme and
reinstating dividend payments to our shareholders.

Finding the right comparative for the Group's
performance is challenging because of the disruption
in FY20 and FY21 as a result of the Cowvid-19 closures.
Cur last full and uninterrupted financial year was FY19,
Therefore, we will continue to use FY19 as a
comparative for our FY22 results in this review.
However, there have been significant changes to our
business, our market and the econormic landscape
since FY19 and as such we will also use FY21
corpatatives to help the reader understand our
finzncial performance as fully as possible. Throughout
thie Financial Review we will indicate which comparison
we are using, and will include FY22, FY21 and FY19in
our data tables.

STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNANCE HINANCIALS
FY22 FY21 Y19
53 weeks to 52 weeks tc 52 weeks ta

1 January 26 Decernber 2% December Movermnent vs
£0949 2022 2021 2019 FY19
Revenue 126,673 47,521 84,122 42,557
Cost of goeds sald' (18,145} (%, 446) (10,387) (7.758)
Gross Margin' 108,528 58,075 73,735 34,793
GP% 85.7% 86.0% 872.7% (2.0%pts)
Total operating costs (41,207) [22.1471) 128,923} [12,284)
Centrally allocated overheads {6,109) (2,214} (3155} {2.954)
Support office (8,477) (6,661 {6,157} {2.320
Group adjusted EBITDA 52,735 27,059 35,500 17,235
Less property rent costs (13,105) (12,436) 11,.932) (1173)
Group adjusted EBITDA after rental costs? 39,630 14623 23,568 16,062
Add back property rental costs 13,105 12,436 n/a n/a
Depreciation and interest on Right of Use
Property Assets {16,468) (14.,495) n/a n/a
Depreciation and amortisation (8,941} (8,413) 17,37%) (71,562)
Net interest (524} (504) {788) 264
Loss on disposal of assets (271} [442) 932) 661
Loss on joint venture {310} — - 1310}
Amortisation of acquisition intangibles (120} (130 {293) 173
Group adjusted profit before tax? 26,101 3,075 1476 11,925
Imparment reversal 631 1124 — 631
Exceptional items 7,263 238 2,381} 3644
Profit before tax 33,995 4,437 1,795 22,200
Taxation (7.399) {432) 2,758) (d,641)
Of which: taxation attributable to Group
adjusted profit {6,019) {387) i2,836) {3.183)
Profit after tax 26,596 4,005 {2,037 17,559
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share 38.9p 5% 139p 25.0p
Adjusted basic earnings per share? 29.3p 59p 19.3p 10.0p
Full-year dividend 10.0p — 3.7p 5.3p

1

Cost of goods sold and gross margin are presented on the basis as analysed by management. The cost of sales as reflected in
the statement of comprehensive income cansists of direct bar, food, vending, amusements, gaming machine related costs,
PDQ machine costs and staff costs, Cost of goods sold excludes staff costs but security and machine licence costs incurred

by the centres are inciuded. Deducting cost of goods soid from revenue gives gross margin which varies 1o the gross profit

as reported in vne Consolidated Sratement ot income. This s how cost ot goods so1d and gross margin are reported by the
business manthly and at centre level as labour costs are judged as material and thus reported separately within operating costs.

Please see Nate 2, Alternative Performance Measures which reconciles these two measures.

These are ron-IFRS measures used by the Group in understanding its underlying earnings. Group adjusted EBITDA after rental

costs consists of earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation, amaortisation costs, rental costs, exceptional items, impairment
reversal, loss on Joint venture and profit or loss on disposal of assets. Group adjusted profit before tax is defined as profit

before exceptional items, impairment reversal and tax. Adjusted basic earnings per share represent earnings per share based

on adjusted profit after tax Like-for-like sales are a measure of growth of sales adjusted for new or divested sites and adjusting
for a comparable time periad particularly in refation to whether a centre was forced to close due to Covid-19 regulations.

@
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H1 H2 FY

| ike-for-like cales s {6 weeks) FY

460% 34.2% 39.8%

Compared i ey Sales growth bas been the n;:n;uw, driver of profit growth i B 22, e were very pleased 10
deliver continued sAles U.xo,mwmmm,_o: nEr22 ramoared 2 our wunmmﬁ._ozw; E¥21.We ardad the yer with 1onal sales
growth of +87.6%, DUt overa 53-week period rather “han the 32 rraded In Fr2t. Like-for-ike sales growth was +5.5%
refecling continue? progression e @ very strorg FYZL Thee wasa modest Sowdonn in growtr over the third
cuarter of 2022 wh chwas 2 cormbination of the extreime heatwave during 3027 and the unique circumsrances of
the Uoﬂhoc_un G pouToE Gurng the surnnet of 2021n ne cormparaive.

Compared 12 Fy1g Totalsales o €126 Imwere +50.6% nigher thanin TY1Y the last full year of comparatie
srading. O @ we-for-Tke bagis sales were 3¢.8% ahead of EY19, 5irce F19 the Grau? has adced three new centres
o the estat® i~ Mar crestet printworks, Harlow and Waleal and these are al trading well.

e aturibute OU0 mmc“oq._ﬁmm_j@ mﬂoi% yrand o three ogja,__um.. Lactors:

. W have 5eed a ﬁr_:awﬁmawﬂ consumer Shilt in favour of social antertainment and leisure.

7. Wehave ‘nvested m.@s_rnwsif in providing & mmmﬁolmmg:@ rustomear experience.

3. We have made 8 significart shiftin our value-for-money propesitien:

Ag an examDie ol our excellent value-for-MeneY propositen the average cealised pree of a game ot nowling I 2022
was £5.13 imluding VAT which is 1.5% lower than D 2019 despitz the compound rate of inflaticn being in excess of
20% ovel This tirne. MNhile Tary (et ters and BiEuE oparalors e baen passing an inflafion, we have een making

aur husiness madel mare pficiant o kean ur prices low. The cegltis that AT ~elatve value positicn i the sectel
has stgn canthy senproved.

FRIGS MARGH

rampared 16 Y2y 5088 M argic. which is toral sales less Cost of Goods Sold but axchuding aDoW cOBiS, Was
85 7% compared 1o 86.0% in pvat, This modest dechine of {0.3%0S) reflects infaronary pressures i Tood and
drirk that we pave Chosen e ot fully pass on o Gur customears & oriderto raarntan aur <w_,cm._m9v:,ozm<
uﬂnuom:.‘oz

ompared 10 [ATR LR E R Margin s ﬁ.ou\%@ lower than in P15, We have anﬁ:cma 1o acd 10 the customer
exporience during FY2L Activities suchas Karaoke ang laser 123 pave roie 1har doubled ir siz8 ognee S, albeit
from a ernall base, AT C e @5%.%_ i pur rraching income nas heen STONGET man the urdeslying nawling growth.
Ve have also ppean hizhiy successhlat increasing the owﬂ._n,,w.wdo: in food and ¢rmk while CUSTOMErs phay. The
ceault s that Boahing NOW represents A4t of sales cormpared to 17% of sales i Y19 The Gb@cvﬁﬂ margin
eduction 1% 2 funciion of tha ohify ' sales i, where @.9.&7 i “ood and drink and oiher armusermnents® ras
o.tpaced growih i owling. \We are M2pRY Wit this frend hecalse wypically the growi? in these areas e a function
of customers Dm%n_gw:nm in zad tional activities anc 1s ‘ncramental and cash positive ever though 1T1S shghtly
arg 0 GTE:

g will continue o develop 7€ success of ouT nonpowhng srod et ofiering and are configent that the
underlying pusNEss growih il ensure that gross profitir Jhsohute terrs waill rernain healthy as the Group
corrnues o expand.

v Group PIC Anndal Report ard Accounts 2072

e ——

GUVERNANCE

e

GTRATEGIC REPORT FNANCIAL

[PERATING COST

gompared 1@ py23: Tatal operating costs N FY 22 were ¢41.2m. Thisis £1%.1m moTe whan in FY21 put much of that
15 a function of the Group neing closed for the first 20 weeks o 2071 untt r.d May.

Compared 10 FY19: AMore appropnate cornparisan s the operating rosts in FY19 which were ¢ 9m. Ths means
that FY22 5aw 2 g7, 3m increase in costs, @ growh ot 472.5%. This leve! of growtn is sigrificant but must 08
consideredin the context of t~ree years inflagionany pressures. thrae nevs CeRiies open and “outfsl growth of 41.7%.

At aconstant ratio assuMing & [inear relationsiio: e footial growtn of &1 7% applied W3 £Y19 operating costs
waould be gxpectet 10 grow from rrpgmioa (heoratical ca1 0m. Gver the same perod, & underlying raté of
inflarion has been around 20%. applying that inhation rate 1o the volume w&cmnma theoretical oot of £41.0m
takes the mxnmo”mm operatng costs to £49.2m. Actual pperating costs for Ey22 were g41.2m representing

an EB O efficiency saving against the theoretival mémgma operating cost:

Eficiency gav s Nave peen aehigved with @ lear focus 00 three male e

1. Volume afficiencies prgan that not all costs are vanable with volumre andG 5o NCreases can be amtained ata
Lawer rate than footfal grawth.

2. gupplier relationships mean that we can work in Uw:gmqm.j.(v o reduce +ha level of inflation in oYt cost base as
cur suppliers also take the penefit of our growth and sUcCess.

3. Ovoqwn.,.u:wp etfactiveness mears hat we are consistenthy irnproving ot operating vSnmaEmw o redute wasie
and help serve our customers more efficiently-

The combmat:on of these factat™ g Kapt OUT COSTS under control and allowed the sales growth 1o be tranglated
into even stronger growth in prefit.

CEWTRALERGTS

rompared Y2 Ceantral coSTS N EN 72 weere 4.6 cormnpiang the PLC o5t suppoTt office and centralty
atlocated functions providirg esgential services 10 the business such as rrarketing. (T, propety managerent anid

regional cupport 1earms. Due o the closures it £y, st yaar's o5t was ERIT Hawevel, 7€ Covld-19 closures
and @ocm%%mz.. support Measures rnakes w,\mwnoaémﬁ corrpar sen aifficult

Compured to gy1g: This's e last full year of traging and is amoTe amv‘mmm%wucm cammparalive of Central COSTS:
Cantral COSTE i PG were £g 3m. TNE \norease over three years1s ¢6.3rm and g2 ke Srributed 1o thyrpe years warth
o inflationary ProssUres apross wages, senvices and rnatesials, eapmated 10 ge £ Fm based on wo?oﬁ%mﬁmz 0%
\nflation over e period, 3% well as an increased jewel of srrategic imvastment and Group m@&%.

Puring FYZ2 <he Group has qmnomj.,mma colleagues across the GrouR wiitn signiticant succEsSs DONUSES sotaling OvET
¢20m. 0 addition. he Expruiive tearm have memqmu results far in EACESS of thedr Fraxi T targets and the
Rerruneralion Corrrmties has allocared ponus provision accordingty

Tha Grogp has increasec s ackiviny 0 rnarkeling, {T, property oneratons ard E5G. Dusng FY22 the Group has
developad ehe worlds first beapoke [oyalty PP has fully rolled put the latest bowling Scoring cecrnoiogy and has
continues te gre ire ustemmer database and reach ob soral media. We have detvered 1 ¢at raishments,
developed tiee new howWEng centras and m,_m:%ﬁw:,.._;‘ increased aur cugtamer mxvm:mzmm./am invested 0
developing oul sustainability srratedy and continde o work 10 Lot ouf carbon footprint. These development®
ave all been made possible thanks to 1argef and more mvmn,m;mma {eams

Finalby, the signi¥eant inflationary pressures are um&ncfm..z prevalentn e fabour and seTVICES {hat comprse “he
central Losts Fo.mmmmﬁsmg fees are MsiNg gt afoster @e 1nan the base jevet of flagon n mMATY areas, and the ability
1o atiract and retal” ~glentis crucigttoa t ving busingss.

Cespite these pressures we have worked hard @ ensure these central costs nave dehvered value for MONEY: ard
tiig cost base 2% aratio 1o sales remains at just above 11%, a5 1L wWas ™ Y19
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FINANCIAL REVIEW EZHTIHUED

GROUF ADJUGTED EBITOA AFTER RENTAL COSTS

Grouz adjusted EBITDA afzer rental costs is a meascre used internally as 1t considers the cash imoact of the rent
paid ‘o landlords to ¢nsura that centres are procucing the approprate cash flow to make an adequate level of
return. This measure is broadly equivalent to the cid IAS 17 basis of recording rental costs.

Compared 1o FY2T: The Group was conly open for 32 of the 52 weeks of t-ading in F¥21 and therefore the £14.6m
of EBITDA celivered is not fully "epresentative of a full year's trading pe-iod. Because of the costs experienced
during the closure veriod it 1s not possible wo produce an accurate reflection of like-for-like EBITDA and therefore
the Group censicers FY79 to be the most appropriate comparative,

Compared to FY19: 7Y 22 saw record levels of Group Acjusted EBITDA delivered at £3%2.6m. This is 68.2% higher
than 'n F¥19. The growth n Group Adjusted ERITDA 1s a function of the operational geaning generated from the
Imcreased sales volume. As described above, costs are growing, but not as fast as sales due to the sfficiencies of
scale mere than offsatting the Inflationary pressures. Preperty rent for example was £11.9m 'n FY19 and has grown
to E13.7m in FY22, an i~crease of only 10%. This is desplte an increase of three additional bowling centres and the
irrpact of inf ation.

DEFRECIATION, AMORTISATION AND CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Compared te FY19: There is no suitable comparative for depreciation and amort'sation .0 FY19 due to the FY20
adeption of IFRS 16.

Compared to FY27: This section will focus on FY27 as the comparative measure. Because Covid-1? closures had no
impact on depreciatior policy, the comparative wll remain a heloful one. Total deprecation on Right of Use ('ROU’)
increased to £16.5m compared to £14.5m in FY21. This increase reflects the acdition of Harlow and Walsall as full
trading centrzs but a so the addition of Crewe in the final quarter of the year as the centre was under corstruction
thereby attracti~g cepreciat'on and lease costs under IFRS 16 even though the centre didn't open until February 2023.

As we have described in previous years, the relatively early tenure of the average weighted lease expiry means that
IFRS 16 creates a prefit compression because the leases are less than halfway through. As aresult, the total cost of
depreciat'on and interest o~ cur ROU assets 's £3.4m higher than the cash rental costs incurred.

Cther depreciation in the year was £8.9m, a 6.3% increase on Y27 as the Groun continues w nvest in its high
returning strategic programme.

Maintenance capital spend ir FY22 increased significantly to £4.9m from £0.9m in FY21. Strong cash flow has
provided the headroom to recernmence investrment in the estate. A further £8.5m was spent in FY22 on the
existing estaze on strategc refurbishments, taking the tctal ex'sting estate investment to £13.4m. In the medium
term we expact to spend the an-ual depreciation charge (FY22: £8.9m) on existing estate investrments in the form
of maintera~ce and refurbishments. In =Y22 ex'sting estate investment was £13.4m. During FY22 we invested an
additional £4.5m in the estate as catch-up spend from the Covid-" % peried where we were focused on cash
conservatio~. Over the past three firancial years, FY20 - FY22 the total existing estate investment has been £3,9m,
£77m and £ 3.4m respectively. This total investment of £24.4m over that pericd is consistent with £25.3m
depreciation charge cver the sarre period.

£6.9m was investec in new centres in FY22 with t~e acquisition and refurbishment of Harlow, the bu'ld anc opening
of Walsall and a sign ‘icant amount of tre investment in Crewe which opened in February 2023. In addition, the
Group invested £5.0 in the purchase of the freehold of a property where an exist'ng leased centre which was very
profitable wes vulne able to redevelopment at the expiry of the lease. While the Group's strategy principally remains
to take long easeho ds, we will co~tinue to view freehold opportunities as they arise and assess them on ar
aopropriate returns basis.

STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNAKCE TINANCIALS
INANCE COSTS AND BANKING ARRANGEMENTS
53 weeks to 57 weers to
1 January 26 Decermnber
AR 2023 2021
Interest on bank debs: (334) (327
Amortisation of bank financing costs (168) (*24)
Lease interest charges (6,682) (5,487
Other finance incorme/{costs) (22) 10
Net interest (7,206} (5,936}

Net interest increased to £7.2m in the year, with the cost of the bank financing remaining flat but with an increase in
the lease interest charges from the three add'tional property leases.

The Group has a £25m RCF in place with its long-term banxing partner RBS. This facifity expires in Aorl 2024 and is
currently undrawn, The Group will be considering its financing needs in due course when the facility comes up for
renewal but given that the Group isin a net cash position, an early renewal is not a business priosity.

In 2022 the Group repaid ts £14m CLBILS term loan facility as it was ne lenger considered necessary for the Grous's
needs. Other than an acceleration of financing cost amo-t'sation, there was no early repayment penalty ‘or deing so.

GROUP ADJUSTED PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Compared to FYZT: Group adjusted PBT was £26.1m for FY22, a £23.0m increase from FY2°. However, In FY21 we
were only open for 62% of the year and were very pleasec o have still exited the yea- with a profit, Gven thar F~22
was open for 100% of the year, we consider FY19 to be a better comparative.

Compared to FY19: Group acjusted PBT was 84,1% higher than in FY19. P3T as a % of sales is 20.6% a~d the
additional sales of £42.6m compared to FY19 have translated to an additional PBT o £11.9m. This drop througn
rate of sales to profit of 28.0% is testament to the tight cost control and relentless focus on profitable sales growth
that has cha-acterised FY22.

IMPAIRMENT AND EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

Aralysis of the Group's assets. including the Right of Use Property Assets, resulted in a recognition of a net reve-sal
ot £0.6min FY22. This has orincipally arisen as a result of reassessing the mdividual site cashflows now that the
pandemic has passed.

More significantly, the Group has recognised exceptional pro®it of £7.3m. This relates to recoveries of manies from
HMRC in respect of VAT, The majority of this was in relation to the recognition by HMRC that bawling was subject
to the reduced rate of VAT introduced by the TreasLry to support the hospital'ty and leisure sectar. The balance
of VAT recoveries related to a~ historic claim.

These elements have been removed from the Group acjusted PBT to show a true- representation of the in-year
profit generated from trading in the current year.

PROFT AFTER TAX

The Group generated a profit after tax of £26.6m. Basic earnings per share were 38.9p and adjustec carnings per
share were 29.3p which is 52.0% higher than in FY15.

Ten Entertainment Group ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022



L4

FINANCIAL REVIW CaNTteg

HIVIDENDS

The Board recormmenced the dividend in FY22 having fully d'scharged its obligations under the CLBILS facility which
was fully repaid in July. An ‘ntenm dividerd o 3p per share ‘was paid in Qctober 2022 following the announcement

of the half year resul’s.

The Group 1s now recorrmending a finai dividend in respect of FY22 of a further 7p per share tak'ng the total

dividend to " Op per share. S~ould this be approved by shareholde-s at the AGM it 15 expectea to be paid n
June 2023.

The Croup is confident of 'ts financial security. We ended FY22 with net cash of £10.1m and no drawings on the
availlable £25m RCF fac’ 1y, We have delivered this restored “inancial stability while cartinuing to invest in

STRATEGIC REPDRT

TRADING CASH FLOW

GOVERNANCE

53 weeks to

FINANEIALS

52 weeks to

expanding and develoning our busiress with over £20m of strategic capital deployed 'n the year.

BALANEE SHEET

1January 16 December
€300 2023 2021 Movement
Assets
Goodwill and other intangible assets 29,875 29939 164)
Property, plant and equ prrent 57,198 39,530 17,668
Deferred tax aszet - 4,374 (4,374)
Right-of-use assets 171,651 167,324 4,327
Inventories 1,493 1,226 267
Trade and cther receivables 4,667 5426 (759
Cash and cash equivalents 10,086 1,51 (1,425)

274,970 259,330 15,640
Liabilities
Lease liabilities (200,402) (195 662) {4,740
Bank bo-rowi~ge - 113,832) 33,832
Trace and other sayables and orovisions (14,142) 13,503 (639
Other liabilities (1,282) 12.270) 488

(215,826) (225,267} 9,441
Net assets 59,144 34,063 25,081

- -

HET DEBT ANALYSIG

1 January 26 December
050 1023 2021 Movement
Closing cash and cash equivalents 10,086 1,51 (7.425)
Bank loans — {14,000) 14,000
Bank net cash/{debt) 10,086 {2,489) 12,575
Leases - machines and other (4,291) (5,613} 1,322
Leases - property (196,111} {190,049) 16,062}
Total net debt {1%0,316) 198,151 7,835

1January 26 Decembeor
£000 2023 2027 Movement
Cash flows from operating activities
Group adjusted EBITDA 52,735 27,059 25,676
Maintenance capital® (4,943) {210} 14,033)
Maverrent in working capital’ 1,688 718 970
Lease and taxation payments? {22,305) (13,579} B.726)
Free cash flow? 27,175 13,288 13,887
Dividends paid (2,055) - {2,055}
Cash flow available for investment and financing activities 25,120 13,288 11,832
Strategic investrents®:
fxisting estate (8,465) {3,363) (5,102)
Estate expansion {6,882} 156) 6,826)
Freehold purchase {5,000) — (5.000)
Exceptionals and share-based payments 7,802 248 7,554
Repayment of debt (14,000} (6,000) 18,000}
Cash {outflow)/inflow after investment and financing activities {1,425} 4117 (5,542}
Opening cash and cash equivalents 11,511 7,394 4117
Cash and cash equivalents - end of period 10,086 n.sr (1,425)

)

Tre movement in wo-king cagital is the balance from the “Changes in werking capital” section of Note *9 in the notes to the
fnancia’ statempnts,

This is calculated from the statement of cash flows being the corporation tax paid, finance costs paid and finance lease
pencipal payments

Free case flow - This's cash generated from operations less measures judged as mairtenance cap tal, finance ‘ease and fina-ce
costs payments, taxation saymenis or “eceipts, advance payments to casital suppliers, ‘oans to loint vertures and non-casn
share-based payrrents. P.gase see Note 2, Alternative Perforrmance Yeas.res wnich reconciies these two measures.

These twe lines relate te the spend on capitai projects and are reconciled to cast outflows frarm investing act vit.es in Note 2,
Alternat ve Performance Measures,

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND USE DF NON-GAAP MEASURES

The Group has prepared its consolidated financial statements based en UK-adented International Accounting
Standards with the requiremerts of the Cornnanies Act 2006, for the 53 weeks ended 3 January 2023 (Fv22).
The basis for preparation is outhined in the accounting policies to the financial statements on page BS.

The Group uses certain measures that it believes provige additional useful information on its underlying
performance. "hese measures are applied consistently. but as they a-e not dened undar GAAP they may not

be directly comnparable with other companies’ adiusted measures. The nan-GAAP measures are outlined in Note 2
to the financial statements on page 93.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

NUTE GH ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES

The Group uses a number of alternative profit measures [APM's) in the disclosure of its results, It should be noted
that due to the disrupted nature of 2020 and 2021, the Group has used 2019 as a baseline comparator for some
performance maasures in order to be able to compare the business against a pre-Covid-19 trading period.

Adjusted Gross Margin

This measurement Is the total sales less directly attributable costs of sales such
as cost of goods sold, transaction costs and licence costs for leased
amusement machines, Yanagement do not consider it helpful to include
labour costs in the gross margin because although these costs do vary to some
extent with volume, the relationship is not linear and as such, any swings in
valume are likely to creaze artificial fluctuations in the margin rate. Site labour
costs are therefore included in operating expenses. The reconaliation to gross
margin is inciuded in Note 2 to the financial statements.

Group adjusted EBITDA

This measurement is earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation,
amortisation, exceptionzl iterns, loss on Joint venture, impairment and profit
or toss on disposal of assets, This has been done to show the underlying
trading performance of the Group which these other costs or income can
distort. The reconciliation to operating profit is included in Note 2 to the
financial statements.

Group adjusted EBITDA
after rental coste

is earnings before interest, taxation. depreciation, amortisation, exceptional
items, loss on Joint venture, impairment and profit or loss on disposal of
assets, less a deduction for the cash cost of rent. This measure is to reflect the
underlying earnings after ~he transition to IFRS 16 Leases. The reconcil
operating profit is included in Note 2.

iation to

EBITDA operating margin

This is the Group adiusted EBITDA after rental costs divided by sales,
expressed as a percentage.

Cost of goods sold and gross
margin

The cost of sales as reflected in the statement of comprehensive income
consists of direct bar, food, vending, amusements, gaming machine related
costs, PDQ machine costs and staff costs. Cost of goods sold excludes staff
costs but security and machune licence costs incurred by the centres are included.
Deducting cost of goods sold from revenue gives the gross margin, This is how
cost of goods sold and grose margin are reperted by the business monthly and

at centre level as labour costs are judged as material and thus reported separately
with operating costs. The reconciliation is included in Note 2.

Operating profit/(loss)
before exceptional items

This is operating profit/ (loss) befere exceptional items and impairment
reversal/{charge).

Group adjusted profit/{loss)
before tax

This consists of the profit before tax adjusted for tems judged as exceptional
and relating to impairment raversal/(charge).

Adijusted underlying prafit
after tax and adjustad
earnings per share

e

impairmant reversal/(charger and is used to determine the adjusted earnings
per share. The reconciliation of this number to profit after tax is inciuded under
Note 8 to the financial statements,

This conzists of the profit after tax adyusted for exceptional iteme and

STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNAKLE FINANEIALS

Exceptional items These are those significant cost or income items which managerent judges

to be one-off in nature and are not expected to continue to be incurred as part
of the reqular trading performance of the business. The separate repaorting of
these per Note 5 helps to provide a better indication of underlying performance.

These are a measure of growth of sales adjusted for new or divested sites over
a caomparable trading period.

Like-for-like sales

Bank net debt This is bank borrowings less cash and cash equivalents as per the statement

of finarcial position.

Free cash flow This is cash generated from operations less maintenance capital, advances to

suppliers for capital projects, finance lease payments, taxation payments or
receipts, advance payments to capital suppliers, loans to Joint ventures and
non-cash share-based payments. This is reconciled in Note 2.

These APMs are used as they provide the user with additional information that helos them to interpret the results
using measures that the Board considers relevant and helpful. These measures are additional and are not intended
to replace or detract from the full financial statements included herein.

it should be noted that like-for-like sales refer to sales in centres that were open and trading in both comparative
periods. The measure excludes new centres that were not in place in the prior year, but also excludes periods where
existing centres were in an enforced closure period in the current period due to Covid-19 restrictions.

The Strategic Report was approved by the Board and signed on its bahalf by:

GRAHAMBLACKWELL
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

ANTONY SMITH
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

21 MARCH 20123 21 MARCH 2023

Mebll =
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RISK MANAGEMENT

GTRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNANCE HNANEIALS

The risk appetite of the Group is considered in light of the principal risks
and their impact on the ability of the Group to meet its strategic priorities.

The Board recognises the importance of a strong risk management culture from the top. An agreed risk apoetite
and risk management approach cascades down the Group to the teamns in our centres. This ensures shared
attitudes, values anc standards tnat shape behaviours within our agreed risk frarmework.

All our people and centres are responsible “or the management of risk, with the ultimate accountability residing

wit™ the Board, Our strategic priorities are underpinned by our great team and are self-funded by the cashflows
generated by the business, The Board is committed to managing and mitigating the risks associated with operating
its business and conTnues to incorporate consideration of these irto how the Group manages its relationships with
i's customers, suppl ers, employses and investors.,

The following pri-ciples guide the Groun's overarching appetite for risk and determines how risks are managed:

%> Operating model - The business seeks to generate retumns in line with ar open risk appetite but with strong
risk management capzability to curb any unnecessary risk in pursing the four strategic pricrities.

< Financial returns and position - The Group zims to deliver sustainable earnings while growing the retuns to
shareholcers thrcugh the measured purs.it of its strategiz prietities. The Group has a cautious approach to debt
and uses cash generatad from operating activities to fund its st-ategic investments.

<> Business practice - The Group has zero tolerance for any of its people knowingly engaging it any business,
aciivity or association wrere foreseeable reputational risk or damage has not been considered and/or mitigated.

» Regulaticns - The busiress has no appetite for deliberately or knewingly causing detriment to its stakeholders
or Incurring a breach of the fetter or spirit of the law and regulatory requirements that apply to the business.

o

The Group recognises that the effective management of risk is key in achieving its strategic objectives and has
continued ¢ ‘dentify and assess risks that could impact sustainable growth in the year under review,

The Beard is responsible for the Company's risk management and internal control systems which have been in
place for the year under review and up to the date of approval of the An—ual Report and Financial Staterne-ts.

Curre~t and zmergirg risks are icentified by business area, with each area responsible for managing that risk,
implernenting appropriate controls and mitigating actions in the short tertn and monitoning the longer-term
impacts a~d reportirg on it to the management team and senior Executives Each risk has been rated on a multiplier
basis agsessed by the tikefihcod of occurrence, the potential financial impact and the control envirenment in place
to mitigate the risk. Princinal risks are recorded i~ the Group's risk register and regularly reviewed, evaluated and
resorted on o the Board.

The approacn te understanding the risk exposure of the Group involves reviewing each area of the busiress
annually and using the metrodology to assist in measuring, documenting and monitaring its risks within all areas of
its operations. This approach te risk maragement helps ensure that risk management and mitigation is considerec
at all levels of the business.

ASSEGS RISH
BIMPALT

CREATE
MITIGATIBN
STRATIGY

DENTIFY
RISK

FRAMEWDRA

REGULARLY
RVIWE
EVALUATE

The envirenment in which we ogerate is constantly evolving; ~ew risks arise and the potential likelihood a~d impact

of known risks may change. The risks included in this section reoresent a snapshot of what the Board believes are
the principal risks and not an exhaustive list of all risks the Group faces,

The full annual review process of the effectiveness of the Comparny's risk managemenrt and internal controf systers
captures changes in these risks and also changes in the direction of travel of any given risk. Tre Directors have
carried out a robust assessment of the principal and emerging risks facing the Group, including those that woulc
threaten its business model and future strategy Thus the Board confirms that:

O There is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the principal r'sxs faced by t~e Group.

O There s a process for identifying emerging risks ard considering appropriate mitigating actions.

& Systems were in place for the year 2022 and up to the date of approval of this Report and financial statements
¢ Risks and pracesses and mitigating actions are regularly reviewed by the Board.

< Systerrs accord with guidance to Audit Commitiees issued by the Financial Reporting Councit dated April 207 6.

Ten Entertainment Group ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

INTERNAL CONTREL

The Board is respansible for the Grous's system of internal cortrol and for reviewing its effectivencss
The below summarises the Group's system:

A0ARD

< Collective responsi
O Anprova of key policies and procedares.

> Control framework settirg out responsibilties
< Mon tors performance.

ty for internal control.

GENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM

& Responsible for operating wit=i~ the control framewors,

<& Reviews and monitors comoliance with policies and prececures,
< Recornmerds charges to controls/policies whe-e needed.

~

Moritors performance.

AU COMMITTEL
Oversees affectiveness of internal control process.
Receives reparts from external aucitor,

Approves indepenaant ‘nternal audit programme.
Receives reports generated through the internal audit programme.,

WTERNAL AUDN

< Provides assurance to the Audit Committee through independent reviews of agreed risk areas.

SO0 e 0

Controls and process in preparing the Annual Report and Financial Statements

The Group has establ shed i~ternal control and r'sk ma~agement systems ir relation to the process for preparing
the Group's consclidated financial statenents of which the key features are:

< Management regularly monitors and considers develooments 'n accounting regulations and best oractice in
Francial reporting and, where appropriate, reflects developments in the consolidated financial staterents.
The external auditor also keeps the Audit Committes zppraised of tese developmerts.

< The Audit Committee anc the Board review the draft consolidated firancial statements. The Aucit Committee
receives reports from management and the external auditor on significant judgements, changes in accounting
polices, changes in accounting estimates and other pertinent matters relating to the consolidated finarcial
statemerts, and prov'des rooust and independent chalienge to managerment where aporooriate.

> The full-year financial statements are subject to exterral audit and the half-year financial statements for 2022
were reviewed by the external auditor.

.
&

STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNANCE FNANCEALS

RISK HEAT MAP

A

3

o

ar

a

1 Econom'e climate £k RISK KEY:

2 Operational AL4 Increased risk -

3 Regulatory changes 4 Ne change P
iness i rupt! ¥

4 Business inter :v.ﬁ on { Decraased risk -

5 Major supplier failure L

& Operational -allergens 4%

7 Climate risk -
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

RINCIPAL RISHS

The business faces a number of risks on an ongoing basis. The Board
confirms that it has carried out a robust assessment of the principal
risks facing the Group, including emerging risks, and those that would
threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or liquidity.

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES:

2 Digitally enabled
2 Inhigh-guality centres

4 With increasing UK coverage

ICONGMIE CLIMATE

Link to strategy: 1, 2, 3, 4
Nature of risk

& Crarge in ecanomic conditions,
in particular recession or
nolitical unce-tainty

< increasesin interest rates
and inflaticn

& Significant increases in
Ltility coss

<& Adecrease in consurmicr
disposable income and
corseqguent reduction in
cosurrer spendng

2 Aprolonged period of
uncertainty due —o the war
in Jkrane

= imrpact on sales and apiiity 1o
deliver growth plans thus affecting
all strateqic priont'es, Impacton
the cost base which impacts
profita

t A first-class customer experience

RISK KEY:

Figh * increased risk
Medium 4 No change 4
Low ® Decreasedrisk  w

Likelihood: 4

Strategic context

TEG's Tenpin bowling business is
based exclusively ir the UK ard
50 is exposed to UK cconomic
conditions and censumer
confidence

As a leisure activity, bowling may
be affected by the ganeral level of
consurrer sperding on leisure and
tre potential lorger-term impacte
on the economy of the war

in Ukraine.

Potential impact: 4

Change: 4»

Mitigation

The Beard believes that, as a
relatvely low frequency ard low
cost activity, bowling is well
positioned o withstand an
economic dowrturn

The Group continually revews its
oroduct offer, 'ts value praposition,
and the quality of ts estate to
improve the customer experience.
In particular the Board strives to
keep prices competitive and deliver
value-for-money to Tts customers.

|~fiation has a relatively low imoact
on bowling as the equipment is in
place and therefore the activity has
a low incremental cost of sale.

The business nas a long-term

contract with its electricity prices
sat until October 2024,

STRATEGIC REPORT GOYERNANCE FINANCIALS
mmummb.ﬁ__”_z}_. Likelihood: # Potential impact: 4 Change: 4
Link to strategy: 1, Z, 3
Nature of risk Strategic context Mitigation

© Deterioration of assets
over time

¢ Ageing of the estate
& Loss of key pe-seinel

> [mpact on sales, costs and
customer experence.

REGLELATORY EHANEES

Link to strategy: 1, 2,3, 4

Nature of risk

New, changed or “einterp-eted
laws and regulations adversoly
impact the business.

Failure of the business to obtain or
retain requirec regulatory approvals
or lcences.

> Impact on sales, costs
and reputation.

The Group's centres have high
footfall and high usage, in part'cular
at peak times. Trere s a risk that
without the r'ght level of ongoing
nvestrient the guahty of the
customer experience declines,
impactirg the customar exoerience
ard likelihood of return vi

Likelihood: #

Strategic context

The regulatory environment is
continually evolving. Intreduction
and development of regulations
around GDPR, changes to
sentencing tariffs and calculations
and constant updates tc legisfation
around competition, brbery,
climate and carbson reporting and
sustairability, modern slavery,
money laundering, consumer
protection and taxation.

The Group operates licensed
arerises far the sale of food,
sheoirch and garnimg,

Al these impact our strategic
objectives and could result in brang
and reputational loss, alorg with
litigation, revocation of licences,
inability to acquire sites or build
sites and fines leading to

financial loss.

Potential impact; 4

Tre Group generates cash from
its operating activities and ensures
enougr cash is pricritised for an
ongoing maintenance and
refurbishrment prograrrme.

The Group has an ongoing
investment programme to ensure
that centres are modern, safe and
welcomirg envirenments for cur
customers,

The Group has a management
development programme in place
o provide a pipelice of future
Centre Managers, familiar with

+he Tenpin business model,

Change: 4%

Mitigation

Tre Group has a high level of
tra‘ning and support to ensure “t
TMeets the very highest standards
forlicersed premises.

Healtn & Safety meetings are held
by senior managerment monthly
to understand incidents and to
ensure compliance with or to
update policies.

The digital ecosystermn is constantly
reviewed anc evolved to ensure full
compliance with the GDPR
regulatory environment.

Pclicies and procedures are i~ place
to protect custerner data.

Where required external specialist
acvice is Used to assess, scope anc
plan our responses to changes in
leg'slation ¢r changes and
aevelooments to our business that
are imnacted by the legislative
framework
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES CONTINLER

BUSINESS INTERRUPTION

k to strategy:

Nature of risk

& Ris« of cyber-attack/ter-orism

< Failure or umavailabfity of
operational ardior T
infrastructu-e

< Supply chain nisks for
unavailability of product

> Impact ¢n sales, costs
and reputation

MAJIR SUPPLIER FAILURE

Linic to strategy: 1, 2, 3, 4
Nature of risk

Sudde failure of ey suppler or
significant reduction i1 access
to key products suppled to

the Group.

> |'npact o~ sales, costs and
custorrer experience.

> Increased risk to uti ity suppliers
due to ongoing supply and price
pressures,

Likelihood: &

Strategic context

A major incident could impact the
Group's ability to kzep trading.

Supply chains providing food and
drirk for szle to customers are
egsential to contirue to provide a
good customer exserence.

Bookings are generally placed
online and the dig'tal infrastructure
is essential to providing the
bowling experienca for our
custorers.

Likelihood: #

Strategic context

The Group has a number of key
sunpliers that provide its bowling
ecuipment, gaming machines,
feod and beveragz prodicts and its
electricity and gas.

Sudden failure of -hese suppliers or
limited access to the oroducts they
supply, could impact the Group's
ability to o*fer its zustomers the
level of experienca trey expecs.

Potential impact: 4

Potential impact: #

Change: 4%

Mitigation

Strong Cyber-security systerns are
in placeto ensure that customer
data is protected and systerns can
continue to operate.

Regular I security tests are carried
out to ensure that breacnes are
protected against and business
interruptior insura~ce is in place to
mitigate any financial losses

Sites have the ability to operate on
a standalone basis should the [T
network be comprorused,

Supply chains a-e protected
through stockholaing and Hackup
suppliers in place

Cur calf centre can operate to
replace onine bookings in the even
of a website failure.

Change: 4

Mitigation

Reqgular meetings are held betweer
the Chief Executive Officer and the
Group's key suppliers to discuss
bot~ ooerational 'ssues and future
growth plans. The Group works
with market-leaci~g suppliersin
these fields.

The Group maintains Service _evel
Agreements ('SLAs") with its fooc
and beverage suppliers and, whilst
failure may lead to short-term
disruption, atternative supolers
could be introduced at

short notice.

Long-term contracts are held with
these supoliers to maintain the
best prices possible. This has been
particularly important with the
electricity prices fixed until 2024
at 2021 prices.

OPERATIONAL -
RLLERGENS

Link to strategy: 1, 2. 3, 4
Nature of risk

Incidents related to
allergies to feod products
offered, especially when
there are changes to

the meru.

= Impact an sales, costs
and reputation.

CLIMATE RISK

tink to strategy: 1, 2, 3, 4
Nature of risk

Significant changes to the
climate such as drought,
flood, heatwaves,
oxcessive snow and ice as
well as the introduction of
new climate regulations.

> |mpact on sales, costs
and reputation.
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Likelihood: @ Potential impact: 4 Change: 4¢
Strategic context Mitigation

There have been a number of high-profile
incidents in the leisure industry related to
allergens in food products. The incidents
have arisen due to inadequate awareress,
coramrunication and display of allergen
‘tems included in menus.

The Health & Safety advser
raviews all menus and menu
cnanges for allergen-related
srocucts and wording included
on the menus to reflect these
‘tems before they are released.

Allergen awareness is part o the
training pregrarmme a~d online
allergen lists and information are
provided for public access on ali
centres’ webs'tes,

Likelihood: & Potential impact: 4 Change. &

Strategic context Mitigation

Significant changes to the climate such ag: The business has engaged with
a third-party consultant to assst
wth t1e understanding of the
associated climate risks, its
strategy and objectives and
ensuring compliance with
requlations and disclosure
requirements,

& Long periods of hot, dry weather could
directly lead to reduced footfall at
centres and bigher costs of cooling and
indirectly to food shortages and cost
increases

Floed ng can lead to damage at centres
Long periods of cold weather including
srow and ice could impact access to the
centres as well as the cost of heating

¢

Insurance policies are maintained
to manage the business
interruption risk from flooding

o or access restrictions.
Significant changes to clirrate related

regulations will fead to:
< increased costs of compliance

< potential reputational risk for non-
compliance

< financial cost of fines for non-compliance
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LONG-TERM ¥ ABILITY STATEMENT

TY STATEMENT

As explained on page 10 in the business maodel anc on pages 12 to 14, the strategy revolves around the four key
pllars, being:

irst-class custcmer exparience”

& tdigitally enabled”

< "in high-gquality centres” and
< "with increasing UK coverage”

The successful delivery of these pillars will drive the busiress ‘orward and ensure it is a viable entity. The
develcprrent and review of the strategic plan is thus an ‘mportant process ard a key task of the Board.

The Board mees a~rvally to discuss the strategy of the Group, and this year met in June to discuss and agree the
plan for the naxt three years. The strateay day ircluded:

<» aninvesto-and competitor landscape overview from tae ‘oirt brokers, Liberur~ LLP;
areview of the expansion of the key pillars into four crizical areas and the actions for growtr in each of the pillars:

<
& an overview of the strategy and expansion plans by Heudini's;
<@

apresentacion, by an exte-nal consultant, of the Group’s customer data and how marketing intelligence can
fecus this; and

& areview of the three-year financials driver, by the planned developments and growth opportunities discussed 1n
the above,

After the approval of the Strategic Plan, this then formed the base for the cetailed review of FY23 ard the
development >° the FY23 budget that was approved by th2 Board in November,

GOING CONCERN

In assessing the goirg concern position of the Group and Company for the Annual Report and the financial
statements forthe year enoed 1 January 2023, the Group has considered a base case scenario and a severe but
plausible dewrside scenario. In modelling these scenaros. the Group has considered its liquidity, cash balances,
refnancing position, business activities and its principal risks.

BASE CASE

The Groun's benk finar cing *acility expires in April 2024 and the intention is to renew this in 2023, As the renewal
has not happened at the timte of the signing of th's A~nLal Report, the performance beyond the current expiry date
in 2024 has been reflectec in the base case. The Group is cash positive, the RCF remains undrawn througbout the
period wit~ all covenarts be'ng passed.

The base case zansists of the Group's FY23 pudget plus the 2024 forecast from its Strategic Plan, This case was
prepared with the following key assumptions reflected:

< Like-f
< Labour nflation and the 'nereases from the Nat'onal Living Wage are included

<@ sales growth versus FY22

£ Caostin"zt'onis reflected in the operating and administrative costs

7» Site acquisitons anc new builds are reflected in the trade and in the cas~{.ows

< Increased levels of capital spend are reflected in the cashflows to maintain and refurbish the sites
4 The Growp pays cut a fnal and interim dividend

STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNANEE FINANCIALS

BOWNSIDE CASE

The downside case takes the base case and fiexes the assumptions for severe but plausible impacts. These are
summarised as follows:

< 2023 revenues are reduced by 10% on a like-for-like basis against FY22, 2024 revenwes are reduced by a further
0% against the 2023 downsice. Returs from refurbishments in 2023 and 2024 and returns “rom one new site
‘n 2024, are removed.

& Allvarable and fixed costs from the base case are increased by a further inflationary 10% across the board.

$ Mitigation on variable costs as cost of sales, labour and operating costs are inc
by the Group.

uded as thase can be controlled

The scenar’o ~efiects the payment of a final and interim dividend Sut this has been ecuced versus the base case as
these are at Group discretion, The investment in new centres remains with the removal of just one in 2024, The
refurbishment programme spend is also halted in 2023 and 2024, Investments in new centres and refurb'shmerts
are under the Group's control and could be used for further mitigating action if needed. All the mitigating actions
taken allow the Group to remain cash positive and the RCF undrawn, throughout the period. The Group remairs
profitable anc all covenants are passed with significant headroom.

Taking the above and the principal risks faced by the Group into consideration, the Diractors are satisfied that the
Group ras adequate resources to contnue in oeration for the foreseeable future, a perod of at least 12 months
from the date of this report. Accordingly, the Group continues to adopt the going concern basis Ir preparing these
Financial Statements,
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LING-TERM vty STATEMENT W1 MUED

VIRBILITY 5T RTEMENT

I accordanc with the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code, the Directors Nave assessed the prospects of the
Group Qver a three-yeal period 10 31 Derembel 2025, The Dirgctors peliave tis penad 1@ e appropriate hecause:

5 the GrouE's strategic plan ning anCOMpasses £his vmaoa“
2 senior management a8 E.i::maﬂmu via its share performance scheme over +pis period; and

& rypically & reasonable ﬂmq.aa aver which the impact of key risks €30 e agsessed for a business of thia size i
the leisure sactor

I rnaking this wiahilty ataternent, the Directors have cavizwed the ctrenath and resilience of the Group andd have
mvmn&np:_\ ocqw&mﬂma,.

& The Grouc's current tinancial periormante from 5ales 9 it and cost management 1o its How frrough 1o Group

mnm_cﬂma orofit befare 8% Group Adjusted EBITDA, casht Hloww, liguidity pank net cash/idebt] and covenant results.

2 The avatabinty of 15 curent banking facilities and the - gwenants in place.

~ The business mocel, in particuiar the strategy rowards expansion.

s A robust assessment of the impact fikelihood and management of U:jn,_vmy sk facing the Group, including
ronsiderat of of those isks that could threaten its business mode!, futur® om;oinm:nﬁ solventy liquidity ©f
ousmainabil ty- The assesement of viahility has mﬂmnan% nc:m&mag risks that could threaten the Group's
day-to-day aperatians and inpnger e exigtence.

The assESSMETT considerad o risks could Sffectine busiaess NOwW and how they M3 devetop with the financial
analysis and forecasts chowing tinancial pasition: ﬂmzoﬂawzam_ cagh flow and covenant requirements: aver the next
three-year pariod

Ty GROVF'S BASE LASE

The base A58 rrodel eflects d robust consideration of the 9.506%_ risks and unceriainties that could jmpact the
future perform ance of e Group and ihe achievernent of 15 strateygic objectives, 29 Aiscussed on pages &1-47 of
this prnaal Renart. Tre hase Case iability acanand rakes int@ accaunt all of the ﬂ:mn,ﬂw, nisks and uncartainties
faming the Gro 4P across the rhree-year periad i order to 235898 the Groups ability 10 withstand muliiple chalenges.

The base Case forecast S1aTte with the Fy23and py24 penod vt is the 5ame as that built for the going concerm
analysis 8 described on page A3, The process anderiaken considers e Group's adjusted ERITDA, capital spend,
cash flows liuidicy, bank coverants and other k&Y fnancisl metrics pver the ?o,_mmwma period. The forecast expands
from FY 24 IntC FY25, with the follawing aesumptions:

~ paid-range singte-dight ke-for-ike saies growih, phus @Ré? for the acquisition of sites and returns from

ﬁm?:u.a.?jmj,r plans;

SRR significant change in Gross mafgin percentads \with employe® numpers, fRainienance ard other operating
costs, which neirg anatte, are flexed in & with saies. High single-dight inflarionary increases At magde
hroughout these costs lings in P23, due to the current economic environment but this dacreases to lower
m.,s@u.m.%@ﬁ increases for FY24 and FY25,

o fixed costs: particular rent are kept at levels pased 0 contractual INCreases, with fueed [Elelalilg quch as those
includacin central and support including B.&-m.,:m,md,m.ﬁ inflationary increases:

# raElnnenance capita expenditure tavels follow the trajec oy af revenue while investment and ewpansionaly
capital lovals are Aigmretionary and fallow the igvels of cesh generation; and

oothe dwidend policy 12 \pcts payments pack yeal with steady qrowihn.

The Groupis ﬂ.‘um»wa,m, irrproves it fiqadhity and does not 58 any bark Gpancing over the three-yeaT perind in s
page CaSE
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VIARILITY AGSEGEMERT

pirhough the pase case vid rio refiects the Board's best estimate of the future prospects of the Group
tne Board has also tested the potent!a pepact of 2 range of downside aGsUmMptions: by quantitying the financiat
impact and overlaying this 07 the detalled financial forecasts in clace. The downside goenario s qummarised

a5 follows:

e Like-for-like sales decline - The scenaro B wasea on the <ales projection® not being &8 expected i the base
case instead 4 worst case ccenario of the going concern basé case for Fy23 with -10% fike-for-like decline pet
annurr for £y 24 and Y25, Returns from all rafurbishm2ats and returns fram the new centras in 2024 and 2025

are ramaoved.

2 Inflationary cost pressures - |ncreasing imflationary pressures on ail costs heyont what is reflectad in the base
case. Alleost lines are increased By 3 further 10% fram e haca case, N cach year asit is plausitle that the
acanOImic Jatacioration and cost ab-lving crigis could stretch on ionger than mxﬂmﬂmn... The engrgy costa are
uplifted Y 300% for the last quartef of 2024 when e current energy contract expiTes. and for the whote of
2035 assurning energy prices have Not mormalised by then.

“he rmitigating actipns taken in this downside SCENaTio include halting all refurbishrment spend plans from the
second talf of 2023 untt the ead of 2025 and paiting all new gite spend and dnadend payments for 2024 and 2025,
all of which are ynder the Group's discretion. with these mitigating actions, the Group remains liquid, does not
need to draw of it panking $acility and passes 4)) covenant calcutations.

White the sssumptions we have apphed i this seenarnio ate Emcm.ﬂ.u_ﬁmﬁ ey do net represent the Board's view of e
ikely outturn- However, the resuits of e scenario help to inform the T rectors’ assessment of the viability of
the Group.

JIABILITY STAT EMENT

The Board has 2 raasonatle expectation that the Group will be ableio cortinue in peration ard reet its liatiimes
as they fal due, retain qufficient av able cash and not breach any covenants under any drawn fac
rarnaining 1 of the current facilivies.

e Qver the

The wiability sratement wWas muvﬁzmm by the poard and mgned on it behall by

ANTONY SMITH
CHIEF TiMANCIAL OFFICER

21 MARCH 2023




CHAIRMAN'S INTRODUCTION T0 GOVERNANCE

"ACLEAR FOCU
ON SUSTAINABLE
GROWTH IN DU
SOCIAL ENTERTAINMENT
CENTRES

ADAM SELLAMY
CHAIRMAN

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS

The financial year has been very successful for the Group despite the extremely
challenging external political and economic backdrop. There has been a tight labour
market, inflationary pressures, rising energy costs, increasing interest rates, global
supply chain disruption and the war in Ukraine. All of these factors make the Board's
governance and oversight more important than ever to ensure the long-term stability
of the business.

The Board and management have focused on delivering oxcellence in entertainment for
our customers and profitable and sustainable growth for sharehclders. We have
delivered an exceptionai financial performance, with record saies and profit. Bank debt
has been reduced to nil, with no outstanding liabilities from the pandemic closures.
The Group has reinstated payment of the dividend while expanding the estate,

nvesting in the existing centres and delivering value to all stakeholders. | would like to
shark my Board colleagues, the Executives, and all of the team at Ten Entertaimment
Sroup for their commitment and support over the year,

i was pleased to welcome Sangita Shah to the Board in Novemnber as an independent
Non-Executive Director. Sangita brings a wealth of experience in both executive and
non-executive senior leadership roles and as a board member of the Quoted Companies
Alliance, specialising in £5G policy and diversity. She has been appointed Chair of our
newly formed ESG Committee and her experience will provide excellent support as

we progress towards Net Zero,

KEY GOVERNANCE DEVELOPMENTS DURING
THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Board adopted the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018 {the ‘Code') in FY21 as it
applies to smaller companies (1.e. those below the FTSE 350).

At the beginning of the year, as detailed in last year's Annual Report, the Board was
not fully compliant with Provision 11 of the Code, with only 40% of Directors
excluding the Chairman being Non-Executive Directors whaom the Board considers to
b= independent.

We continuously review our Governance and compliance and in 2022 have taken
further steps to strengthen our compliance with the Code.

<= Appointment of a fourth independent Non-Executive Director to ensure that mere
than half of the Board are independent

<> Undertaking a Board effectiveness review 1o ensure that the Board is operating
well, with an appropriate balance of contributions

Tre appointment of an additional independant Non-Executive Director rmeans that
thz Board was compliant with Provision 11 from 1st Novermber onwards, The Board
considers that it has complied fully in 2022 with all other provisions of the Code.
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ACTIVITIES IN 2022

The Board met eight times in 2022 and the key focus areas involved:

& Annual review of the Group's strategic plan

< Capital investment and allocation strategy, including new centres and the
refurbishment of existing centres.

< Key commercial operations of the group. This includes areas such as pricing policy,
sales density improvement and the development of our digital strategy.

& Cash management and repayment of the CLBILS loan facility.

< Development of our ESG strategy and formation of an ESG sub-committee of the
Board, which will help develop our route map to Net Zero.

< The Group's dividend policy and decision to reinstate the dividend during 2022.

<» Board oversight and review of the independence of all Non-Executive Directors.

The appointrment of an additional independent Non-Executive Director
during 2022,

BOARD ACTIVITY IN 2023

In 2023, the Beoard has met three times with the focus on understanding
the underlying business performance and releasing investment capital without
compromising the security of our lang-term liquidity.

The ongoing economic landscape means that performance continues to be closely
maoaitored to ensure that the Group is well placed te react to a downturn in
performance. Plans are in place to manage costs, investment and capital allocation
to ensure that the Group retains a strong balance sheet and cash position.

The Board is increasing its focus on execution of its strategy to deliver Net Zero.

ADAM BELLAMY
CHAIRMAN
21 MARCH 2023
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BOARD DF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

o®

ADAM BELLAMY
INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECJTIVE CHAIRMAN

Appointed to the Board November 2018

Adam is a highly experianced finance
professional who has worked in a wide range
of consumer-facing growth businesses,

He is currently a non-executive director at
Loungers ple, In The Style Group ple and
Gymfinity Kids Limited. He is also chair of
the audit committee at Loungers and In

The Style. Adam was previously Chief
Financial Officer and then a nen-executive
director at Pure Gym Limited, prior to which
he was Finance Director at Atmosphere Bars
& Clubs tad and finance director at D&D
London Limitad. Farlier in his career, he held
various finance positions at Whitbread,
House of Frazer and Granada Group.

GRAHAM BLACKWELL
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Appointed to the Board March 2017

Grahar has over 30 years' experience in
the bowling industry. He has served on the
Ten Entertainment Board since the [POin
2017 He was appointed Chief Executive
Officer in Septernber 2020 to steer the
business through the pandemic and lead
the strategy for recovery.

Grahar's experience of operating bowling
centres is second to none, having run
bowling centres himself and served as
Operations Director and Chief Commercial
Officer all within our business.

Grahar has been a long-standing member

o the Tenpin Bowling Proprietors’ Association
['TBPA) and is widely regarded in the UK as

a leading expertin the industry.
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Committee membership key:

®>cn.; Committae

@zo

@ Remuneration Committee

ation Cammittaes

@ ESG Committee

.ﬂrm:

®

ANTONY SMITH
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Appointed to the Board April 2019

Antony is a member of the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants
{'CIMA"). He qualified in industry working
across a variety of secters in rofes spanning
Financial Control, Strategic Management
and Reporting and Planning.

He was Finance Director of Wickes, the DiY
retailer, overseeing a strategic transformation
pregramme to refurbish the retail estate and
grow the online sales of the business.

Prior to his six years at Wickes, Antony spent
ten years at RHM plc and Premier Foeds pic
as Director of Finance for Hovis and latterly
in a central role overseeing a significant
refinancing programme.
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BOARD OF DRECTORS AND EXECHTIVE COMMITTEE CONTIAUEG

JULIE SNEDDON
SENIOR INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTCR

Appointed to the Board March 2017

Julie has over 20 years’ experience in
senior executive roles with the Walt Disney
Company, including mzst recently as
Executive Vice President of Disney Stores
Worldwide which carried responsibility for
over 330 stores across North America,
Europe and Japan.

Julie has led multiple strategic business
development and arganisation
transformation change initiatives for
Disney with a focus on retail, brand
development and digital transfermation,

2 JOIOIO);

LAURA MAY
INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Appoinfed to the Board May 2021

Laurais a fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales and qualified with Deloitte before
gaining considerable financial leadership
experience across a range of indusiries.

Laura is currently Director of Treasury at
Pure Gyrn. the UK's largest gym operator,
where ste has worked for the past nine
years and has played a key role in their
substant’al growth. Her financial expertise
and experience in the consumer leisure
sector arzinvaluable in helping TEG deliver
its growt strategy.

I0I0] ¢ |

SANGITA SHAH
INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Appainted to the Board November 2022

Sangita is non-exec Chair of AIM traded
Kinove plc and RA ple, Senior Independent
Director of Inspired ple and Forward
Industries Inc {Nasdag). She is a board
member of the Quoted Companies Alliance
{QCA) and serves on a number of private
boards as an investor.

Sangita has extensive experience in corporate
finance, journalism and senior consultancy.
She has held a number of senior roles within
blue chip crganisations, including Unilever,
Mars, Ernst & Young and KPMG, was a former
beard director of Swindon Town FC and a
past President of the Chartered Institute of
Journalists. She has consulted to a number of
crganisations that include HM Cabinet Office,
HSBC and other blue chip companies.
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Committee membership key:
@)za; Committes

@ Nemiration Committes
@ Remuneration Committee
@ ESG Committee

.ﬁjm:

®

CHRISTOPHER MILLS
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Appointed to the Board March 2017

Christopher 1s a director and the sole
shareholder of Harwood Capital
Managernent Limited which is 2
designated corporate member and

the controfler of Harwood. Harwood
Capital Management Group was formed
in 2011 by Christopher on his acquisition
of Harwood from J © Hambro Capital
Management Group Limited,

He is also the Chief Executive Officer and
director of NASCIT {a UK-listed investment
trust), and a director and investment
manager of Oryx.

Christopher has a long and successful
investing track record and is a non-
executive director of a number of both
public and private companies.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BUARD GOVERNARLE

GOVERNAMNCE STRUCTURE

The Company's governance structure is designec
such that the 3oard focuses on providing experienced
leadership to the Group.

The Board sets the Group's strategy, monitors
performance end ensures that appropriate financial
and huma- resources are in place for the Compary
to meet 'ts objactives,

The Board 15 alse responsiole for taking the fead in
settirg ard embedding the Company's culture, value
and standards, and for ensuring that appropriate
systems, procedures and controls are in place to
support the effective assessment and managerment
of risk and the safeguarding of sharehclder interests.

The Board operates in azcorcance with the Company's
Articles of Association {'Articles’) and has established
Aucit, Remuneration, Nomination and ESG Commitiees
to assist it in discharging its responsibilities.

Eacr Committee has its own written terms of
reference. Certa n matters are specifically reserved
for decision by the Board a~d docurmented ina
written schedule.

BOARD DECISION MAKING

Az part of its dec sion making, the Board considers the
interests of all of its stakeholders and evaluates the
conseguences o its decisions in the long term.

Eac™ year, the Board reviews the strategiz plan in detail
to ensure that it ramains appropriate

The Directors review anc approve the Business
Plan and Budget for the forthcoming year in

detail. The Board considers a wide range of
information on behalf of stakeholder groups, such
as environmental inpact, community assessment,
ermployee and shaieholger feecback to ensure
that the plans can be executed effectively.

To help reduce risk as part of decision mak'ng, the
Audit and Risk Committee reviews all risks that the
Corrpany faces, which are not limitec to those
disclosed as principal risks in this report.

BOARD MEETINGS AND PROCESS

The Board formally met on eight occasions during the
financial year.

Key matters discussed included firancial security and
quidity which focused on maximising returns for
shareholders, including the decisions to repay the
£14.0m CLBILS facility; recommencing the dividend
progra-mm™e including approving the payment of the
first 'nterim dividend since the pandemic; appraving
new sites to the pipeline; approving the new E5G
Committee; reviewing the pricing structure and
prososals keepirg in mind ‘nflation and the Group's
current strong ‘ootfall; as well as strategic planring
for the ‘wture into 2023 and beyond.

Meetings were conoucted by & mixture of video
conference call and face-to-face. All Board members
attended all meetings and Committees that they were
scheduled to attend.

The Board has met an a further three cccasions to
cate in FY23, with key matters discussed ncluding

the approval of the 2022 Anrual Report and Financiat
Statements; a review of the first quarter of t-ading; and
the first ESG Commiittee meeting.

The Board intends to meet formally at
“mes a year, with ad hoc meetings cal
when circurmstancas require It.

east six
led as and

“he Board has approved an annual calendar of agenda
izems, with relevant matters scheduled for
consideration at the aopropriate point in the regulatery
and financial cycle.

In addition, the Board will meet at least once a year to
discuss strateqgy, including a full strategic review of the
bsiness operations and the development of the
Geoup's strategic plan.
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The schedule of matters reserved for the Board includes:

Strategy and management Strategy and management Strategy and management

< Ensuring mantenance of & Review of the Grouo's overall
sound internal controland risk ~ governance arrangements
managementsystems, and . Determining the ‘ncependence of
assessing their effectiveness Directors

< Approving Group risk & Conmidering the views
appetite staterments of shareholders

< Approving the sustainability ¢
strategy and goals

© Leadership of the Company, setting
values and standards

& Developing, approvieg ard overseeing
the strategic aims and objectives

& Oversight of Group aperations
ard perfermance

Authorising any conflicts

of interest

Structure and capital Cther

< Changes to the structure, size © Approval and monitoring of the
and composition of the Board Share Dealing Code

& Ensuring adequate < Approval of political donations
succession planning

Board membership

< Major cnanges to corporate structure,
including acquisitions and disposals

& Major changes to capital structure,
including appreval of Group treasury
policy anc arrangements

Financial reporting and controls Committees

£ Nomination Committee
& Audit Committee

< Remuneration Committee
O ESG Committas

& Approval of annual and half-year
financial staterments

& Approval of dividend policy, including
recommendation of final dividend

O Approval of significant changes in
accourting policy

All Directors ame expectec o attend all meetings of the Beard and any Committees of which they are members, and
to devote suificlent tme to fulfil their dutes as Directors.

Each Non-Executive Director has committed to the Company that they are able to allocate sufcient time to the

Company to discharge trei- responsibilites effectively. This has been demonstrated by the 100% attendance record
of the Board,

Any acd’tional board appointments Non-Executive Directors are contemplating are discussed with the Chairman in
advance, including the Iikely tme commitmeant and whether these could in ary way constizute a conflict of interast,
These matters are formally reviewed by the Board on an annual basis.

As stated 'n the Articles of Association and per the Code, all members of the Board will se offering themselves for
re-glection at the Corpany’s Annual Ceneral Meeting (AGM') on 4 May 2023,
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT CONTIKUTD

KEY BOARD ROLES, RESPONSIBILITIES AND COMMITTEES

BOARD MEMBERSHIP

STRATECIC RERORT

GOVERNANCE HHANEIALS

The Boarc curvently comprises the Chairman, the Chief Exscutive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, a Senior Independent Director and three Non-Executive Directors. The names and biographical details of the serving Directors and the
offices nele by them can be feund on pages 46 to 47. We believe that the Board is of sufficient size that the reculrements of the business and good governance can be met and normal succession challenges managed, but is not so large

as tc be anwieldy,

Chairman
The sle of the Charrman is:

& providing leadership to and ensu-ing the effectiveness of the Board;

& ensuring that ager das emphasise strategic, rather than routine, issues,
ard that the Directers receive accurate and clear infarmation well ahead
of when a decisior is required;

& promoeting a culture of openness and constructive debate, and facilitating
ar effective contribution by the Non-Executive Directors:

& arranging ‘nformal meetings of the Birectors, including meetings of tre
Non-Execative Directors;

% ersuring efective communcation by tne Group with its sharehoiders;

& arranging for the Chairs of the Committees to be available te answe-
suestions at the AGM and for all Directors to attend; and

< taking the lead i pro

inc a properly constructed, full, ‘ormal and
tailorec inducticn 2rogramme and ongoing cevelopment for new
Directors,

Chief Executive Officer
The rele of the Chief Executive Offceris:

O,mwn,_,)@ﬁjmom,\m_ou_jm:ﬁofjmOdcu,mmuwﬁm@_na:.m,ncojwsaogmn?mmu
& identfying and executing acquisitions and disposals and leading
yeogaphic civersification initiatives;

<

reviewing the Group's organisational structure and reconrrending
charges as appropriate;

identifying and executing new busiress opportunities;

overseeing risk management and internal control;

ranaging the Group's risk prefile, including the health and safety
performance of the Group;

implementing the decisions of the Board and its Committees;
building and mairtaining an effective Grouo leadership team; and
ensy

L OO0

g the Chairman and the Beard are alerted to forthcoming
complex, contentious or sers’tive issLes affecting the Greup.

Chief Financial Cfficer and Company Secretary
The role of the Chief Financial Officer 1s:

& overseeing the strategic planrirg cycle to plan capital allocation and
irvestment decision maxing;
< ensuring the bus'ness is adequately ‘unded to meet its needs
and abligations;
< communicating with current and potential inveszors;
<& providing business nformation, KPIs and insight into running and
improving the business;
key relationship management with critical professional partners;
keeping accurate financial records and contrals;
providing IT and property operational support to the business.

S0

The role of the Cormpany Secretary is:

& keeping accurate records of Board meetings and decisions;
¢ providing legal and compliance expertise;
& ensuring compliance with relevant regulatio~s and codes.

Senior Independent Director {'SID)
The role of the SID je:

< eeting regularly with the incependent Non-Executive Directors;

< aroviding asound ng board fer the Chairman and acting as an
‘mtermedizry for other Directors;

£ being available to snareholders if they have concerns which contact
through the normral channels of Chairman or Chief Executive Officer has
faifed to address cr would e inappropriate; anc

& rolding annual meetings with Non-Executive Drectors without the

Cha'rmran present,

Non-Executive Directors

The role of the Non-Executive Director is:

< provicing contribution to the Board by way of critical review;

¢ bringing independence, impartiality, experence, specalist krowledge and
ad*ferent perssective to the Boarg;

< provicirg quidarce on matters of concern and strategy;

< overseeing risk management and internal contro!;

& protecting shareholder and stakeholder interests;

& constructvely challenging the Executive Directors and monitoring
ExecUtive performance;

& supporting the Executive team in shaping and delivering the strategic
goals of the business;

< optimising shareholcer veturt and protection o shareholder assets, and

< ensuring the Board ‘s able to work together effectively and make

maximurm use of its tire.

Committee Chairs
Tne role of the Chairs of the Board Cormittees are;

& providing ieadership to their respective Committess;
ensuring all members have an input nte the Committee agerda;
engaging stakeholders to provide diverse input into Committee matters;

ensuring the Committees are advised with the aporopriate external
expertise and input to discharge the'r vesponsibilities;

delivering the remit of the Cornmittee terms of reference;
reporting to the Board on Committee progress and matte-s; anc
recommending actions and decis’ons to the Board for approval.

<
<
<

SO0
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CORPORATE GOVERNANEE REPORT CONTIHUED

BOARD IRDEPENDENCE

The Board has considered the
independence of the -urrent
Directors as below:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Graham Blackwell

Chief Executive Officer
Antony Smith

Crief Financizi O'fice-

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
Adaw Bellamy

Non-Executive Chairman

lulie $neddon

Senior Independent Director
Laura May

Non-Executiva Director

Sangita Shah

MNon-Execut'va Director

DIRECTOR
Christophe- Mills

Mon-Txecutva Director

STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNANCE FIHANLIALS
Nomination Committee Audit Committee Remuneration Committee ESG Committee
Chair Members Chair Members Chair Members Chair Members
Adam Bellamy Julie Sneddon; Laura May lulie Sneddon; Julie Sneddon Adar Bellamy; Sangita Shah Antony Srnith:
Laura May; Sangita $Snah Latra May; Julie Snecdon;
Sangita Sha~ {from 1 November) Sangita Shah Laura May

{from . November);
Christopher M

The Nomination Committee oversees the
recruitment of tha Directors and senior
rmanagernent, and advises on matters
relating to the Board's memnbership and
Committee appo rtments, necluding
reviewing succession plars. The Nomination
Committee aiso regularly reviews and
manitors the overall skills and expe-ience

of the 3card.

The Nomination Committee et twice
during the vear and wll normally meet at
least twice annuzlly.

2022 SUMMARY

The principal focus of the Committee during
the year was to select another Non-Executive
Director to join and chair the ESG Committee
as the Group continues o cevelop its
Sustainabiity Strategy.

The Audit Committee assists the Board

in discharging its responsib lities for the
integrizy of the financial statements,
reviewing the ‘nternal control environment
and risk managemen® systermns, managing the
relationship with the external auditors ard
monitoring the effectiveness ard objectivity
of the external and internal auditors.

Tre Audit Committee met three t mes during
the year and will normally meet not fewer
than three times a year at the appropriate
reporting and audit cycle,

2022 SUMMARY

In the first haif of the year, the Committee’s
main focus was on the approval of the FY21
Arnual Report published in Marcr 2022,
including a review of the two significant r's<
areas being going concern and impairment. It
was agreed that there was no material
Lncertainty that would cast doubt on the
Group continuing as a going concern and
that due to the sign'ficant improvenent in
trade, there was an impairment reversal 1o
the second half of the year, the Committee
approved the Interim Statement published in
Sentember 2022, approved the 2022 internal
aucit reviews and 2023 programme, reviewed
the Principal Risks and Uncertainties and
approved the latest ‘Risk Appetite Staterrent’

{ffram 1 November)

The Remuneration Committee determines
the terms and conditions of employment,
rernuneration and rewards of the Executive
Directors, the Chairman and the leadership
teams. The Remuneration Committee aims
to offer an approprate balance of fixed and
performance-related, mmediate and
deferred remuneration, but without
overpaying or creating the risk of rewards for
failure, The Rernuneration Committee met
four times curing the year and will normally
meet at least twice annually,

2022 SUMMARY

The Committee ‘ocused on approving the
achievernent of the 2021 Annual Bonus Plan
as explained in further detail under the
Rermuneration report and approving the 2022
Annual Bonus Plan including the setting of
new challenging finarcial and strategic
targets for the Executive Directors.

The vesting of long-term incentive awards in
FY22 were approved where achieved and the
grarting of new long-te'm incentive awards
for FY22 were awarded in March 2022.

The ESG Committee oversees the
development of the Group's sustainability
strategy. The Committee brirgs a selection
of Non-Executive Directors and Executive
Directors to ensure that itis deliverning
against its sustainabilty agenda to comsider
the wellbeing of its people and suppliers, t1e
wider community and to rririmise its impact
on the environment.

The Committee was newly established asa
Board Committee in 2022, building on and
consclidating several workstreans already in
place in the Greup.

2022 SUMMARY

Work on the Group's sustainability strategy
has been ongoing throughout the yvear wit~
support from external experts. The resultirg
strategy has bean raviewed and ratified by
the ESG Comritee, with a clear plan to
deliver Net Zero by 2030 for Scopes

182 emissions.

The Comm'ttee has also incorporated the
existing charitaole activities and has rev'ewed
the corporate governance processes

anc polices.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPAIRT CONTINLED

FY22 MEETING ATTENDANCE

Main Audit Normination Remuneration
Director ndeperdence  Board Committee Committee Committes
Graham Blackw Exac 8/8
Antony Smith Exec B/8
Adam Bellary (Chair) | B/8 2/2 A/8
Julie Snedden (SID) | 8/8 3/3 2/2 4/4
Laura May | g8/8 3/3 2/2 4/4
Sangita Shan' I 11
Christopher Mills %} 3/8 3/3
Key: NI - Nor-Independent | - Independent Exec - Executive Director

1 Sangita Shavwas appointed to the Board as an Independent No~-Executive Director with effect from 1 November 2022,

BOARD EFFECTIVENESS

The Crairman, with the support of the Company Secretary, reviews the formal and taflored induction programme
developed for any new Drectors Joirirg the Board, and that the development and ongoirg taining needs of
individual Diractors and the Board as a whole are reviewed and agreed at least annually. The Company Secretary will
ensure that t1e Boars 15 oriefed on forthceming legal anc regulatory developments, as well as developments in
corporate gosenance best practice.

The Board wll focus or the following kay areas to ensure its effectiveness.

< Recruitment: A formal. rigorous and transparent orocadu-e for the appaointrent of new Directors to the Bead,
overseen 2y the Nom'nation Commitiee. For each ap sointment, the Boare will develop an object've brief,
surrmaris ng the ‘ole and the skills and experience recuired and use an approprate executive search firm with
prover exsertise in the relevant field. Before confirming an apocintment, the Board will check whether the
preferred ndividual can commit to the time expected by the appeintment.
<> Tools and training: All newly appointed Directors will ave a tallored, formal induction process on joining the
Board, induding tre opportunity to meet majo- share olders. The aim is to ensure that they understand the
Comoany and its susiness model, strategy, dnvers of value in the business and key risks, and that they
understard the legal and requlatory envircnment in which the Company eperates. Directors are expected o
update and refresh thei- skills and knowledge on an ongoing basis, anc to continue to build their familiarity with
the Company anc its business throughout their tenure
Quality information provision: Board meetngs are informed by cetailed information provided in advance of the
meetings to allow t'me for review and scrutiny, This information is prepared by experts both within and external
to the susiress and checked for quality and acc racy by serior members of the leadersh’p tearn. Where
approprate, information is presented to the Board by the appropriate experts 'n toe field. All Board meetings arc
fully minuzed to ensure that toere is a clear record of the discussions that ~ave taken place to inform the
decision, making >rocess.
< Clear decision making: the Board has clearly demarczted responsibilities for decision making and uses a
delegated authority framework to ensure that all levels of the business are clzar on the scope of their authority.
Dezisions at Board level are made using analysiz provided by the Excutive Management and the rationale and
decisicns are clearly decumented in the Board minutes.

&

STRATESIE REPORT GOVERNANCE FINANEIALS

¢ Conflicts of interest: Directors have a statutory duty tc avaid actual or potential conflicts of interest. Any
Director who becomes aware that he or she is in a situation which does or could create a conflict of interest, or
has an interest in an existing or proposed transaction in which the Company alse has an interest, is required to
notify the Board in writing as soen as possible. The interests of rew Directors are reviewed during the
recraitment process and authorised {if appropriate) by the Boa-d at the time of their appointment. No Directer
had a material :nterest in any contract of significance in relation to the Company's business at any time du-ing
the year or to the date of this report.

RELATIONSHIP AND COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

We maintain a dialogue wit~ shareholders troughout the year as part of an ongoing inves:or relations programme.
The Chief Executive Cfficer and the Chief Financial Officer rout nely engage with analysts, institut'onal and retail
shareholders and potertial investors. Results and presertations are clearly posted on sur corporate website to
ensure broad access to all potential or existing investors.

Our aim is ‘o ensure that there are strong relationships through which we can understand our investors' views or
rmaterial issues. Tre Board is regularly updated in Investor Relations matters, particularly where there are issues of
concern, and the Company’s brokers provide independent feedback from investors.

All broke s research notes are circulated to the Board to help maintain an understanding of market percentions of
the Company. The Chairman and Senior Incependent Director are always happy to mmake themselves available “or
investor discussions as required.

The AGM is an opportunity to communicate with all shareholders. The Chairs of 2ll Board Cormmittees attend the AGM
and are available to answer questions. An explanatory circular containing the notice of meeting is sent to shareholders
at least 23 days beforehand, with separate votes being offered on each substantive issue. To encourage shareholders
to participate ir the AGM process, the Cormparry will of‘er electronic proxy voting thrrough both cur registrar's

website and, for CREST members, tne CREST service. Voting will be conducted by way of a poll and the results will se
announced through the Regulatory News Service and made available on the Company's website.
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NOMINATIGN COMMITTEE REPORT

ADAM BELLAMY
CHAIR

Number of meetings
held in the year:

]
e

Meetings and attendance

Member Meetings  Attendance
Adam Bellamy {Chair) 2 * e
Laura May 2 *e
Christopher Mills P *e
Sangita Shah _

(joined 1 Novernber 2022)

Julle Sneddor 2 *e

ANNUAL STATEMENT BY THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE CHAIR

| am pleased to present my report of the Committee for a year where there

has been stability in the Board which has been further strengthened with the
appointment of a new independent Non-Executive Director. This appointment
enhances the overall Board independence. With little change in Board membership,
the Committee was able to focus on internal succession planning, Board
effectiveness and to consider the best way to enhance the Board's focus on
sustainability and the wider ESG agenda. The Committee decided to address this
challenge with the recruitment of 2 new Non-Executive Board member who could
bring a skill set in this area. We were pleased to welcome Sangita Shah to the
Board in November 2022 and she was appointed Chair of the newly formed

ESG Committee,

COMMITTEE ACTIVITY

The Committee carned out a wide-ranging search to recruit an additional Non-
Executive Director. This was a planned appointment 1o bring a majority of
Independent Non-Executives o the Board and to help the Board set up an £SG
Committee. Sangita Shah joined the Group on 1 November 2022 as a Non-Executive
Director whorm the Board considers to be independent. Sangita is a member of the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants and a fellow of the Chartered
Institute of Journalists, She is a Board member of the Quoted Companies Alliance,
specialising in ESG policy and diversity and inclusion, with great experience
developing sustainability strategies that will help evolve our progress towards

Net Zero.

Other key activities carried out in the year by the Committee consisted of the annual
reviews of Board succession and of the Board's effectiveness over the past year.

Nomination Committee activities at the meetings

held during the year ending 1 January 2023 Febtruary  October

. Appointments

Interviews wy.m.w!m.w.o_jﬁijﬂ of Non-Executive Uﬂmﬂoq *
Board effectiveness review

Review of the effectiveness of the full mOm«m *

Review of reporting requirements for the year &
Succession planning

Executive and senior management team structure &
Successionplanning &

STRAFEGIC REPORT

GOVERNANCE FINANCIALS

BOARD SUCCESSION

We actively manage our Board succession plan, to ensure that our Board has an
appropriate and diverse range of skills to enable us to deliver our strategy for the
benefit of all of cur stakeholders. We are a small and cohesive Board, and take care
to ensure that all new members of our Board are aligned to our culture and share
our values, whatever their skills and background, Our Board induction process,
undertaken by all new members upon appointment, is an important way to get our
new Board members up to speed and valued by our new Non-Executive Directars.

We have a formal plan for how Board membership should develop which aims to
balance continuity of service with a regular refreshment of skills and experience
needed to deliver our evolving strategy. We reqularly review the balance of skills on
the Board as a whole, taking account of the future needs of the business, and the
knowledge, experience, length of service and perforrrance of the Directors.

BOARD AND DIRECTOR EFFECTIVENESS

Each Director receives a formal avaluation of their performance during the year, which
is conducted by the Chairman. [n addition, the CEQ discussas with the Mon-Executive
Directors the performance of individuals of the Executive team and any changes that
he proposes to make to this team. Whilst this activity does not take place formally
within the meetings of the Nomination Cormmittee, it does form part of its work in
overseeing Executive tearn development and successior process, and the pipeline

of talent available for succession tc the Board.

The perfermance of our Board and the Committees is evaluated by the Nornination
Committee. A confidential Board Effectiveness Review Questionnaire was completed
and from the results, it was concluded that the Board is functioning weli with a strong
team dynamic, the appropriate composition, has a breadth and depth of
complementary skills and experience, and that there is a strong trust batween the
Non-Executive Directars and the Executive Directors in the running of the Group.

DIVERSITY

We fully support diversity as an important contribution to good quality decisior
rmaking and innavative thinking. Diversity has many dimensions, and we particularly
value diversity of thought, which in turn is assisted by diversity of background and
experience, as well as of gender and ethnicity. We already have on our Board a
diversity of gender, skills, ethnicity, experience, perzonality, and cognitive approach.
Site-based teamns are diverse with an even split of males and females in management
positions. We continue to review how we can further broaden our approach,
encouraging diversity and inclusion throughout the Board and the business.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPGRT CONTINUED STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNANCE FINARCIALS

CULTURE AND VALUES TENURE AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
Preservaticn of our culture as a social entertainment bus ness has always been a The Nomination Committee considers the length of service of Board members at
pricrity, wric ~ stems from the vaiues instilled by the Boad. Cur culture is brought least annually. The tenure of the Directors at the date of this report is set out below:
to ife throug 1 our shared values ard business principles which the Board monitors
through Board reperss and agenda items, engagement with employees, and visits Member Appoiatment  Current terrn Mext renewal Board rale
to centres. Qur culture and values ae an important part of what we look for in new
; : 7 -
ca~d'dates to join our Board, so that they may premote end ergage with the WQWB Mﬁﬂom,\mBUmﬂ years Annually at AGM m;m_ﬂ.ﬂ:m‘.. mjnj )
development of these aspects throughout the business It s important that they elamy cmination Chair
are alignec with our values, 5o that they can be role moczls for all our employees Graham 15 March 2077 6 years Annually at AGM CEC
and stakerolders. Blackwell
Antony 1April 2019 3years Annually at AGM  CFO and Secretary
Smith
dulie 22 March 2017 6 years Annually at AGM  Reruneration Chair
Sreddon and Senior
Independent
Director
Laura & May 2021 1year Annually at AGM  Audit Chair
May
Sangrta 1 Novemper - Anrually at AGM ESG Chair
Shan 2022
Christopher 15 March 2017 6 years Annually at AGM  Non-Executive
Mills Director

In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code, all continuing Directors will
seek re-election at the 2023 AGM, and as now required by the Listing Rules, the
Non-Executives will be subject to an additional vote by shareholders independent of
Harwood Capital LLP.

Approved by the Beard on 21 March 2023

ADAM BELLAMY
CHAIR OF "HE NOMINATION COMMITTEE
21 MARCH 2023
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AUDIT COMMITEE REPORT

LAURA MAY
CHAIR

Number of meetings °
held in the year:

Meetings and attendance

sz

ANNUAL STATEMENT BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE CHAIR

tam pleased to present my report as Audit Committee Chair for the year ended 1
January 2023 and the activities that have been carried out by the Committee during
a year where there has been economic challenges and political uncertainty, but from
out of which the business has seen record performances.

| congratulate the Executive Directors on a fantastic set of results for 2022, especially
on the backdrop of a year plagued by industry-wide intermational supply disruption,
the continuing uncertainty brought about by the war in Ukraine followed on by more
national issues as scaring infiation and interest rates, an energy crisis and a constantly
changing political landscape. Through all this, the Group has produced record sales
and profit levels, paid off its bank debt, reintroduced the dividend programme,
including paying a 3p interim dividend and declaring a 7p final dividend, all while
remaining focused on goed internal contrals and risk management.

The Committea met three times during this financial year and has met once since the
year end. During these meetings the Committee has ensured it has carried out the
annual activities required to cover its key responsibilities around compliance with the
Code and other legal and regulatory requirements, financial reporting, including
accounting standards, risk management, internal controls and the external audit process.

A risk mapping exercise was carried out in the year to help identify areas where further
controls or mitigating actions were required, as part of the Committee’s focus on the
fisk managemnent process. The Group's risk appetite was reviewed again in light of the
economic challenges as well as the Group's strong performance to ensure that the
business was taking advantage of opportunities ta help deliver on the strategy.

STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNANCE HNANCIALS

The principal risks and uncertainties of the Group were reviewed in line with its
appetite and considered acceptable.

The operational internal audit team carried out at least four audits during the year “or
each site. The internal audit team also carried out a delegation of authority review to
ensure transactions, invoices, employment contracts, supplier agreements and
property leases were being appropriately approved. An external third party was also
used to carry out a cyber security review to ensure that all appropriate controls such
as firewalls, patches, upgrades, two-factor authentication and training programmes
are in place to protect the business from the increasing risk of cyber breaches.

The Committee, on behalf of the Board, has completed a review of the Group's going
concern position and long-term viability statement and approved the liquidity review
using a base case and a severe but plausible downside scenario. The Committee Is
satisfied that the Group has adequate resources to continue in eperation far the
foreseeable future,

Requlators and shareholders continue to focus on the content and quality of narrative
disclosures in the annual report on environmental, social and governance matters,
particularly climate change. The Board has reviewed the expanded disclosures around
TCFD as reflected in the annual report.

The below is & summary of the key matters reviewed by the Committee during
the pericd:

Member

Adam Beliamy™

Meetings  Attendance
Financial statements and new accounting standards

Audit Committee activities at the meetings held during the year ending 1 January 2023

March September November

Laura May [Chair)

3 *o 0

Review of the 2022 interim announcement and the Financial Staternents and Annual Report for 2021 . .

Graham Blackwell”

Review of significant accounting policies and estimates in the year, in particular the impairment release *

Christopher M

Going concern and viability statement assessment

Sangita Shah
(joined 1 November 2022)

Farr, balanced and understandable assessment

Annual review of the tax strategy and approving the treasury policy

Antony Smith”

Julie Snedden

Risk management and internal control

3 *re e

* Invitation only

Risk register, risk mapping, risk appetite, principal risks and uncertainties assessment

Rewview of internal audit function, requirements and internal audit reports

Annual evaluation of the Cormmittee’s effectiveness

External auditors

External audit engagement, plan, budget and independence review

Review of interim and tull-year audit reports and findings

Assessment of external audit effectiveness
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ALLQIT COMMITEE REPRRT COKTIRNED

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

The Chief Executive Cfficer, Chief Financial Officer, Christapher Milis as a
non-independant Non-Dxecutive Diractor and Adam Bellamy as Chairman
of the Board usually attend reetings by invitation. In addizion,
represertatives of PwC for external audit natters adtend by invitation.

Tha Roard cor siders that | nave recent and relevant financal experience

to chai- the Committee, by virtue of my orofessional qualification and rmy
financial experdise and experience in the consumer leisure sector. Members
of the Cammittes car also demonstrate a breadth of experience across the
retall and leisre sector through their currert and previous -ples - please
cee the Directars' biograpties on pages 46-47.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ISSUES AND JU DGEMENTS
RELATING O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Within Tts terms of reference, the Committee monitors tha integrity of the
annual and interim reports, including a review of the signiticant financial
reporting 1Ssu2s anc Judgements contained 'n them. The Audit
Committee’s review of the Annual Report for the period ended 1 January
2023 and t-e 2022 irterim financial staterrents focused on the following
areas of signif cance:

& Reviewirg the imparment assessments of the values of property, plant
and equiprient, right-o°-use assets and goodwill for the Group. This
included the factors corsidered in determining the cash flows, spend on
solar proesis as part of cimate risk and the rate used to discount those
cash Flows which resulted 'n ar impairment reversal *n e period.
Further de-ail of the imparrment assessments car be found in Notes 10
and 13 zo tne finarcial statements.

& Reviewing the going cencern and long-term viability statement
assessments inzluding agreeing the base case and severe but plausible
cownside scenarss used to determine the Group's liquidity.

& The Committee also considered a paper prepared by te external
auditors, which ‘ncluded sigrificant reporting and acccunting matiers.

The Audit Committee, followirg confirnations from management and the
axternal auditars, satisfied itsel’ as to the reasonableness and consistency
of these assu Tptiore when compared o prior years,

REVIEW OF NARRATIVE REPORTING

Last vear, the Corrmittee reviewed the enhancements made to the
financial review d'sclosures and other parts of the ancual report to address
the findings cf the Financial Repotting Coundil 'FRC'} in & letter around
alrernative periormance measures APMs'). This year, the APMs Lsed were
considered appropriate and there has been focus on the “CFD reporting. A
third party consultant was engaged to help management review and assess
existing climate chanje nsks and to identify areas of development,
specifically to cover tre physical climate risk to our suoply chain, & more
robust analys s against climate scerarios and a quantitative assessment of
the imoact of climate change, together with a set of appropriate metrics.

STRATEGIC REPORT

FAIR, BALANCED, UNDERSTANDABLE AND
COMPREHENSIVE REPORTING

A the reguest of the Board, the Commitiee also considered whether the
Annual Report and financial staterrents as a whole are fair, balanced and
understandable’. Factors consicered included:

& Does the mamative of the Business Review and Financial Roview fairty
reflect the performance of the Group over the period reported on?

& Are the narrative sections corsistent with each other, and with the

“nancial statements?

s the connection between strategy and remuneration clearly described?

Can readers easily identify key events that happened during the year?

ls the language and tone of vo'ce used commersurate with the spirit of

“fair, balanced and undersrandable’?

& e

Are the APMs used by the Group appropnate and descriped in safficiont
detail to reconcile to statutory disclosures?

Committes mambers received the draft Annuat Report and Accounts in
acvance and had the opportunity to make comments in advance of the
formal meeting at which the report was tabled for approval.

Following its review, the Comrmittee confirmed to the Board that in its view
the 2022 Annual Report was ‘fair, balanced and sncerstandable’ and
provided the informatien necessary for our shareholde’s to assess the
Corrpany's position, performance. busiress model and strategy.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Bozrd nas overall responsibility for setting the Group's sk appetite and
ensuring that there is an effective risk management framework to maintain
appropriate levels of -isk. Tre Board has, however, delegated responsibility
for review of the risk management methodelogy and effectiveness of
internal control to the Audit Comm'ttee.

The Group's system of internal control comprises entity-wide, high-ievel
controls, furctional cont-ols over business processes and individual
site-level controls. Policies and procedures, including clearly defined levels
of deleqated authority, have been commumicated across the Group, Internal
controls have been implemented ‘n respect of the key operational and
financial processes which esist w thin the business. Trese policies are
cesigned to ensure the accuracy anc reliability of financial reporting and
govern the preparation of the inancial statements. The Board is ultimately
responsible for the Group's system of internal controls and risk
management and discharges its duties in this area by:

& holding regular Board meetings 1o consider the matzers reserved for
its consideration,

& receiving regular management reports wnich provide an assessment
of key risks and controls;

& scheduling annual Board reviews of strategy:

& ensuring there is a clear arganisational structure with defined
responsibilities and levels of authority;

GOVERNANCE FINANCIALS

& ensuring there are decumented policies and procedures in place; and

& reviewing regular reports containing detafled information regarding
financial performance, rolling forecasts, actual and forecast covenant
compliance and financial and non-firancial KPls.

The process by whicn the Audit Committee has monitored and reviewed
{he effectivenass of <he systern of internal controls and fisk managerman.
during the year has included:

O reviews of the Group's risk mapping, the Risk Appetite statsment and
nsk register;

& reviewing emerging risks which in this year included the mpact of delays
in deliveries on a nationwide basis;

& reviewing chimate risks part of the TCFD reporting guring the year;

& reviewing the system of financial and accounting controls, and
considering the view of the exteral auditor in relation to the
effectiveness of such controls;

& rece'ving regular reports and updates or incidents and risks throughout
the Company; and

& reporting to the Board on the risk and control culture within the Group

The Audit Cornmittes has not identified, nor been made aware of, any
significant “allings or weaknesses in the risk rmanagement and internal
control systems and is satisfied that the systems continue to work
effectively. The Audit Committee also confirms that it has complied with
the provisions of the Competition and Markets Authority's Order for the
financial year under review and tha? it will continue to chaltenge
rnaragernent to further improve risk 1certinication, evaluation anc
management processes across the Group.

INTERNAL AUDITCRS

BDO UK LLP ['BDQ'} were appointed to support our internal aadit function at
the end of FY17, when they commenced thei first review. Their audit reviews
are supplementary to the operational loss prevertion and process audits,
which are completed by three internal tearn rmembers with each centre
visited to perform process audits at least once per quarter. The Committee
has discussed and concluded that the best option for the Group 's te
continue to blend the use of BDO for the more complex internal reviews
whnile using the internal team for reviews which the'r skills encompass.

The results fromn these audits are discussed with the Chef Finandial Officer
and presented to the Audit Cormmittee, The Committee will review the
effectiveress of the outsourced and internal rescurces on an ongoing basis
Jnd has concluced that the intermal audit furction has bean effective durng
the year. During FY22, the BDO review that covered the Group's approacn
to fraud risk, laws and regulations was completed and reported in March
2022, with the findings and recommendations being implemented during
2022. A cyber security review was carried oLt by a specialist third party
senetration testing company. The results of this review were reported to
the Board in February 2023, with the findings and recommendations to be
carried out in 2023,
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HEALTH & SAFETY AND INCIDENT MANAGEMENT

The Company operates a~ incident management palicy at site level,
recording inc’cents relat'ng to health & safety, accidents, crimiral activity,
food standards, pest control and others. These incidents are sent out to
senicr management for review and the Chief Financial Otficer escalates any
significant incidents to t~e Audit Committee as necessary. Health & Safety
meet'ngs are held by sen‘or management rnonthly to urderstand incidents
and to ensure corrpliance with o to update policies, These are attended by
arisk adviser from our insurance brokers to provide the Company with a
professional evel of advice,

WHISTLEBELOWING

The Company has established procedures for employees to raise concerns,
in confiderce, relating to matters of finarcial reporting, financial centrol or
other matters. The whistleblowing policy is applicable for all employees,
who are mads= aware of the policy on joining the Compary and are
reminded of its availability through onlire portals and posters. The
Whistleblowi~g facility s provided on Yapster, where employees can raise
concerns cor fidentially using our dedicatec communications app, offering
people more access 1o reporting incidents of concern. The reports can only
be accessed, collated and sent on by a third party company. They emall a
link te the report manthly, for review by the Chief Executive Officer who will
report or to the Board. Ne incidents were reported during FY22.

BRIBERY, FRAUD AND ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group hes procecdures in place to ensure comoliarce with the Bribery
Act 2011 anc other relevant legislation, including a bribers policy that has
been reviewed and signed us o by all employees. Executive Beard
members with autnerity to place significant contract orders have received
anti-bribery taini~g ard all Board Directors acknowledge any conf icts of
interest as part o* each Board meeting held. The Group a so reviewed
susplier terms and conditions for Bribery Act and tax evasion clauses, and
all payrrents 1o third parties must be supported by a valic invoice and
segregated d ties are in place in the finance team for approval and
payment, Formal procedures are implermnented for signing off gifts and
hospitality aczepted by employees.

CYBER SECURITY AND DATA PROTECTION

Cyber and daa sec.rity remains one of the most important risk aeas,
being one of he Board's principal risks, as cutlined in tre 'Risks and
Uncertaint'es section on pages 41-42 of this Annval Repert. The resource
and capability of the Inforrat'on Security function was inzreased during the
year, and the sregramme to ‘mprove cur controls and practices in this area
has continued. This has included improved network segmentatior,
penetration testing and a thorough review and reinforcement of our IT
business conrinuity plans. Given the continuing external nisks, this area was
subject to an ‘nternal audit by a third party cyber security specialist review
10 2022, and cyber secutity remains a standing agenda iter- at all
Committee moetings. The Committee was satisfied that there is an
acceptable level of risk management in place.

STRATEGIC REPORT

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The resort and financial statements were audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP {'PwC') who were appointed in 2017 after the
IPC, since then no audit tender has been carried out. The PwC partner,
Craig Skelton, attends all Committee meetings and thus atterded the
meetings in March, September and November 2022. The Committee Chair
also me* privately with the auditors before sach meeting and the rest of the
Comrnittee have the osportunity to do so if they wish.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the incependence, objectivity ard
effectiveness of the external auditors and considers that PwC continues to
possess the skills and experierce required to fulfil thair duties effectively
and efficiently. The Audit Committee's review of the effectiveness of PwC
as the external auditors is based om

& discussions with the senior finance team around the level of
understanding demonstrated by the audit team;

< the robustress of the audit around challenge to management and
findings on areas that required judgement;

& the cuality of audit work, reporting and advice given to the Audit
Committee; and

& reports publisned by the FRC.

The conclusion was that the audit had been effective and carried out with
the necessary objectivity and challenges to demonstrate independence and
that no sigrificant issues had been highlighted; this was endorsed by the
Committee.

It is the Comrmittec’s -asporsibility to make recormmendations to the Board in
relation to the appointment, reappointrment and remaoval of the external
auditors, and to agree the aud't fee. In Novemnber 2022, the external auditors
presented their strategy for the 2022 audit to the Committee. The Committes
reviewed and agreed with the external auditor's assessrment of risk. The
Committee also reviewed and agreed the audit approach and the approach to
assess’ng materiality for the Group. The fee proposed by PwC for the
statutory audit of the Group and Company financial statements and the audit
of Group subsidiares pursuant to legislation was reviewed and agreed.

Considering the review of the 2022 audit and the preposed plan and fee,
the Committee agreed that PwC be reappointed as auditor for the 2022
audit for the fee proposed. A resolution by the Directors to agree therr
rernuneration and to reappoint PwC as auditor for the 2023 audit will be put
to shareholders at the AG™.

The Committee is aware that the use of audit firms for non-audit work 15 a
sensitive issue for investors and corporate governance analysts, as it could
potentially give rise to a conflict of nterest and jecpard'se the
independence of the audit process. Following the issue of the EU Audit
Directive in June 2076, we review any non-audit work to ensure fees for
non-aucit services provided by the statutory auditors in any year do not
exceed 70% of tne average fees for the Group statutory audit in the vears

GOYERNANCE FINANCIALS

and that they do rot perform any non-audit services, including the majenty
of tax work, internal audit, corporate “nance, involvement in management
activities or the provision of financial informatien The external auditors
may not be engaged to provide ary non-audit services without the
agreement of the Audit Committee Chair either. We believe that this
approach 's still relevant and sa‘equards auditor independence and
objectivity effectively.

PwC have confirmed that in their professional Judgement they are
independent within the meaning of regulatory and professional
requirements, ard that the objectivity of the audit engagement partner and
audit staff is not impaired.

During the period, we paid PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP £40,000 for their
review of the interim financial statements {considered to be a ron-audit
service), No other non-audit services were provided by the external auditor.
Fees paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for audit work were £310,000

Our auditors rotation policy is that we will terder the audit at least once
every ten years and we will change auditor at least every 20 yvears. We w |
invite at least one firm outside the 'Big Four' to participate in any audit
tender process. This is in Iine with the curent EU Audit Directive. The latest
date for the next tender will therefore be for the 2027 audit, but may occur
sooner at the Committee’s discretion. The Committee concurs that a
competitive tender is ir the best interests of shareholders.

ANNUAL EVALUATION

The Committee continues to improve the risk, control and governance
infrastructures, and will continue to work with the rmanagement team and
the Board to ensure processes operate effectively to support the delivery of
the Group's strategy. There has been one change to the compaosition of the
Committee witn Sangita Shah ioining as a member. As a whole, the Board
has confirmed it believes the members have the competence that is relevant
to the secto” in wiich the Group operates, and the Chair of the Committee
has the relevant financial expenience to run *he Audit Committee.

LAURA MAY
CHAIR OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
21 MARCH 2023
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JULIE SNEDDON
CHAIR

Number of meetings
held in the year:

Meetings and attendance

Member Meetings  Attendance
Julie Sneddon (ckair) 4 e e
Adam Bellamy 4 *eee
Laura May 4 +oee
Christopher Mills 4 (XX X2
Sangita Shah 0 _

{joined 1 November 2022)

STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERKANCE HNANCIALS
COMMITTEE ACTIVITIES

Remuneration policy

The Remuneration Committee met on four occasions in FY22 and has met twice since the year end. The activities completed by the Committee in 2022 were as follows:

February

May Movember

Bonuses, awards and vesting review

Review of FY21 performance and bonus outturn

Approval of Directors' bonus KPls/targets for FY22 and FY22 fixed pay * *

Proposed 2022 LTIP performance targets *

Review of F¥22 bonus performance and FY23 fixed pay

Share plan awards and vestings

Remuneration policy and operation review

Review of Policy and operation of Policy *

Governance and reporting

Review of Directors' Remuneration Report {including to ensure compliance with the Remuneration .
Reporting Regulations)

Review of expected FCA Board diversity requirements

ANNUAL STATEMENT BY THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE CHAIR

1 am pleased to present this Remuneration Report after the delivery of a record

year led by our Executive Directors with the support and hard work of all of Ten
Entertainment's employees. Cespite disruption and uncertainty from the wider
economic environment and emerging from an incredibly difficult two years as a result
of the Covid-19 pandemic, the business generated record sales growth, profital
and free cashflow.

REMUNERATION OUTCOMES FOR FY22

A high proportion of the Executive Directors’ remuneration is in performance-related
variable pay, to incentivise and reward strong performance and align Director interests
with those of our shareholders. Bue to the outstanding performance of the Group
over the last year, this has resulted in a higher variable pay-ous.

Annual Bonus Plan

The bonus plan was based on 70% of the pay-out relating to financial metrics and
30% paid out on strategic objectives. The cutstanding financial perfermance of the
Group has resulted in the maxirmurm Group Adjusted Profit Before Tax and Free
Cashflow metrics being achieved.

The Executive Directors also made excellent strategic progress durning the year,
in¢-aasing the number of sites, completing numerous refurbishments and capital
programmes and expanding the scope of our digital strategy. All of this has helped
drive the business forward and delivered an outstanding set of results as well as
positioning the business for further growth and allowing us to reintroduce the
dividend programme (3p interim dividend paid and 7p final dvidend declared}. This is
the context within which the Committee has considered remuneration autcomes for
FY22 and the approach for FY23.

The Committee has assessed exceptional achievement across our demanding
strategic objectives resuiting in a total of 30% of bonus available under this element.

Further details about the targets set for the annual bonus and performance against

them can be found on page 64 of this report.
| held discussions with a number of shareholders in April 2022, in advance of the

AGM, to discuss the Remuneration Report and the Committee's approach to the Fy21
Ann .al Bonus Plan pay-out. These discussions were very helpful both in enabling me
to explain our approach to remuneration both for FY21 and more generally to receive
insightful feedback from shareholders, As the Committee prepares for the triennial
VO o Ol Direchors Remuneradion Policy 2t our 2024 AGH ard reviews The curmert
Palicy, | will reach out to investors again to seek their feedback on our proposals.

As a result, the formulaic outcome of the bonus is 100% of maximum for both our
CEO (£310,000} and CFO (£260,000).

The bonus will be paid in cash with 25% of the bonus in excess of target being paid n
shares and held for a minimum of two years, ensuring the Executive Directors with
LTIP vestings continue to build their shareholding in the business, aligning them to
long-term performance and shareholders’ interests.
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Yesting of 2820 Long Term ncentiye Awards

As explained p, oLr 2020 ?3:35303 mm_ooz\ QUrfong term Incentiye
Qrants for Fyap Were delayeq due to the Sifficulty i moﬁmmmm@jm and setting
targets as 5 25ult of she Covid-19 pandemiic. Auard levels wee unchanged
from the Prio - yagr a¢ 1509, o”.,mama.‘ and m:_;orﬁ_; Surshare prica Wag
IMpaciad by the Fandemic in 1, 2arly pary of 2020, AWATS werp neg Made
until 30 Noveriney 2020 witp, no scale pack considarad Necassary with our
share orice Umm:@ withie 20y, 0F the grant price fgr the priar Years award.
The Committza "85 "2vigwed a5ain the share Price at whch, the L Tip Grants
Were made ar fernang comfertabie that there aré no 'w ndfa) 92ins’ thay

feCuire the Comraittea 1o conside, 4 scale back of the vesting fevel

The 2020 LTIF awgng S based on £pg targets (50%), relative TSR {50%) and
2 share price Underpin which myst be achieved for ANY patt of the award to
vest The maximym EPS farget has been reached qnq this part of tha Fware

OUr currany analysig, t jg anticipatad that the T55 elerment Wilf also yagy in
full, Actual Yesling wiff ba distlosed inthe 2023 ﬂmSczmSz@w Report.

2022 18SUE OF _.OZﬁ.ﬂm.&Z INCENTIVE AWARDS

Long-term 'NCEntive awards WEIS granted fo, FY22in March 2033 with
award levels |, Changed from Fy27 at150% of salary ang the Performance
3 ing ta be based 5g94 O adiusted £ps and 50% ap
relative Tep Te targets wera disclosed i OUr 2027 R, Qeration

Report ang fan be ‘oyng op Page 65 of thjg Report,

Ovmw>,__._02_ OF POLICY FORF Y23
Base salary ang feasg

The ﬁo.gaj._ﬁmw has Corsiderad carefully the salaries and cveraf|
"eMuneratinn Packages pf the Execitive Directors the Cortext of salary
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deliver Further Jowth ang returns for m:wwmroimww.
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The Committee Understange that with the Cost of fiving SIS, thera jg a
concem ahgyt _jnjmwmim levels of EXacutiya fEMuneration Wa baliaye e

Workforca Salary ncreases, The 2PProach of the Management teamn,
SUpporteq by the Board, has been to look after the mog: YUlnerabla lower
Paid workars Al salarieq EMployaes haye been awarded 5 Salary Merease of
£2,300, Thig Brovides ap, AVerage ncreags of 5.8% npg UP 0 10% for o,
lowest paiq €Mmployeas. Cur approach to salary iNcraagas atso takeg into
ATCOUNE the fact that OLY ere senior employaes, WO will haye recened 5
[ower PErCentage of salary Increase, wijj recejve gn annual bopys Paymaent
for Fyay, wehich jg aligned t tha Outturn of the Executive Directars.

in SEting the Cen and CFo salary inCreases, the noj_.z_,ﬁmm\ in
COnsultation With the Exerutjve Diractors, 43 determipag that heth
Executiyes Wil receive 5 salary incraase of £2,300 this year ¢ MITar the
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The Zo?mxmncacm Uirectorg’ fees haye oy changeq since the Group was

listed on the stocik @ﬁ)m:mm N 2017 ang the Plannag 3% NCrease iy 2020

_n,,m:,:nm_m:o: Com: Vttea, The Chairrman fee and the Zoa,mxmnc:{m Directar
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>:az&won:m Plan
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Before T3 {'PBT ane Free Cashflow, mootm_im the Executive Directors on
the overg| namﬂmq::\ and cash Seneration of the Group,

The 309 of the bonyg determined by Strategic Milestorge will focus o,
estata Qme\mmovﬁmaﬁ S?S‘,mrsmi Plans and mn?.m.amﬂma» of ESG targets,

Further details of the strategic cbjectivag and the financiaj targets, g
well ag berformance against them, will be set oup N the Fyja
mmﬁscsmm_:o: Report.
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and that ng, charge g required to the policy.
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mo;rnoi:m“ Annual Genery| mezn@ on 4 May 3023, In the Meantime,
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JULIE SNEDDON
CHalr oF THE _ﬂmZCZm_ﬂ\,jOZ mOZIQﬂMm
21 MARCH 2023




REMUNERATION - AT A GLANCE

Actual Remuneration 2022

STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNANCE FINANCIALS
2022 ANNUAL BONUS OUTCOME
Matric Weighting Qutcome [of element) Payout % of tetal award
Group Adjusted EBITDA 70% 100% 70%
Strategic cbjectives 30% 100% moo\o B ‘
2020 LTIP OUTCOME
Metric Weighting Outcome [of element) Payout % of total award

EPS woo\a

Relative TSR 50%

Share price underpie **

100%

50%

50% mmgﬂjm:& <mm:;®

Performarce period runs from date of grant for TSR and ends 30 November 2023, This ‘s the estimatec payout based on the perforrmance at 31 lanuary 2023,

No award or part of an award may vest uniess the average share price of the Company caleulated over a three-month period ending or the vesting cate exceeds the share

price on the date of grant,

REMUNERATION FORFY23
Policy element G Blackwelt {CEO) A Smith (CFO}
Base mm_mJ\ *oj FY23{£2,300 _3Qmemu £312,300 £262,300

ﬂm:@o:

Annual Uojcm maximum oppertus 2

b;;cm, qO;:m metrics

>30c3 oma far ﬁ::umro d umxoﬂ:wznn

Amount Um,a “9 "mﬁmﬁ Umlo::mznm

Payment oﬁ _uoE._m in shares

LTIP Award
LTiP matrics

3% of wam mm_mJ_

100% of Ummm mm,mé

wD\o oﬁ _umwm mm_mJ\

SoD\a of base mm_m_‘f

wofo ijjn_m, rretrics - split equaily between mnr,m,\mBmR of Group Adjusted P.o:ﬁ wm*oﬁm Tax and
Free Cash Flow 30% strategic objectives - split equally between set targets.

The Committee retains discretion to adiust the bonus that is payable if it considers the formulaic
outcome {for both the financial and =onfinancial element} is not approoriate in the context of the

c:um_,_ ing umlolgm:nm of the 003Um3<. 3<mm8ﬁ experience or m‘jn_ov\mm ﬁméwa o:+n03m‘

wm\o of m::cm_ bonus in excess o* B_‘@mﬁ (after tax)
years and 1m3m5 mcEmQ 8 Qws._umnr.

Coa\o of Ummm mm_wJ.

50% relative TSR and moo\u mmm ﬁmanm

20% of 3mx,%c3

50% oﬁ maximum

is paid in mo_ﬂnm:«. shares ﬁ:m# are rm_a ,ﬂoﬂ two

._mog\o ot Ummm mw_wJ..

The Committee retains discretion to adjust the LTIP vesting if it considers the formula’c outcome

:oﬁ mmUSU;mH

UW«SE: nIoE_v ;Q}m.__.,_nm

mjmﬂmro_a,j@ jmmc_:ﬁjm:4

njm_‘mro_aim as % of mm_mQ atFY22 <mm_ “end

wmo.o of mag

1,

w years w:a M years ﬂmmvmnrcm;\

Nooo\o of Ummm mm_mQ to Um met w ,_J n m years ,ﬁ_\OB W<E UOmr mEU_O<3m t 500\9 o* wm_mJ\ _noq .4 year,

wnu\c o, BT

w years mjn m vears _‘mmvmnﬂzm_,\

B4%
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CIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY

STRATEGIC REPERY

This part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report
sets out the Remuneration Policy for the Company
Directors and has been prepared in accordance with
Schedule 8 of The Large and Medium-sized Companies
and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008,
the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
(Accounts and Reports) {Amendment) Regulations
2013, the Companies {Miscellanecus Reporting)
Regulations 2018 and the Companies (Directors’
Remuneration Policy and Directors’ Remuneration
Report) Regulations 2019 {the 'Regulations’).

POLICY SUMMARY

The Remuneration Cormmittee determines the Policy for the Executive
Directors and the Chairman for the current and future years. The
Committee considers that a successful policy needs to be sufficiently
flexible to take account of changes in both the business environment and
remuneration best practice. The policy is designed to provide remuneration
packages that w

<> align the interests of the Executive Directors and senior managerment
with those of shareholders;

< provide competitive remuneration that will both motivate and retain the
Group's current key employees and attract high-quality individuals to join
the Group;

<» encourage and support a high-performance culture;

< reward delivery of the Group's business plan and key strateqic geals;

<& set appropriate performance conditions in line with the agreed risk
profile of the business; and

< whilst the Committee does not consult directly with employees on
Executive Directors’ remuneration, the Committee does receive updates
regarding remuneration for employees across the Group. This is
considerad when determining the remuneration for the Directors

Consistent with the remuneration strategy, the Remuneration Committee
agreed a remuneration policy for the Executive Directors and Senior
Managers whereby:

<» salaries wili be set at competitive, but not excessive, levels compared to
peers and other companies of an equivalent size and complexity, and are
commensurate to the individual's performance and responsibility;

& perfermance-related pay, based on stretching targets, forms a
significant part of remuneration packages and cffers the potential for
competitive levels of total pay if targets are delivered; and

< there is an appropriate balance between short and longer-term
performance targets linked to delivery of the Group's strategic plan.

GEVERNAKCE FINANEIALS

The Remuneration Committee oversees the implementation of this pelicy
and seeks to ensure that the Executive Directors are fairly rewarded for
the Group's performance over both the short and long term, and that it
continues to support and reward the Executive Directors to achieve the
business strategy both operationally and over the longer term,

The Policy is reviewed annually by the Comemittee, to ensure that

changes are not required prior to the triennial shareholder vote. When

the Committee determines that changes are required it will formulate
proposals as appropriate and depending on the change required to consult
with ts shareholders about the amendments. Shareholder feedback is then
taken into consideration in finalising the Policy changes.

The Policy and its implementation are consistent with the six factors set
out in Provision 40 of the Code:

<& Clarity - our Policy is well understood by Management and has been
clearly explained to our shareholders;

£ Simplicity - the Committee is mindful of the need to avoid overly
complex remuneration structures which can be misunderstood and
deliver unintended outcomes. Our policy is set cut clearly and we have
avoided the use of complexincentive struetures, and pensich policy is
aligned throughout the organisation;

< Risk - our Remuneration Policy is designed to ensure that inappropriate
risk-taking is discouraged through the use of long-term performance
measurement, holding periods, shareholding requirements and malus
and clawback provisions;

O Predictability - our incentive plans are subject to individual caps on
maximum bonus opportunity and LTIP award levels and include
discretion if incentive outcomes are not appropriate;

< Proportionality - there is a clear link between individual awards, delivery
of strategy and cur long-term performance. In addition, the significant
role played by incentive/‘at-risk’ pay and the presence of malus and
clawback provisions ensures that poor perfarmance Is not rewarded; ard

<& Alignment to culture - our executive pay policies and operation
of policy are fully aligned to Ten Entertainment's culture, including
threugh the use of metrics in the incentive plans which align to the
Company strategy.

ENGAGING WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Committee welcomes dialogue with shareholders and seeks the views
of its major investors and investor bodies when considering significant
changes to the Directors’ Remuneration Policy and its operation. Any visws
and feedback from cur shareholders is considered by the Committee as
part of its annual review of Palicy and operation. The Committee also
considers shareholder feedback received in relation to the Directors’
Remuneration Report each vear following the AGM. Detail about specific
engagerment with shareholders in determining the Policy and its operation
from year to year is set out in the Annual Statement and the Arnual Report
on Remuneration,
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DIRECTSRS' REVUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

REMUNERATION OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTCRS

STRATEGIC REPIRT GOVERNANCE FINANCIALS

The fellowing mable sunmarises each element of the Exec Jtive Directors’ remuneration package, the Policy for how trese are operated and *heir link to the Company's strategy.

Element of pzy

Purpose and link to strategy

Operation

Maximum opportunity Performance metrics

Base salary Refiects the value of the individual and
their role. Takes account of
experience, skills and personal
centribution to Group strategy. Set at
a level to facilitate recruitment and
retention of suitably experienced
executives.

Rewards performance against specific
rear-term goals which are consistent
with the strategic direction of

the business.

Annual bonus plan

Acguisitan of shares with bonu
faclitates share ownership and
aligns the interests of executives
ard sharehclders.

Clawback and acquisition of shares
discourage excessive risk-taking ard
encourage a long-term view.

Base salaries will be reviewed annualiy. The Remuneration Committee will
consider the performance of the Group and the individual, the Executive
Director's experience and changes in responsibility or scope of the role, as well
as pay practices in relevant comparators of a broadly similar size and complexity
{with due account taken of both market capitalisation ard turnover).

Performance is assessed by the Cormnmittee over a one-year period against the
audited results of the Company, where relevant.

25% of any bonus in excess of target 1s paid in the Company's shares and Fas a
two-year hoid'ng period which continues post cessation of employment {with
Committee discretion in exceptional circurrstances to vary).

The Committee retains discretion to adjust the bonus that is oayable if it
considers the formulaic outcome (for botr the financial and non-financial
elernent) is not appropriate in the context of the underlying performance of the
Company, investor experience or employee reward outcorre,

Clawback and malus may be applied t all of the bonus {casr and share
element}, in the avent of:

[ rnatenal misstatement of the Company's financial statements;

1 an error in the computation of a bonus amount;

termination of service for gross miscanduct;
(iv) reputational damage, corporate “ailure; or

{v) failure of risk management.

There is no prescribed annual increase. The Committee  Takes into account the

is guiged by the wider workforce increases, but may also performance and personal
need to recognise ircreases in certain circumstances,  contribution of the individual
such as assurred additional responsibility, or anincrease and performance of

in the scope or size of the rale. the Company.

A bonus of up to a maxirrurmn of 100% of salary canbe  The Committes will select tre
awarded depending on the achievement of financial ana most appropriate metrics for
strategic targets. the arnual bonus to support

) the busiress strategy.
Net more than 20% of the maximam bonus epportunity

will be paid for threshold performance and 50% of
maximum for target performance

The majority of the an~ual
bonus will be based on
financial metrics.

Finzneial metrics are scaled
witn a threshold and maximumr
target achievement whick is set
by the Committee at the
beginning of the year, taking
into account the Group's
budget, econemic ervironment
and business outlook,

Ir. relation to non-financial
individual/strategic targets, the
structure of the target will vary
based on the nature of the
target set and it not always
be practicable to set targets
using a graduated scale.
Vesting may therefore take
place ir. full if specific criteria
are met in full.

Ten Entertainment Group ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022



DIRECTORS REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

STRATEGIC REPORT BOVERNANCE FINANCIALS

REMUNERATION OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS continued

Operation Maximum opportunity Performance metrics

Element of pay Purpose and link to strategy
Long-termincentive  Aims to ‘ncentivise and reward
awards long-term, sustainable growtn anc
retLrns to sharcholders.
Facilitates share ownership
theredy providing alignment
with shareholders.

Benefits To rerrain competitive in the
marketplace, and ‘o ensure minimal
disruption to the business.

Pension To facilitate retirement planning.

The LTIP awards are structured as nil-cost options, granted annually with
awards vesting on the third anniversa-y of award subject to achievernent of
performance conditions measured aver three years.

The normal award level is 150% of base salary
but a maximum opportunity of 200% of
salary can be approved by the Committee

in exceptional circumstances,

The Committee will select the
most aporopriate financial
metr cs to support the
Company's medium to

Vested awards granted from 2027 are subject to a holding period of two years long-term strateqy.

{subject to the right to sell sufficient shares to cover tax charges arising on
vesting) which continues post cessation of employment (the Committee nas
discretion to vary this in exceptional circumstances).

25% of the award vests for threshold performance.

The Committee retains discretion to adjust the level of vesting u~der the LTIP f
it considers the formulaic outcome is not appropriate in the context of the
vnaerlying cerformance of the Company, investor experience o- employee
reward outcome.,

Clawback may be applied, in the event of: (i} material misstatemnent of the
Company’s financal statements; (i) an error in the computation of a bonus
amount; (ili) termination of service for gross misconduct; (iv) reputational
damage; {v) corporate failure; or {vi) failure of nsk management.

There is ne prescribed maximum. The value of the
benefit is determined by the cost to the Company.

Not performance-related.
not limitea to, family private health cover, death in service life assu-ance and

reimbursement of travel expenses for any business—elated travel, including any

tax thereon grossed up, where appropriate.

Maximum contribution is the same as the workforee,
currently 3% of salary ser annum.

erinto a pension scheme, or paid as cash to the individual Not ngBw:n?&iﬁg.

Policy for Chairman and Non-Executive Directors’ fees

Chairman and
Non-Executive
Directors’ fees

Ta pay m‘u‘u‘ﬂ‘mvﬁamﬂm?‘\ﬂo‘;ﬁ h-
qJality and experienced Chairman
and Directors.

The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors are paid a basic anrual fee.
Supplemental fees may be paid for additional respensibilities ang activities,
including but net limited to, a multi-Committee Chairrran and the Senior
Independent Director,

There is no prescribed maximum fee or maximum
increase. Fees are set at a level to reflect the amount of
time and level of invelvement required in order to carry
out their duties as membaers of the Board anc its
Committees, There may be a need to recognise
increases in certain circumstances, such as assumed
additional responsibility [for example, taking on the
Chairmanship of a Committee or a temporary role or
increase in time commitment or responsibility) or an
increase in the scope or size of the role. Reasonable
expenses incurred by the Non-Executive Directors in
carrying out their duties will be reimbursed, including
any tax thereon grossed up, where appropriate,

Not performance-related,

The Chairman's fee 15 inclusive of all of his responsibllities.

PERFORMANCE METRICS

wom b ST

Perfomamde TS for tne ahmue bonus and TP are teviewed and et anmivally Dy tne Corrrritiee and wie aigned 1o e Groun's sirategy. Sireldning largets are set taking Into account interral pians and external market expectations
for the Corrpany, ecc-omic and business outlook. Achievement of the threshold target results in lower levels of rewards and the maximum target reflects significant out-performance.

FOLICY ON REMUNERATION FOR EMPLOYEES

The remuneration pol cy for all employees Is determined ir line w th best practice and aims to ensure that the Company is able to attract and retain the best people. This principle is followea in the development of our Directors’
Rermuneration Policy. The key difference between the Policy anc the wider Group's policy is that the Executive Directors’ packages (and the senior management team to a lesser extent) are weighted more to variable pay for those

employees idert

d as having the greatest patential to nfluence Grous-level performance.
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DIRECTORS' R:MUNERATION POLICY CONTINGED

COMMITTEE DISCRETIONS IN RESPECT OF ANNUAL BONUS
PLAN AND LTIP FOLICY

The Committee will aperate the Annual Bonus Plan and LTIP according to
the rules of each respective plan and consistent with normal market
practice and tre Listing Rules of the London Stock Exchange, including
flexibility in a "umber of aspects as detailed below but always within the
shareholder approved Pelicy (albeit with quantum and pe-formance targets
restrictec o the descrptions detailed above):

<& When to make awards and payrents

¢ How to dezermire the size of an award, a payment, or ~vhen and how
—nuch of an award should vest

& How to deal with a charge of control or restructuring cf the Group

& Whether a Directo- is a 'good’ or a ‘bad’ leaver for incentive plan
purposes and whether and what proportion of awards sest at the time of
leavirg or ct the original vesting date(s)

< How and whether ar award may be adjusted in certain zircumstances
(e.q. for arghts issue, a corporate restructuring or for cpecial dvidends)

< What the weighting, measures and targets should be for the Annual
Bonus Plan a~d LT17 from year to year

The Committes also retains the discration within the Policy to adjust targets
and/or set different measures and alter weightings for the Annual Benus
Plar, and for the LTiP if everts happen that cause it to determine that the
metrics are unable to fulfil their originally intended purpose, provided the
new metrics arz not materially less difficult to satisfy. Any ad:ustments will be
fully disclesed n the following year's Annual Report on Rem uneration.

The Committe= also has the discretion to amend the Policy for minor or
administrative matters where it would, in the op'nion of the Committee, be
disproportionae to seek shareholder approval,

All historic awa-ds that were granted under any current or previous snare
schemes opersted by the Company, but remain outstandirg, detailed on
page 66, remain eligibl2 to vest based on their original awa d terms.

SHAREHOLDING REQUIREMENTS

To provide alig- men? between shareholders and Directors, the Executive
Directors are required to build up a holding of sharas in the Company of
200% of salary aver a period of five years.

The pest-cessation of employment shareholding policy requires the
Executive Directos to rztain snares from FY21 and future annual bonus and
LTIP awards eqLal to 100% of salary for one vear post cessation, Annual
bonus and LTIP holding perinds also continue post cessation of
employrrent. In exceptional circumstances the Committee has the
discretion to adust these requirements.

STRATEGIC REPORT

SERVICE AGREEMENTS AND PAYMENTS FOR LOSS OF OFFICE
OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service agreerment with
the Compary. The policy is that eacr Executive Director’s service
agreement should be of ‘ndefinite duration, subject to termination by the
Company or the indivicual on six months’ notice. The service agreements
of all =xecutive Directors comply with this policy. The contracts contain a
payment in lieu of notice clause which is limited to base salary only and
there is no loss of office payment due. These service contracts are available
for inspection at the Group's registered office.

Any share-based entitlements granted to an Executive Director under the
Company's share plans will be determined based on the relevant plan rules.
The default treatment under the LTIP is that any outstanding awards lapse
on cessation of employment. However, in certain prescribed circumstances,
such as death, ill-health, disability, redurdancy, retirement or other
circumstances, at the discretion of the Committee 'good leaver' status may
be applied. For good leavers, awards from 2021 will normally vest on the
orniginal vesting date, subject to the satisfaction of the retevan® performance
conditions tested at the end of the performance period and reduced
pro-rata to reflect the proportion of the three-yvear period actually served
{and awards granted prior to 2021 will normally vest on cessation with
Cormmittee discretion to vest at the normal time). However, the Commiittee
has discretion in exceptional circurnstances to determine that awards vest
at an earlier date and/or to disapply time pro-rating. Except in exceptional
circumnstances, the post-vesting hoiding period continues to apply post
cessation of employment. On a change of control, LTIP awards will vest
with performance being determined at that time and awards will be
pro-rated to the date of the change of control. The Committee reta’ns
discretion to reduce the proration including to zero.

Pro-rata bonus may be paid to 'good leavers' for the period of active service
based on performance tested at the wsual time. In all cases, performance
targets would apply.

Anr.ual bonus shares are owned from the day of acquisition, and are not
forfeited on cessation of employment. The holding period {exceptin
exceptional circumstances) continues post cessation and clawback applies

Legalfees, or a contributior ‘owards them, In connection with any
settlernent agreement and other reasonable relevan? costs associated with
termination including outplacernent consultancy fees may be paid i this is
considered appropriate. The Company may alse make a statutory payment
and a payment to settle any claim or potential claim in relation to the
termination of employment.

RECRUITMENT POLICY

The remuneration package for a new Executive Director (including those
promoted internally) would be set in accordance with the terms of the
Company's prevailing approved Rermuneration Policy at the tirme of
appointrment, with annual bonus maximum oppertunity of 100% of salary
and LTIP award level maximum 200% of salary.

GOVERNANCE FINANCIALS

The Committee may, in exceptional cireumistances, grant an award under a
different structure in order to facilitate the buyout of outstanding awards
held by an individual on recruitrent. Any buyout award would be limited to
what the Cormmittee considers to be a fair estimate of the value of awards
faregone when leaving the former employer and will be structured, o ths
extent possible, to take into account other key terms (such as vesting
schedute, delivery vehicle and performance targets) of the awards which
are being replaced.

For aninternal Executive Director appointment, any variable pay element
awarded in respect of the orior role may be allowed to pay out according to
its terms, adjusted as relevant to take into account the appointment. |+
addition, any other ongoing remuneration obligations existing prior to
appeointment may continue, For external and intermal appointments, the
Committee may agree that the Compary will meet certain relocation and
other incidental expenses as appropriate.

EXTERNAL BOARD APPOINTMENTS

Where Board approval is given for an Executive Director to accept an
outside non-executive directorship, the individual is ertitled to retain any
faes received.

CHAIRMAN AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Non-Executive Directors are engaged for fixed terms. The Chairrnan
has a notice pericd of three manths and the Non-Executive Directors have
a notice period of one month. These appointments are subject to the
Company's Articles of Association, All Directors submit tremselves for
re-glection at the Annual General Meeting in accordance witk the UK
Corporate Governance Code.

STATEMENT OF CONDITIONS ELSEWHERE IN THE GROUP

The Committee considers pay and employment conditions across the
Company whern reviewing the remuneration of ~he Executive Directors and
other senior employees. In particular, the Corrmittee considers the range
of base pay increases across the Group when reviewing Executive Director
salary increases.

The Committee supports the Beard's inftiative to implement a robus:
framework for employee engagement and regular cormmunication, and is
building its understanding of pay and oenefits at all team member lavels in
the Group. During 2022, engagement with our employees has continued as
a focus on their health and wellbeing. The Committee does not currently
engage with employees to explain the alignment of Executive remuneration
to the wider workiorce but will consider this during 2023 now the Group
has returned to more normal trading levels. The Committee aic not cons.lt
witn employees in determining this Policy. The Company does not use
remuneration comparison reasurements except to refer to market pay
data where relevant.
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ANNUALREPDRT BN REMUNERATION

STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDER VOTING AT THE AGM

The following table shows the results of the votes cast by proxy or the
Directors’ Rem.neration Report at the Annual General Meeting held on

4 May 2022 and the Directoss’ Remuneration Policy at the Annual General
Meeting held o~ 5 May 2021:

Approval of Directors’ >vv3<w. of Directors’
Remuneration Report Remunaration Policy

Total % of Total % of

number votes number votes

Company of votes cast of votes cast

For 51,974,834 83.08% 51,884,203 82.77%

Against 10,584,787 16.92% 10,800,270 17.23%
Total votes cast 52,559,621 62,684,563
Withheld — 1,138

ENGAGEMENT WITH SHAREHOLDERS

As noted in the "\~ nual Statement by the Remuneratior Cormmittee

Chair”, the Chair 2ngaged with shareholders in April 2022 regarding the
Remuneration Report and the Cemmittee’s approach to determining the
FY21 Annual Borws Plan pay-out. With the trienrial shareholder vote on the
Rermuneration Pclicy due at the 2024 AGM, the Chair will be engaging again
with shareholders during 2024 to seek their feedback on any propoesed
changes to the Remuneration Policy and operation of policy for Fy24.

DETERMININCG EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REMUNERATION

The Committee considers the appropriateness of the Executive Directors'
rerruneration, not only in the context of overall business performance and
enwironmental, governance and sccial matters, but also in the context of
wider workforce pay conditions (taking into account workforce policies and
practices as well as the rat o of CEO pay to all-employee pay) ard the external
market including paer reviews, to ensure that it is fair ard appropnate for the
rale, experience of the irdividual, responsibilities and performance delivered,
Further, the Comm ittee is comfortable. in reviewing the remuneration for
2022, that as expla ned in the Remuneration Committee Chair's Anrual
Statement, there has been an appropriate link between reward and
performance and that tre Policy has operated as intended.

SINGLE TOTAL FIGURE OF REMUNERATION (AUDITED)

STRATEGIC REPORT

GOVERNANCE

The table below sets out the single total figure of remuneration and brearxdown for each Director in respect of FY22 and FY21.

FINANEIALS

Total variable

Salary/Fees Benefits Pension Total fixed pay Bonus LTIP* pay Total

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022

£000 €000 EDOG EQO0 £000 €000 EOOD EOQOD E£000 EDOD EDOO E£D0O0 £000 £000 £000 £000
Graham
Blackwell 310 310 — — 9 3 319 319 310 2719 568 157 878 436 1497 755
Antony
Senith 2460 260 5 7 10 10 275 27 260 234 476 170 736 404 1,011 675
Adam
Bellamy 110 73 - - — — 110 93 - — - — - — 110 93
Jujie
Sneddon 50 50 - — - 50 50 - - - - — — 50 50
Laura
May 50 33 - — - 5o 33 - — — — - — 50 33
Sangita
Shah 8 - - - - - 8 — - — - - - — 8 -
Christopher
Mills 50 50 - — - — 50 50 - — — — — — 50 Lo
Total 838 196 5 1 19 17 862 816 570 513 1,044 327 1,614 840 2,476 1,656

1 The LTIP awards that vested in 2021 vested at a share price of £2 55 and a total vaiue of £157k for the CEQ and £173k for the CFO and is reflected in the table. This was higher
than the estimated vesting level and three-month average vesting share price disclosed in the prior year's report, For 2022, the share price on the date of grant of the 2020
LTIP award that will vest in 2023 was £1.99 conrpared to a share price assurned for the vesting value of £2.43 being the three-month average share price to 1 January 2023 and

reflecting a share price increase of £0.44, This is an estimate of the vesting va

ue, with actua’ perfermance of the TSR element being deterrnined in Novemnber 2023,

Neither of the two Executive Directors serve on the Board as Executive or Non-Executive Directors of listed or non-listed external companies not related to
the Group, nor have they received remuneration for work from other companies not related to the Group.

ANNUAL BONUS FY22

The FY22 bonus structure provided for a maximum opportunity at 100% of salary and continued to be weighted basec on 70% cn financial metrics and 30%
on strategic objectives. The performance payment ranges were set taking into account the level of stretch in the targets set and are summarised as follows:

Objective Thresheold Target Maximum
Group Adjusted Profit Before Tax 7.0% 17.5% 35%
Free cash flow 70% 17.5% 35%
Financial metrics 14.0% 35.0% 70.0%
Estate management & development 3.0% 7.5% 15%
Development of bespoke app 1.5%
ESG strategy creation and TCFD reporting 7.5%
Strategic objectives 6.0% 15.0% 30.0%
Total benus pay-out 20.0% 50.0% 100.0%
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ANNLALREPRT ON REMUNERATIN CONTINGED

Financial metrics

The two financial metrics chosen which combine equally t the 70% pay-out weighting were set and achieved
as follows:

Opportunity

STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNANCE HNANEIALS

FY22 Annual Bonus achievement

Payable as:
Director Basic Achievement Bonus In cash In u_..w,.qmm
Graham Blackwell £310,000 100% £370,000 £271,250 £38,750
Antony Smith £260,000 100% £260,000 £227,500 £32,500
£570,000 £570,000 £498,750 £71,250

Threshold Target Maximum Actual payable
Group Adjusted PBT £14.4m £18.4m £22.4m £26.1m 35% maximum
Free cash flow £16.8m £21.8m £24.8m £27.2m 35% maximum
Bonus pay out % 14.0% 35.0% T70.0% 70% maximum
CEQ and CFO strategic objectives
Perforrmance against the strategic oojectives is set out below:
Cpportunity
Strategic objectives Threshold Target Maximum Scoring payable
Estate Management &
Development 11 13 15 15 15% of maximum
Development of
bespoke App See below Achieved 7.5% of maximum
ESG strategy creation
and TCFD reporting See below Achieved 7.5% of maximum
Bonus pay-out % &% 15% 30% 30% of maximum

Estate Management & Development ~ The Commitiee determined that it s appropriate to review and score the
elerments of the bonus relating to estate management and development together, taking into azcount that the
elements competed with each other for capital expenditure ard managemen® resources.

The Cammittee also considered the Executive achievarment besed on ongeing discussions witr the Board
throughout the year concerning the agrecd imperative of project delivery cuality on all refurbishments ard new
sites, ard delays cutside of the Executive team's control with site acquisitions and new builds in the pipeline {such
2s planring permissions and licensing consents for Crewe and Milton Keynes). These delays would have meant that
15 new sites/refurs’shment prolects would have been completed and hence maximum bonus pay-out be awarded.
In respect of site acjuisitions and new builds, the Committee nated the site acquisition at Harlow and subseguent
opening in record time and the new-build opening at Walsall. In addition, the business completed a number of
significant capital projects, including the development and instellation of new scoring systems and synthetic lane
overtays, alt delivered in tandem with the full refurbishment programme.

Development of bespoke App - Development and delivery of the Tenpin App was a key digital strategic pricrity for
tre business 'n 2022 as was set as a strategic objective. The tarcet would either be achieved or not and being a key
priority, was given maximum pay-out. This objective was achieved and the 7.5% pay-out was awarded.

ESG strategy creation and TCFD reporting - Managerment was raquired to develop and deliver to the Board, a fully
develcped ESG strategy including the development and setting Lp of systems and processes to ensure information
gatherng and measurement for forward-locking target setting anc disclosure. The target would either be achieved
or not and being a significant new requirement, was given maxirrum day-out. This objective was achieved and the

7.5% pay-out was awarded.

The Rernuneration Policy provides that 25% of the bonus paid over target will be paid in shares subject to a
two-year holding peried.

LTIPS GRANTED IN 2022

On 30 Marcn 2022 the Executive Directors were granted LTIP of 150% of salary each as summarised:

Number Percentage
of shares  Share price Face value vesting at
subject to on date of of awards threshold Performance
Director Position award grant granted performance period
Chief
Graham Executive 3years to FY24
Blackwell Officer 178,167 261p £465,000 25% for EPS
Artony ﬂ.?mm . ;
Srmith Tjwzom_ 3 years from date
Officer 149,425 267p £390,000 25% of grant for TSR
Total awards
granted 327,586

The vesting of awards is determined as to 50% by earnings pe snare targets and 50% by total shareholder return,

(1) EPS CONDITION

The earnings per share {'EPS') condition will be calculatec on the results for the year to 2% December 2024 ('FY24')
and will apply *o 50% of the total number of share awards granted The proportion of the awards vesting for the EPS
proportion will be based on the following adjusted EPS targets in FY24:

FY24 EPS Percentage of award that vests
Less than 20.50p 0%
20.50p 12.5%
20.50p-23.50p 12.5%-50%
More than 23.50p 50%

Straight-line vesting in between threshold and maximum.
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ANKUAL REPGRT ON REMUNERATIGN ENNTIRHER

{2) TSR CONDITION

The sotal shareholcer return 'TSR') of the Company wilt be measured over the period from the date of grant to the
trire anniversary of the date ¢f grant relative to a comparato- greup of companies (set cut in the following table)
and this will apply to the remaining 50% of the award.

Young & Co.'s Brewery

Marston's
Fuller Smith & Turner
The Ful*arm Shorc

Restaurant Group

Hollywood Bowl

The Gym Group

Loungers
Everyman Media
City Pub Group

The extert to which the award wili vest in accordance with the TSR con

on is tabled as follows:

TSR performance against Comparator Group Companies

Percentage of award that vests

Below Median
Median

Between “edian and Median plus 10% per annum

Mediar plus 10% per annum and above

0%
12.5%

Between 12.5% and 50% on a straight-line basis

50%

To the extent that any performance cordition is nct met, the relevant part of the award will lapse. There is no
retesting of performance. Furthermore, the Committee has the discretion to adjust the level of vesting if in all the
circumstances 't does not consider it to be appropriate.

PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN ('PSP’) (AUDITED)

LTIP awards are granted as ril-cost options. The below tabiz reflects the outstanding Executive Directors’ interests

in _TIPs.
Awards Awards Face
asat2é asat value
Date of Vesting December Lapsed 1January Grant of2022
award date 2021 Awarded Exercised inyear® 2022 price awards

Antony
Smith 17/05/2001% 11052022 133,333 - 66,6671 [bb,bbE) - - -
30/11/2020 30/11/2023 195,489 — — — 195,48%  £1.99 £389,023
15,70/2021 14/10/2024 144,981 - — — 144981 E£274 £397248
30./03/2022 30/03/2025 - 149,425 — — 149,425  £2.61 £390,000

Graham
Blackweli 17/05/2019 17/05/2022 123,333 — [ENB6T) (81,666) - - -
30/11/2020 3041142023 233,083 — — —  233,0B3 E199 £463,835
15/10/2021 14/70/2024 172,862 - - — 172,862 E2.74 E473 642
30/03/2022 30/03/2025 — 78,161 — 178,161  £2.61 £465,000

These awares lapsed fo'lowing review of the re'svant performance conditions by the Commuttee in 2022.

STRATEGIC REPERT

GOVERNANCE

FINAL VESTING OUTCOME FOR LTIPS GRANTED IN 2019

The 2019 LTIPs vested on 17 May 2022, As reflected in the FY21 Annual Report, the £PS targets were not achievec
but the TSR target was expected to be achleved, and the expected value based on expected vesting was estimated
and reported at £6%k for the CEO and £74k for the CFO. On 18 May 2022, Graharn Blackwell and Antony Smiths
options vested. The TSR element, which was 50% of the total award, vested in full as set out below. The urderpin
for these awards which required the average three-month share price to vesting to exceed the share price on

grant of £2.25 was achieved with an average share price to vesting of £2.51.

FINANEIALS

Awards Number  Actual
esat 26 of  share
Date of Vesting Performance December Performance Actual awards priceon Value of
award date measure 2021 targets performance vesting wvesting award
Craham 257pto Ne
Blackwell 17/05/201%  17/05/2022 EPS 61,666 27.3p 27p vestirg — —
Median to Above
upper upper
TSR 1,667 quartile® quartile 61,667 €255 £157,251
Antony 257pto No
Smitk V0572009 17/05/2022 £PS b6,666 27.3p 2.1p vesting — -
Median to Above
upper
TSR 66,667 quartile* £2.55 £170,001

* The peer group set out below appies to the 2019 LTIP award. A new peer group has bee~ used for awards from 2020 going forward.

Britvic
Cinewarld
Easy HMotels

Fuller Smith & Turner

Pendragon

Goals Soccer

The Gym Group

Hollywood Bowl Group

Pets at Home

FPhoto-me

Revolut'on Bars
STV Group

LTIPS GRANTED IN 2020 WITH PERFORMANCE PERIOD ENDING IN FY22

On 30 Novernber 2020, LTIP awards were granted to Graham Blackwell and Antony Smith. The awards were alt
granted at a ‘ace value of 150% of salary based on a share price of £1.99. The vesting of awards is conditional upon
the achievement of two performance conditions, »eing EPS which applies to 50% of the award and is measured
over three financial years to FY22 and TSR which applies to the other 50% measured to the third anniversary of the

date of grant.
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

{1) EPS CONDITION

The proportion of the awards vesting for the EPS proportion are based on the following adjusted EPS ta-gets in FY22:

Percentage of

2020 scheme EPS target in FY22 award that vests

Less than 17.0p 0%
17.0p 12.5%
17.0p-23.0p 12.5%-50%

Mare than 23.0p 509

The maximum ta-get for adjusted EPS was set at 23.0p. The actual performance was an adjusted EPS of 22.3p
{aadited); therefa-e the whale EPS part of the award will vest,
(2) TSR CCNDITION

The TSR will be calculated against the following comparator group of companies over the last 30 days of the
performance period to cetermine i the performance condition has been met

STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNANCE FIRANLIALS
Three-
Awards month
asat1 Number average
Date of Vesting Performance January Performance Actual ofawards  share Value of
award date measure 2023 targets performance  vesting price Award
As per
Graham 3071172020 30/11/2023 EPS 116,541 above 263p 116,541 £2.43 £283,19%
Blackwell As per
TSR 116,542 above 100% 116,542 £2.43  £283197
As per
Antony 3071172020 30/11/2023 EPS 97744 above 293p 97744 243 £237518
Smith As per
TSR 97,745 above 100% 97,745 E2.43 £237520

Young & Co.s Brewery Restaurant Group Loungers
Everyrnan Media

City Pub Group

Marsta's Hollywood 3owl
Fuller Smith & Torner

The Fulham Shore

The Gym Group

The extent to which the award will vest in accordance with the TSR condition is tabled as follows:

TSR performance against Comparator Group Companies Percentage of award that vests

PERFORMANCE CONDITIONS FORFY21 LTIP AWARD

The perfermance conditions or the LTIP awards granted on 15 October 2021 ae set out below.

EPS CONDITION

The award is based on 50% of adjusted earnings per share ['EPS') targets as set out below ard measured in FY23:

2021 scheme Percentage of award that vests

Less than 17.5p 0%
17.5p 12.5%
17.5p-20.5p 12.5%-50%
More than 20.5p 50%

Below Median 0%
Median 12.5%
Between Media~ and Median plus 10% per annum Between 12.5% and 50% on a straight-line basis

Median plus 10% per anaum and above 50%

Based on an assassment of the Comoany TSR performance against the cormparater group to 31 January 2023,
100% of the awz -d is exsected to vest. Actual vesting will be determired at the end of the performance period and
will be set cut 'n the 2023 Remuneration Report.

The below table summarises the 2020 scheme awards, perfarmance measures, targets and performrance and the
expected value of the awards as explained before. For awards to vest the average share price for the three months
prior to vesting must exceed the share price on the date of grant of £1.99

Straight-line vesting in between threshold and maximum.

TSR CONDITION

The other 50% of the award is based on relative TSR which will be calculated against the same comparator group
set out for the 2020 award for the one month ending on the third anniversary of the date of grant. The extent to
which the award would vest in accordance with the TSR condition is tabled as follows:

Percentage of award that vests
Below Median 0%
Median 12.5%
Between Median and Median plus 10% per annurm

TSR performance against Comparator Group Companies

Between 12.5% and 50% on a straight-line basis

Med an plus 10% per annum and above 50%

The TSR peer group is the same group that applies to the FY20 and FY22 awards as set out above,
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ANNUAL REFORT ON REMLINERATICN CONTINUED

OPERATION EF REMLUNERRTION POLICY IN 2023
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' SALARIES

Chief Executive Officer: £3°2,300

Chief Financia] Officer: £262,300
The salaries we-e increased by £2,300 for 2023.
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' FEES

The faes for the Non-Executive Chairman and Non-Executive Directors have bean increased for 2023 by £2,300.

2023 2022
Nen-Executive Chairmran £112,300 £170,000
Neon-Executive Directors £52,300 £50,000
Senior independent Director £5.000 £5,000

BENEFITS AND PENSION

Benefits remain in line with those provided in FY22.

ANNUAL BEONUS PLAN

The Executive Directors’ maximum annual bonus opportunity remains at 100% of salary and continues to be

based 70% on f nancial metr ¢s and 30% on strategic objectives. The Rernuneration Committee considers that the
detailed serformance targets for the FY23 annual bonus plan are commercially sensitive and that disclosing the
specific targets 'n advance would not be in shareholder inte-ests. The set targets, the actual performance achieved,
and the awards made will be disclosed in the FY23 Remuneration Report so that shareholders can fully assess the
basis for any pavouts under the annual bonus plan. A high ieve] review of the metrics is summarised below:

< Financial merics - the two financial metrics set are Grous Adjusted Profit Before Tax and Free Cashfiow as per
prior year. 8cth measures have equal weighting.

& Strategic objectives - Strategic objectives have been setir respect of Estate Managerment & Development and
achievement of ESG -argets.

PERFORMANCE SHARE AWARDS

It is the Committee's intention to grant the Executive Directors performance share awards at the sarme level as
FY22, 150% of salary, although awarc levels will be confirmed at the time of grant taking into account the prevailing
share price. Awards will contiue to be based as to 50% on EPS and 50% TSR.

Set outin the table below are tre TSR and EPS targets for tha awards.

2023 scheme Percentage of award that vests
Less tha~ 36.0p 0%
36.0p 12.5%
360pto42.0p 12.5%-50%
More than 42.0p 50%

STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNANCE FINANLIALS

TSR CONDITION

The other 50% of the award is based an relative TSR which will be calculated agairst the same comparator group
set out for the 2022 award for the one month ending on the third anniversary of the date of grant. The extent to
which the award would vest in accordance with the 7SR condition 1s tabled as follows:

TSR performance against Comparator Group Companies Percentage of award that vests

Below Median

0%
Median 12.5%
Between Median and Median plus 10% per annum Between 12.5% and 50% on a straigh*-line basis
Median plus 10% per annum and above 50%

PAYMENT UNDER DIFFERENT PERFORMANCE SCENARIOS

Under the Directo s’ Remuneratior Renorting Regulations, we are required to show a ba“-chart ind'cating the level
of remuneration which would be received by the Executive Directors in 2022 under different payment scenarios.
The charts provide an illustration of the proportion of total remuneration made up of each component of
remuneration and the value of each component. The assumptions noted for target performance i the graprs

following are provided for illustration purposes only. Three scenarios have been illustrated for each Executive
Directar:

CEQ - £000

Phasirnirn Py o] s picn st

B Pl & Shot tomm incontives el boms]  WLTI. 20 LT0P with S0% showo prics qroadk

LTIPs with

Short-term
incentives 50% share
Fixed ({annual bonus} LTEPs price growth
Fixed pay £322
Target pay £6B7 22% 31%
Maximum pay {excl shae price growth) £1,052 29% 40%
Maximum pay (incl share price growth}) £1,263 24% 33% 7%
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ANNUAL REPORT DN REMUNERATION CONFIRUED

CFG - 2000

W Pl 3 Showt torm incortieos aesl bomsy WIS 5 LTI with 50% shoso prico groth

Short-term LTIPs with
incentives 50% share
Fixed (annual bonus) LTIPs price growth
Fixedpay £277
Target pay £534 22% 3%
Maximum pay (excl share price growth) £8%0 29% 40%
Maximum pay (incl share price growth) £1,067 24% 33% 179%

<& Fixed pay - consists of salary, benefits ana pension contributions
<» Target pay - is fixed pay plus 50% of annual bonus (50% of salary) a~d 50% of LTIP award (75% of salary)

< Maximum pay - is fixed remuneration, 100% annual banus (1009 of salary) and 100% of the LTIP award {150%
of salary for the CEC and CFO} with 50% of share price growth for the LTIP award also illustrated

COMPARISON OF OVERALL PERFORMANCE

The below tatle refiects the performance of an investrment in £100 in the Group against the same investment in the
FTSE All Share on a morthly basis since the date of listing in Aprit 2017 until the #nancial year ended on 1 January
2023. The FTSE All Share has been chosen as the comparator index as the Company has been a const'tuent of the
index since lisTing.

STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNANCE FINARCIALS

TEG Share Price performance versus FTSE Al Share

e 7
my - = = E

B AaEZBERE m
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER HISTCRIC REMUNERATION

The table below sets out the total remuneration delivered to the Chief Executive Officer since the Company listed.

Chief Executive Officer
single figure of total

Annual bonus payout
against maximum

Leng-term incentive vesting
rates against maximurm

remuneration opportunity opportunity
Year £000 % %
2022 1197 100% 100% )
2021 755 F0% 50%
2020 371 0% 219%
2019 349 9% NAA
2018 330 0% N/A
2017 206 0% NAA

The 2621 amount has changed from £468k to £755k as the actua’ value of the LTIPs that vestec was £87x higer, with the ful
50% of the TSR condition vesting.

2022 LTIP vesting is based on tne full 50% for the EPS condition vesting and assumptions on likely vesting of TSR
element. Actual vesting percentage will be set out in the 2023 Remuneration Reoort.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO EMPLOYEE RATIOS

Year 25¢h percentile EOth percentile 75th percentite
2022 21 65 £3
2021 52 38 36
2020 58 31 20

Ten Entertainment Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022



ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION EGRTIRUED

Total UK employee aay and benefits figures used to calculats the 2022 CEQ pay ratio s set out n the table below:

£000 CEO 25thpercentile  50th percentile 75th percentile
Salary 310 13 18 18
Total pay 1,797 13 8 19

The table abowe sets out the CEO pay -at'o for 2020 to 2022, The ratics have been calculated in accordance with
Opton A, as th'sis the most accurate metrod of calculation. The CEO pay is per the single total figure of
remuneration for 2022, The pay for the CEQ is compared te the pay of our UK employees at the 25th, 50th and
75th percertile calculated based on full-time equivalent base pay data as at 1 Jaruary 2023. As ratios could be
unduly impacted by joiners and leavers wiro may not partic pate in all remuneration arrangements in the year of
ioining and leaving, the Committee has excluded ary employee not employed throughout the whole financial
year. Emoloyees on mater-ity are included pro-rata for thei- FTE salary. benefits and short-term incertives.

No other calcu ation adjustments or assumptions have been made. There is an increase in the ratio at the 50th
anc 75th percentiles from 2021 to 2022 because the CEO bas received an annual borus as have other eligibte
employees, and ar est mated LTIP vesting that is higher than in 2021 with the CEO's vanable pay potential being
higher tnan cther eligible employees reflecting his rele in the business and balance between fixed and vanianle pay.
The Rerunerazion Committee is satisfied the median pay “atio is consistert with the pay, reward and progression
polcies of the Zompany's employees.

The relative irrportance of remureration 'n relation to other significant uses of the Group’s cash is set out below:

1 January 26 December

% 2023 200

change £000 £000

Total staff costs 57.0% 28,588 18,208
Dividends pad 100% 2,055 —

PERCENTAGE CHANGE IN DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Average percentage change  Average percentage change
2021-2022 . 2020-2021

Average percentage change
20192020

Annual
Bonus

Annual
Bonus

Annyal

Salary Benefits Salary Benefits Salary Benefits  Bonus

Adam Bellanry! 17.9% 0.0% 0.0% 82 4% 0.0% 0.0% 1.7% 0.0% 0.0%
Graharm Blac<well 0.0% 0.0% 11.1% 41.6% 0.0% 100.0% 209% 100.0% {100.0%)
Antory Smity 0.0% 351.0% 11.1% 2z2.0% 0.0% 100.0%  349%  1M1.7% {100.0%)
‘ulie Sneddon 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 4 2% 0.0% 0.0% {3.3%) 0.0% 0.0%
Laura May? 50.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Sangita Shat-+ 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Christopher vills 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 4.2% 0.0% 0.0% 13.3%) 0.0% 0.0%
Average

emnployees 29.0% 54.2%  31.8% 2:9% 172%  100.0% (5.5%) (15.0%) {100.0%)

1 Adam Bellamy was appeinted as Chairman an & May 2021 and a full year at his new fee reflects the increase
2 Laura May was appointed on & May 2021 and a ful’ year reflects the increase,

3 Sangita Shab was azpointed on 1 November 2022 and no pricr year reflects the increase.

STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNANCE FINANCIALS

PAYMENTS TO PAST DIRECTORS/PAYMENTS FOR LOSS OF OFFICE {(AUDITED)

There were no Director resignations in the year and there have been no payments to past Directors for loss
of office.

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS AND SHARE INTERESTS AS AT 1 JANUARY
2023 (AUDITED)

The number of shares of the Company in which Directors, and thelr connected persons, had a beneficial interest
and details of long-term incentive interests as at 1 January 2023 are set cut in the table below:

Shares held at Unvested LTIP interests with
Director 1 January 2023 performance conditions
Graham Blackwell 80,225 584,106
Antory Smith 86,180 483 RS
Christopher Mills! 10,796,727 —
Julie Sneddon 80,000 -
Adam Bellarmy 40,000 —

Laura May — -
Sangita Shah — —

N

The number of ordirary shares shown as held vy Christopher Mills includes ordinary shares he.d by certain funds of which
Farwood Capital LLP is the discretionary fund manager

Christopher Mills disposed of 14,227 shares in laruary 2023, but there have been no further changes in these
holdings since then until the date this report has been approved.
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ANNUAL REPORT DY REMUNERATION CENTINUED

SHAREHOLDING REQUIREMENT

The Exacutive Biractors are required to build up a shareholdirg equivalent to 2009 of base salary over five vears
from the later of cate of appointment and the approval of the new policy. The shareheldng requirement has not yet
been met by either Executive Director but will increase in FY23 as 25% of the FY22 annual bonus in excess of target
is paid out in sharas along with the 2020 LTIP award of shares

Number of shares held Shares held
Director at 1 January 2023 as a % of salary’
Graham Blackwe 80,225 &6
Antony Smith 86,180 84

1. Ce'cuated on basis of three-month average snare price to 1 Janua-y 2023, using sa'aries at 1_anuary 2023

ADVISERS TO THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Korn Ferry have continued to provids indesendent advice to the Remunerat'on Committee, providing advice to the
Committee as required, Korn Ferry does not provide any other services to the Company, and the Committee 1s
comfortable that its advice 's independent and objective, Fees incurred in respect of advice provided to the
Committee by Korn Ferry during the yea- amounted to £12,22¢.

The Remureration Report was approved by the Board a-d signad on its behalf by:

JULIE SNEDDON
CHAIR OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
22MARCH 2023

STRATEGIC REPDRT

GOYERNANCE

FINARCIALS
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Direcors have pleasure in presenting their report and the audited
financial szatements for the Group for the 53 weeks ended 1 January 2023.

Ten Ertertainment GroLp plc {the 'Compary’ or the ‘parent company') is a public Iimited company. The
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the 53-week period ended 1 January 2023 cormprise the
Company and its subsidiaries {together referred to as the 'Group').

Additional information which 's incorporated by reference into this Directors’ Report, including information required
in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 anc the Listing Rule 9.8.4R of the UK Financial Conduct Authority’s
Listing Rules. and which includes infermation on future business developrmerts, can be located as follows:

the Group's Strategic Report is set out o0 pages 2 to 44;

future business developments on page 4 and pages 5 to B;

the Chairman's statement on page 4;

the Chief Executive Oficer's statement on pages 5 1o 8;

a deseription cf the business structure, model and strategy on pages 10 to 14;

the key performance indicators on pages 18 to 19;

the discussicn of risk management, uncertaint'es and the longer-term viability staternent or pages 39 1o 44;
the Financial Raview on pages 33 to 38;

the ESG Report on pages 20 to 29, including details of greenhouse gas emissions;

details of long-zerm incertive schemes included in the Remuneration Report on pages 57 to 71; and
> the Statemens f Directors’ "esponsibilities on page 75

R R A Ry

Together, this i~fo mation is intended to provide a fair, balanced and understandable analysis of the devalopment
and performance of the Group's business during the year, and its position at the end of the vear, its strategy, likely
developments and any principal risks and unceartainties associated with the Group’s business.

Detalls of the Groud's policy on addressing financial risks and details about financial instruments are shown in

Note 23 to the Gro up financial statements on pages 103 to 104. The sections of the Annual Report dealing with
corporate governance, the repo-ts of the Nomination Committes and Audit Committee and the Directors’
Remnuneration Report set out on pages 52 to 71 inclusive are hereby incorporated by reference into this Directors'
Report. Tne Directers’ remuneration is tabled by Director by category on page 64, For the purposes of compliance
with the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules 'DTR') 4.1.5R(2) and DTR 4.1.8R, the required content of the
"™Maragement Report' can be found in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Repert, including the sections of the
financial staterrents and Arnual Report incorporated by reference.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Detalls of how the Cirectors have engaged with employees and other stakeholders, and had regard to the interests
of employees and tie need to foster the Company's business relationsrips with suppliers, customers and others,
and tre effect of that regard, including on the principal decisions taken by the Company during the financial year,
are set out in the staterment regardirg 5172(1) of the Companies Act 2006 on pages 30 to 32.

STRATEGIC REPERT GOVERNANCE FINANCIALS

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company who were in office during tre year and up to the gate of signing the financial
statements are:

Directors

Graham Blackwell
Antony Smith
Adam Bellamy
Laura May
Christopher Mills
lulie Sneddon

Sangita Shah Joined 1 November 2022

The roles and biographies of the Directors as at the date of this report are set out on page 46 to 47, Tre
appointment and replacement of Directors is governed by the Articles of the Company, the UK Corporate
Governance Code, the Companies Act 2006 and related legislation. Subject to the Articles of Azsociation,
the Companies Act 2006 and any directions given by special resolution, the business of the Company is
managed by the Board, which may exercise all the powers of the Company,

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS

The number of ordinary shares of the Company in which the Directors were beneficially interested as at * January
2023 are set out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report en page 70.

Other than these ordinary shares acquired, there have not been any changes in the interests of the Directors,
including share options and awards, in the share capital of the Company between the year end ard 21 March 2023
None of the Directors have a beneficial interest in the shares of any subsidiary. In line with the Companies Act 2006,
the Board has clear procedures for Directors to formally disclose any actual or potential conflicts to the whole Boarg
for authorisation as necessary. All new conflicts are required to be disclosed as and when they arise. There is an
annual review of conflicts disciosed and authonsations given. The register of Directors’ conflicts is maintained by
the Company Secretary.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

The Company's Articles provide, subject to the provisions of UK legislation, an indermnity for Directors and officers
of tha Company and the Group in respect of liabilities they may incur i the discharga of the'r duties or in the
exarcise of their nowers.,

The Directors are all covered by a Directors’ and Officers' liabifity insurance policy maintained by the Company with
a qualifying third-party indemnity insurance company which was in force during the financial year and also at the
date of approval of the financizl statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results for the year are set out in the consclidated statement of comprehensive income on page 81 and
discussed in greater detall in the Financial Review on pages 33 to 38. The Directors recommend the payment of a
final ordinary dividend of 7p per ordinary share (2021: Did not recommend).

Ten Entertainment Group ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022



o RORT e STRMTEGI peppy - H

MENT TO THE noz_u.»zfm bz._.:n_.mw Or >mmODS.EOZ

alter g Articigg of bmmca._.mn_,g by Sbecizt ESnlutic, Pssan oy 2Ly, ,jm_mm.._.._@ of wrmam_g‘%@.

ch gw,,.g.cv_,

J that

2023, tha _uo:_:bm W m_r_a;ow__,mmq Share Cap ta Was Chgy 96 a9+,
T8 {207, mwmamwmﬁ o_d,SmQ Shares of 1p ach o,

R CETT NG the m:oﬂ:._mi of

Smfpw.,am_
Falt haye One
Clad by Ofta op More

Ches _m,ﬁno,.g;_nm 1 qagy STy
?Eowmmm i the .Dmlo%zmjnm of the;
ir _,E.Ema._mwm Alteny .

e Uos:__:m Vene o, Centrg; funcip, 4 the
Th o0 po 2ol the m,drﬁ
regy . ber for, 398 gt o Withhaa it . , . ) )
py i = Oy Ty Gy, T e S o
relas . the ﬁﬁ_jomzrw s.‘m&man. at umm_r:ﬁ. , T # F, =g Mg m.ﬁr Gx_im_;: Drae F.ry D_mmvm Bi=! Y on
aac;maz 035 of Offica vw,\amimﬁ Please Sen Pages g g3
Therg 5, "dinary, Sharge the ¢y, Mran, Sthartpo Lertain ORS thas My
be Dy fha h&Qmm\ B o ﬁmmckm:nﬁ and PUrSLan: o the Tﬂsm Rul; by Cartan mc_w.w..apz,._.__.»..; .wa.am.IO...U_.thm
Dirses, “8rS ang mﬂcﬁémm "EQUirg ooy 0 deg) 7 orelings, Sharge Of the ﬁoS_om;.ﬂ\ The 1S neyy As ar E::masmoww, the ﬁoibmar hag bean POty " Aoy D08 itk q_
gre Sfany Othey m@%mﬁmaﬁ. b twegy hoidtars cmmmnc: g 3?;3% TS I 823158 on Trangfo, of ﬁmamw%mznx Rujas, of the mo;os:,:m }0553 of VOling Hghtg %anzm o g
B nary, Shares Eife!»?{:é&ifff::ifrf!:ﬁf!i!fifflffﬁfef?!ff!fif
bC.:IOE._Jw FOR THE n03v>2< TO sznIb.mm:.m Own wawmm ighe :
“ghts a5
Subjgs o mcaju,«.rﬂﬁ...o.: by meEroEQ "ESOltin, tha Wo_ﬁ.n.m,gr May Plirchag e S Lpgry shareg ;) Loy DCE it Share Nofar ¥ fang,
i ; Y 2033
the Ay Any g hares whep haye baay Eougiay back My ha held g5 teasy, Sharag o, aneellag ,,,S,‘_‘_/mg__"%@_@. Upon :ﬁm”d{;fxﬂ; . T f!fff:?;fi}fﬁiﬁ:%f?\
[y s - i Tk L-Jirhs Taller \ i
SOMolatig, oFthe g, Chase, orth iy s

_,EHmQﬁ.m? Briot ¢, but “ONditign g IPon La_:,.ﬁm_.a;,, the mo,.jbm.% was @m:mxm%mgq
10 mzke Margey Purchagg, fwithr, the 332.3@ of wmnu,o: E93y ) 0 the Jom

n a,oim SO0t coypg not PUrchase Mora than EN: 18, 399 $harag in Qate, 4
mxu@;,w_m& PEr SR 0 iy & Drice e Share that s Mt iy

__u,ﬂi,.a.w 3@:@@@3@# & Ray,
mywnxmonr

By sha EXDiva gt the Conef, Sion o the ext 4
B St t _@c.,r;.or,,.méa% 5t
€t Snirpg, c



DIRECTORS' REPORT CONTIRUER

AGM

The notice convening the AGM to be held on 4 May 2023 at & Stratton Street, London, W1J BLD, is contained in

a separate shareholder circuar. Full details of all resolutions to be proposed are provided in that document. The
Directars consider that all of the resclutions set out in the Motice of AGM are in the best interests of the Company
and its shareholders as a whole, The Directors will be voting in favour of them and unanimously recommend that
shareholders vote in favour of each of them.

SIGNIFICANT AGREEMENTS AND CHANGE OF CONTROL PROVISIONS

The Group judges that the only significant agreements in relation to its business are its Group banking arrangements
with the Royal Bank of Scotland pic and gaming machines cotracts with Bandai Nameo Europe Limited.

The Group's gaming mechines contracts do not terminate cn a change of control. The Group does not have
agreements with any D rector or employee that would provide compensation for loss of office or employment
resulting from a takeover, except that provisions of the GroLp's Performance Share Plan may cause options and
awards granted to Directors to vest on a change of contrel,

The Group's banking arargements do contain change of cantrol provisions which, if triggered, could limit future
utilisations, require the -epayment of existing utilisations or lead to a renegotiation of terms.

RELATIONSHIP AGREEMENT

tn accordance with the disclosures required by LR 9.8.4 sub-saragraph (14), the Group is required to make a
staterment about any agreements entered in accordance with LR 9.2.2A. On 12 Apnl 2017, the Company, the
Harwood Shareholders, Harwood {as the discretionary investment manager of the Harwood Shareholders), and
Numis {as Sole Sponsor and Financial Adviser) entered into  relationship agreement, the principal purpose of which
is to ensure that the Company is capable of carrying on busitess independently at all times.

Under the terms of the relaticnship agreement, the Harwood Shareholders each undertake (and undertake to
procure that each of their associates shall procure insofar as they are able to do so that:

< any transaction, arrangement or contract entered into between the Harwood Shareholders {or any of the
Harwaod Shareholde s’ associates or their nominees) and the Company will be conducted on an arm's length
basis and normal commercial terms; and

2 amongst other things, neither the Harwood Shareholders nor any of their associates or nominees: (i) will take
any acticn that would have the effect of preventing the Company from complying with its obligations under the
Listing Rules; or (i) w ! propose or procure the propesal of a shareholder resolution which is intended or appears
to be intended to circ smvent the proper application of the Listing Rules.

Harwood, as the discretionary investment manager of Oryx and Harwood Capital Nominees, has also undertaken to
orocure that Oryx and Harwood Capital Nominees will comply with the undertakings listed above.

The relationship agreement will continue in effect untit the earlier of the aggregate voting rights of the Harwood
Shareholders (whather hald directly or indirectly through the Harwood Shareholders’ associates and/or thelr
nominees) are less than ~ 0% or the shares are no longer adrritted to the premiurmn listing segment of the Official
List and to trading on the Main Market of the London Stock Exchange.

The Company confirms tiat it has complied with its obligations under the Relationship Agreement during the
financial year under review, and that so far as it is aware, all other parties to that agreement have complied with it

STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNANCE HHANCIALS

POLITICAL DONATIONS
The Company made no political donations in the year.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS ['KPIS")
Details of the Group's KPls can be found on pages 18 to 19,

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

PwC have signified their willingness to continue in office as auditors to the Company, and the Group is satisfied that
PwC are independent and there are adequate safequards in place to safeguard their cbjectivity.

DIRECTORS' STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

Having made the requisite enguiries, the Directors in office at the date of these financial statements and Annual
Repert have each confirmed that, so far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the
Group's and Company's auditors are unaware and each Director has taken all the steps he/she ought to have taken
as a Director to make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group's and
Company's auditors are aware of that infermation.

GOING CONCERN

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, which the Directors believe to be appropriate
based on the review carried out and explained in the Long Term Viability Statement on pages 43 to 44.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

These financial statements and Annual Report contain forward-locking statements. These forward-looking
statements are not guarantees of future performance; rather, they are based on current views and assumptions as
at the date of these financial statements and Annual Report and are made by the Directors in good faith based on
the information available ta them at the time of their approval of this report. These statements should be treated
with caution due to the inherent risks and uncertainties underlying any such forward-looking information. The
Group undertakes no obligation to update these forward-looking statements.

By order of the Board

ANTONY SMITH
COMPANY SECRETARY
21 MARCH 2023
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GTATEMENT OF BIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT GF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors a e respersible for preparing the Annual Report and the firancial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires ~he D'rectors to prepare financ’al statements for each financial year. Under that law, the
Directors have prepared the Group and the Company financial statements i1 accordance with UK-adopted
intermational accounting standards, Under company law, Directors must not approve the financial statements
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of
the profit or loss of the Group for that neriod. In preparing the financ’al statements, the Directors are required to:

< select suitakle accounting policies and then apply themn consistently;

< state whethzr applicable UK-adopted international accounting standards have been followed, subject to any
material derartures disclosed and explained 'n t~e finanzial statements;

> rmake ‘udgerrents and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

.

W

prepare the firancial staternents on the going concern tasis cnless it is inappropriate to oresume that the Group
and Corrpany will continue in business.

The Directors are also respensible for safeguarding the assets of the Group anc Company. and herce for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Groun and Comnany’s transactions, and disclose witn reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Group and Corpany atd enable them to ensure that the financial staterments and the Directors' Remuneration
Report comply with the Companies Act 2006,

The Directors zre responsibie for the maintenance and integrity of the Company's website. Legislation in the
United Kingdom govering the preparation and dissemination of financial staternents may differ frow legislation
in other jurisdictions.

STRATEGIC REPORT GOYERNANCE FINANCIALS

DIRECTORS' CONFIRMATIONS

The Directors consider that the Annual Report and financial statements, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the infermation necessary for shareholders to assess the Group's and Company's
position and performance, business model and strategy. Each of the Directors, whose rames and functions are
listed in the Corporate Governance Report, confrm that, to the best of their knowledge:

< the Group and Company financial statements, which have been prepared in accardance with UK-acopted
international account'ng stancards, give a true and fair view of the assets, liab
Group and Company, and of the profit of the Group; and

ies and financial position of the

& the Directors’ Report includes a fair review of the development and performarce of the business and the
position of the Group and Company, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that
it faces,

In the case of each Director in office at the date the Directors’ Report is approved:

& sofaras the Director is aware, there 15 no relevant audit inforration of which the Group and Company's auditors
are unaware; and

< they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director in order to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Group and Company’s auditors are aware of that information

By oraer of the Board

GRAHAM BLACKWELL
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
21MARCH 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

to the membe-s of Ten Entertainment Group plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinien

In our opin‘on, Ten Entertainment Group ple's Group financial statements and Company financial statements {the
“nancal state ments'l:

% give aTrue ard fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Company's affairs as a* 1 January 2023 and of the
Group's protit and the Group's and Company's cash fiows for the 53 week period then ended;

% have been properly prepared in accordance with Uk-adcpted international accounting standards as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

# have oeen prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report ang Accounts 2022 [the "Annual
Report"), which comprise: the Consclidated and Corrpany Statements of Financial Position as at 1 January 2023;
the Consolidatec Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and Corrpany Staternents of Cash Flows,
and the Consolidated and Company Statements of Changes in Equity for the pericd then ended; the Statement of
Accourting 2olicies; and the notes o the financial staternests.

QOur opinion is consistent with cur reporting to the Audit Cemmitiee,

Basis for apinion

We conducted our audiz in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK) ("1SAs (UK)"} and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under 15As (UK are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statemznts sectior of our report. We believe that te audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
aporopriate to provide & basis for cur opinion.

Independence

We remaired indeperdent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requairernents that are relevant to our audit of
the financlal statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, as applicable to listed public interest
entities, and we have fu filled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Ter the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that nor-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard
were not provided.

Other than those disclosed in Note 5, we have provided no ron-audit services to the Company or its cortrolled
urdertakings in the period under audit.

STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNANCE FINANCIALS

Qur audit approach
Context

Ter Entertainment Group plc operates under one main component, Tenpin Limited, which is a UK based company
There are thirteen other UK based subsidiaries, of which two are small trading entities, two are holding entities and
the remaining are dormant entities.

Overview

Audit scope

& We performed a full scope audit aver Tenpin Limited, Quattrole’szre Limited and the Company, whlst
performing audit procedures over specific balances within certain other statutery entities based on their overall

size and values of their specific financial statement line ‘tems. Our audit scoping gave us coverage of 97% of
Group's revenue and 96% of Group's adjusted profit before tax.

Key audit matters
8 Goodwill and site asset impairment {Group)
@ Carry'ng value of investments (Company)

Materiality

& Overall Group materiality: £1,280,000 (2021: £652,000) based on 5% of the Group's ad usted profit before tax.
® Overall Company materiality: £398,000 {2021: £438,000) based on 1% of the total assets.

o Performance materiality: £960,000 (2021: £489,000) (Group) and £298,500 [2021: £328,500) (Company).

The scope of our audit

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality anc assessed the risks of material misstaternent in the
financial statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgement, were of mest significance in the
audit of the financial staternents of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material
misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect
on: tne overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; ard directing the effarts of the engagement
team, These rmatters, and any comments we make on the results of our procedures thereon, were addressed in

the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opirior or these matters,

tofal

This is rot a complete li isks identified by our audt.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPDRT &5t sttt

1o the members of Ten Entertainment Group plc

Carrying value o Investrients (Company) is a new key audit matter this year. Otherwise, the key audit matters

below are consistent with last year.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

STRATEGIC REPORT

Key audit matter

GOVIRNAKCE FINANCIALS

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Goodwill and site asset impairment (Group)

Refer to notes 10, 13 and 14 of the financial
statements

At 1 January 2023 the Group had goodwill of
£227m (2021 £29.4m) a~d site assets comprising
right of use asse=s of £171.7m (2021: £167.3m)
and property, plant and equiprent of £57.2m
12027 E39.5m),

The Group operates in the leisure maket and is
exposed to flLctLations in consumer discretionary
spending as well as the wider economy.

As required by aczounting standards, as at

1 January 2023, managerent serformed an
impairme~t assessment for goodwill and at the
same time identif ed ‘ndicators of an impairment
reversal for site azsets and as & result undertook
a full assessment to determine the recoverable
amrount far site assets,

Maragement considers each site to be a
cash-gererating unit (CGLY and performed

the impairment assessment using discounted
cash flows. We focussed cn this area as the
deterrination of whether an impairment charge
was necassary involved significant estimates
about the future results of each site and the
weightec average cost of capital used <o discount
these forecasts. Management's impairment
assessrrent also takes inte account the impact of
climate change.

Gocedwill 's not allozated e individual CGUs

as management considers that the synergies
arising from eac acquisiticn benefit the Group
as a whole rather than individual sites and
management monizars gocdwill in aggregate
for internal pursoses. Therefore, for goodw
impairment testing, the CG s are aggregated into
a single grouo.

We obtaired management's models for determining the
recoverable amount as at 1 January 2023 and checked the
rnathernatical accuracy and integrity.

We agreed management's forecast to the latest Board
approved strategic plan, We considered a number of externai
market forecasts and analyst reports assessing UK economic
and incustry growth as this is a key driver of revenue and
EBITDE growth.

We evaluated the key assumptions within the forecasts. We
have also reviewed the cost assumptions for reasonableness
by comparing with current market data available. Where
management’s assurmptions varied from these forecasts, we
appraised the rationale, primarily due to the specific nature
of the bowling industry.

We also challenged the extent to which the impact of
clirate charge risk identfied by management ir 1ts TCFD
scenaric analysis and the Group's net zero commitment
ware colsistent with the assumptions within the impairment
assessment. We also performed sengitivity analysis to
ascertain whether downward adjustments to the forecast
assumprions would result in a material impairment.

We assessed the historical accuracy of the forecasts used
in the Group’s impairment moecel by considering actual
performance against prior year forecasts and budgets, o
evaluate managerent’s forecasting capabilities, We also
reviewed the performance of the Group since year-end by
comparing it with management's budgets.

We used our internal experts to determine a weighted
average cost of capital for the Group and concluded that
the cost of capital determined by management was within
a reasonzble range. We checked that the long term growth
rate is ir | ne with current expectations for UK long term
growth. We have also re-performed the sensitivity analysis
disclosed within the financial statemeants and agree with the
figures presented

Management’s assessment of the site portfalic
as cetailed above is used to form the basis of
the goodwill impairment review and is therefore
subject to the same assumotions as the site
impairment review above.

We evaluated the appropriateness of allocating gocdwill to
a single group of CGUs. We considered the raticnale for the
acquisitions, level of integration with the rest of the Group
and the nature of synergies derived. We also confirmed
this is the way in which management ronitors goodwill oy
reviewing management's internal reporting.

We were satisfied that synergies benefited the Group as a
whole and therefore the allocation of goodwill to a single
group of CGUs was appropriate.

We considered the net asset value of the Group's assets
compared to its rrarket capitalisation which gives an
indication of the overall value of the Group. The market
capitalisation was in excess of the net asset value.

We recalculated the impairment reversal ensuring that the
computation was in line witr the accounting standards.

We reviewed the disciosures given in notes 10, 13 and 14 “or
completeness and consistency.

Carrying value of investments {Company)
Refer to note 12 of the financial statements.

The Company holds investrments in subsidiaries
amounting to £38.9m at 1 January 2023
(2021: £38.9m).

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for

at cost fess provision for impairment in the
Company balance sheet. Investments are tested
forimpairment i¥ impairment indicators exist. if
such indicators exist, the recoverable amounts of
investments in subsidiaries are estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment Joss, if
ary. Any such impairment loss is recognised in the
profit and loss account.

The impairment assessment was identified as a
«<ey audit matter given the size of the underlying
investment carrying values in the Company
accounts at 1 January 2023, The assessment
requires the application of management
Jjudgement, particularly in determining whether
any impairrment indicators have arisen that
trigger the need for an impairment assessment
and in assessing whether the carrying value

of each investment can be supported by its
recoverable amount.

We evaluated management’s assessmeant of whether an
indicators of impairment existed by comparing the carrying
values of investrnents in subsidiaries to the net assets of the
underlying subsidiaries at 1 January 2023 and noted that the
carying values of the irvestments were recoverable based
on the net assets of the subsidiaries.

We have also compared the Group's market capitalisation as
at 1 January 2023 to the carrying value of assets, and noted
significant notional heacroom of £194m.

Based on the procedures performed, we concur with
maragement that there are no indicators of impairment in
respect of investment in subsidiaries.
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to the members of Ter Entertainment Group ple

How we tailored the audit scope
We tallored the scope of ou” audit 1o ensure that we perforred enough work to be able to give an opinion on the

financial statements as a whale, takng into account the struct.re of the Group and the Company, the accaunting
processes and centrols, and the industry in which they operate.

The Ter Entertainment Group plc sperates across the UK under one mMain component, Tenpin Limited, which
contibutes 95% of the Croup's revenue and 87% of the Group's adjusted profit before tax Tenpin Limited is a UK
company. There are thirteen other UK based subsidiaries, of which twe are srall trading entities, two are holding
entities anc the remaining are dormrant entities.

We performed a full scope audit over Tenpin Limited, Quattrcleisure Limited and the Company, whilst performing
andit orocecures over specific balances within certain other statutory entities based on their overall size and values
of their specific financial statoment line items, All audit work was performed by the Group engagement team.

Cur audit scoping gave Us coverage of $7% of Grow 's revente and 96% of Group's acdjusted profit before tax.
pinc g 9 p =

The impact of climate risk on our audit

As part of our aucit we made enguires of management to understand the Process management’s risk assessment
of the impact of cimate change. Management has sought advice from external climate change experts.

In agdition to enguiries w th managerment, we aliso reviewed the presentations to Tmanagement from their
expert which set out their assessment of climate change nsk 1o the Group and the impact, if any, on the financial
statements and impairment testing.

in responding to the rick identified, we specifically considerad how climate change risk would impact the
assumptions mads In the forecasts prepared by maragement used ir their assessment of the carrying value of
goodwill and site zssets.

Qur procedures in relatior to the assessment of the carrying value of goodwill and site assets are described in the
key aud't matters section above,

We also considered the corsistency of the discloswres in relation to climate change within the Annual Report with
tre financial state™ents a1d our knowledge obtained from ou- audi-.

Materiality

T~e scope of our audit was influenced oy our application of materiality, We set certain guantitative thresholds for
rmateriality. These, tegether with qualitative considerations, helped us to determice the scone of our audit and the
nature. tim'ng and awtent cf aur audit procedures on the individ Ja) financial statement line items and disclosures and
in evaluating the ef‘ect of misstatements, both individually and n aggregase or the financial staterments as a whole.

Based on our professiona)

Financial statements - Group Financial statements - Company

judgement, we deterrmined materiality ‘or the financial staterments as a whole as follows:

Overall £1,280,0C0 (2021: £452,000), £398,000 [2021: £438,000),
materiality
Hew we 5% of tre Group's adjusted profit bafore tax. 1% of the total assets

determinec it

Rationale for
benchmark
applied

Profit before tax is a primary measure used by shareholders
In assessing the performance of the Group andis a generally
accepted auditing benchmark. By adjusting th= profit before
ta for non recurring exceptional items, this provides us with
a consistent year on year basis in line with a measure which
users rely on for determining rateriality based on trad’ng
peformarce.

Total assets is deemed an
appropriate benchmark given
trisis a non-trading entity which
predominantly holds investments
in subsidiaries.

STRATEGIC REPORT
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For eacn componert ir the scope of our Group audit, we allocated a materiality that is less than our overal|
Group materiality. The range of materiality allccated ac-oss components was £468,000 and £1,200,000. Certain
components were audited to a local statutory audit materiality that was also less than our everall Group materiality.

We use performance materiality to reduce to an appropriately low level the probability that the aggregate

of uncorrected and undetected misstaterments exceeds overall materiality, Specifically, we use performance
materiality in determining the scope of our audit and the nature and extent of our testing of account balances,
classes of transactions and disclosures, for example in determining sample sizes. Gur performance materiality
was 75% (26 December 2021: 75%) of overall materiality, amounting to £960,000 (2021: E£489,000) for the Group
financial statements and £798,500 {2021: £328,500) for tha Cormpany financial statements.

In determining the performance materiality, we corsidered a number of factors - the history of misstatements, risk
assessment and aggregation risk and the effectivenass of controls - and concluded that an amount in the m.ddle of
our normal range was appropriate.

We agreed with the Audit Committes that we would report to them misstatermnents identified during our
audit above £64,000 (Group aud:) (2027 £32,600) and £12.900 (Comnpany audit}h (2021: £21,900) as well as
risstatements below those amounts that, in our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons,

Conclusions relating to going concern

Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the Group's and the Company’s ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting included:

® Understanding of the mechanics and key inputs into management’s detailed base tase and severe but plausible
downside case scenano models and holding discussions with management to obtain an understanding of the
trading performance and future outlook ‘or the business;

& Agreeing managerment's cash flow projections to the latest Board approved forecasts, assessing how the
forecasts have been compiled and asse55ing the accuracy of management's farecasts:

# Cvaluating the key assumptions within the forecasts;

® Constdering the severe but plausible downside case scenario that management had applied and their likelihood
and whether more severe sensitivities could apply and the associated impact on available liquidity;

® Assessing managements stress testing and whether this appropriately considered the princinal risks facing the
business and the likelihood of evente arising that could erode liquidity within the forecast period;

& Assessing the performance of the Group since year-end and comparing it with the Boarc approved cash
‘low forecasts;

» Obtairing and reviewing the banking agreements setting out the Group's covenants to understand the facilities
and financing arrangements in place and identify and confirm the applicable covenants: and

® Reviewing the disclosures within the financial statements and validating that it accurately cescribed
management’s going concern considerations,

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any materal uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individuaily or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and the Corpary’s abifity

te cortinue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve rmonths from when the financial staterments are
authorised for issue

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the Q0ing concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financ'al staternents is appropriate,
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to the members of Ten Entertainment Group ple

Conclusions relating to going concern. .-

However, because o: all future events or conditions car e predictad, this conclusion is not a quarantee as to the
Group's and the Company’s ability to continue ag a going ~oncern.

In relation to the directors’ -eporting on how they have apalied the UK Corporate Governance Coce, we have
nothing materal to add or draw attention to in refation to the directors’ statement in the financial statements about
whether the cirectors considered it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting.

Our resporsitilities anc the responsi
relevant sections of this report.

ities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the

Reporting an other information

The other infermaticr comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial staterments and
our auditors' raport trereon. The directors are responsible for the other inforrmation. Our opinion on the financial
staterrents does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to
the extent otherwise exolicitly stated in this report, any fo-m of assurance thereon.

In conrectior with our aud’t of the Snancial statements, cur responsibility is to read the other information and,

ir doing so, consider whether the other information is mazerialty inconsistent wth the financial staternents or

our knowledges obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify ar apparent
material incorsistency or rraterial misstatement, we are raquired to perform procedures to conclude whether there
is a material risstaternent of the finarcial staterments or & material misstatement of the other information, If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are recuired to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report and Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by
the UK Compan’es Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaen in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2004 reguires us also to report certain
opiniors and ratters as described below.

Strategic report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the cours= of the audit, the information given in the Strategic
report and Directors’ Report for the penoc ended 1 January 2023 is consistent with the financial statements and has
been preparec in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowlecge and understanding of the Group and Company and their envirenmert obtained in the
course of the audit, wa did ot identify any material misstaternents in the Strategic report and Directors’ Report.

STRATEGIC, REPORT GOVERKANLE FINANCIALS

Directors’ Remuneration

In our opinion, the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Repo't to be audited has been praperly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2004,

Corporate governance statement

The Listing Rules require us to review the directors' statements in relation to going concern, longer-term viability
and that part of the corperate governance statement relating to the Company's compliarce with the provisions
of the UK Corporate Governance Code specified for our review. Our additional responsibilities with respect to the

corporate governance statement as other information are descrised in the Reporting on other information section
of this report.

Based on the work undertaken as part of our audit, we nave concluded that each of the following elements of the
corporate governance staternent is materially corsistent with the financial statements and our knowledge obtainzd
during the audit, and we have nothing material to add or draw attention to in relation to:

® The directors’ confirmation that they have carried out a robust assessment of the emerging and principal risks,

® The disclosures in the Annual Report that describe those principal risks, what procedures are in olace to identify
emerging risks and an explanation of how these are being managed or mitigated;

® The directors’ statement in the financial statements about whether they considered it appropriate o adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing thern, and their identification of any material uncertainties to
the Group's and Company's ability to continue to do so over a period of at least twelve monthe from the date of
approval of the financial statements;

# The directors' explanation as to their assessment of the Group's and Company's prospects, the peried this
assessment covers and why the period is appropriate; and

& "hedirectors’ statement as to whether they have a reascnable expectation that the Company will be able to
continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period of its assessment, including any
related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications or assumptions,

Our review of the directors' staternent regardirg the longer-term viability of the Group and Company was
substantially less in scope than an audit and only consisted of making inquiries and considering the directors’
process supporting their statement; checking that the staternent is in alignment with tne relevant provisions of the
UK Corporate Governance Code; and corsidering whether the statement is consistert with the financial statements
and our knewledge and understanding of the Group and Company and their environment obtained 'n the course of
the audit.

in addition, based on the work undertaken as part of our audit, we have concluded that each of the following
elements of the corporate governance statement is materially consistent with the “nancial statarments and our
knowledge obtained during the audt:

® The directors’ statement that they consider the Annual Report, taken as a whole, is “air, balanced and
urderstandable, and provides the information necessary ‘or the members to assess the Group's and Company's
position, performance, business model and strategy;

® The section of the Annual Report that describes the review of effectiveness of risk management and irternal
control systerns; and

# The section of the Annual Report describing the werk of the Audit Committee

We have rothing to report in respact of our responsibility to report when the directors' statement relating to the
Company's compliance with the Code does not properly disclose a departure from a relevant provision of the Code
specified urder the Listing Rules for review by the auditors.
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to the members of Ten Entertainment G-oup ple
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fesponsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilitizs of the directors for the financial statements

As explainec more fully in the Staterment of Directars’ Respansiblities, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the finarcial statements in accordance with the asplicable framework and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view. Tre directors are also responsisle for such internal cortrol as they determine is
necessary to enzble the preparation of ‘inancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In oreparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Company's
ty ‘o continuz as a going concern, disclosing, as applicakle, matters related to going corcern and using the
going cancern besis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liguidaze the Group or the Company or to
cease operations. or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Ou- objectives ar> to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial staternents as a whaole are free from

rnater‘al russtaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to “ssue an auditors’ report that includes our opinio

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not 2 guarantee that an audit conducted in accorcance

with [SAs (U] wil always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstaternents can arise from fraud orer-or

and are consicered mate-ial ’f, individually orin the aggreqgate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
concmic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irreqularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We desigr procedures in
line with our respons'bilities, outlined above, to detect material misstaterrents in respect of iregularities, including
fraud. The extent to which our procecures are capable of detecting irreqularities, includ'ng fraud, is detailed below.

Based on cur uncarstanding of the Group and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance

with laws and regulations related 1o employment law, neal:h znd safety regulations, GDPR and Listing Rules of the
F'nanc'al Conduct Author ty (FCA), and we considered the extant to which non-compliance might have a material
effect on the finar cial statements. We also considered those laws anc regulations that have a direct impact on

the “nancial statements such as the Companies Act 2006 and the UK tax legislatior. We evaluatec maragement's
incentives ard opportunit es for raudulent manipulation of th= financial statements (including the nsk of override of
controls), and determined that the principal risks were relatea to posting inappropriate journal entries to manipulate
firanzial results ard potential management bias ir accounting estimates. Audit procedures nerformed by the
engagement tearr included:

@ Discussions with the Chief Financial Officer, Financial Controller, and the Audit Committee, including
consideration of knowr or suspected instances of nor-cormpliance with laws and regulations and fraud;

& Assessment of natters reportec on the Group's whistleblowing systern and results of management's
nvestigation of such matters;

s ldentifying and zesting the valiaity of journal entries, in particular any journal entries posted with unusual account
combinations;

& Challerging assumptions made by managernent in its significant accounting estimates, in particular in relat’'on
to the assessment of the impairment of goodwill and site assets [see related key audit matter above)

& Reviowing disclosures for accounting estimates; and

& Reviewing minuzes of Board meetings.

There are inherent imitaticns 'n the audit procedures described above. We are less fikely to become aware of
nstances of non-cempliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactionrs
retiected in the financial stztements. Also, the risk of not cetecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher
thar the risk o° not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud -may involve deliberate concealment by, for example,
fergery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.
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Cur audit testing might include testing complete populations of certain transactions and balances, possibly using
data auditing techniques. However, it typically involves selecting a limited number of items for testing, rather than
testing complete populations. We will often seek to target particular items for testing based on their size or risk
charactenstics. In other cases, we will use audit sampling to enable us to draw a conclusion about the population
from which the sample is selected.

Afurther description of our responsi
at: www. fre.org.uk/auditorsrespons

ities for the audit of the “inancial statements is located on the FRC's website
es. This description forms part of our auditors’ resor.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinians, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2004 and for no other purpose We do not, in gving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpese or to any other person to whom this report is
shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting
Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are req.ired to report to you if, in our opinion:

® we have not obtained all the infermation and explanations we require for our audi; o+

® adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

# certain disclosures of directors’ rerruneration specified by law are not made; or

& :he Company financial statements and the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting recerds and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this respansibility.

Appointment

Followirg the recommendation of the Audit Committee, we were appointed by the members on 12 April 2017 to
audit the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 and subsequent financial pericds. The period
of total uninterrupted engagement is & years, covering the years ended 31 December 2077 to 1 January 2023,

Other matter

In due course, as required by the Financial Conduct Authority Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rule 4 1.14R,
these financial statements will form part of the ESEF-prapared annual financial report filed on the Naticnal Storage
Mechanism of the Financial Conduct Authority in accordance with the ESEF Regulatory Technical Standard ('ESEF
R¥S. This auditors’ report provides no assurance over whether the annual financial report will be prepared using
the single electronic format specified in the ESEF RTS.

S

CRAIG SKELTON {SENIOR STATUTORY AUDITOR}
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audtors

London

21 March 2023
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CONSCLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

STRATEGIC REPORT SIVERRANLE FINANCIALS
FOR THE 53-WEcK PERICD ENDED 1 JANUARY 2023
53 weeks to 52 weeks to
1 January 26 December
2023 2021
Note £000 £000
Revenue 1 126,673 67,521
Cost of sales (40,915} 22,51
Gross profit 85,758 45,010
Administrative expenses (52,141) {35,949
Exceptional income 5 7,263 238
Reversal of impai-ment 5 631 1124
Operating profit 41,511 10,423
Less on share of joint venture (310} —
Finance costs 4 {7,208} 15.986)
Profit before taxation 33,995 4,437
Taxation 7 {7,399} (432}
Profit and total comprehensive income for the period 26,596 4.005
Earnings per shara
Basic earnings per share 8 318.86p 5.Bé6p
Diluted eamings par share 8 38,57p 5.84p

The accompanying statemants of accounting policies and notes on pages 85 to 107 are an integral part of these finarcial statements.

Ten Entertainment Group ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022



STRATEGIE REPORT

GOVERNANCE

CONSGLIDATED AXG COMPANY STATEMENTS OF FINAKCIAL PDSITION FINANCIALS
AS AT © JANUARY 2023
Group Company
1 January 26 December 1 January 26 December
2023 200 2023 2021
Note £000 £000 £000 £002
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill 10 29,740 29,350 - -
Intangible assets 10 135 279 — -
Investments in joint venture i - 310 — 310
|avestrments 12 — — 38915 38915
Property, plant and equipment 13 57,198 39,530 - -
Right-of-use assats 4 171,651 167,324 - -
Deferred tax asset 22 — 4374 - —
258,724 241,167 38,915 39,225
Current assets
Inventories 15 1,493 1,226 — -
Trade and other receivables 16 4,667 5,426 620 209
Corporation tax -eceivable 1,022 10 — —
Cash and cash equivalerts 17 10,086 11,511 298 4,424
17,268 18,173 918 4,633
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Bank borrowings and leases 20 (10,448} (16,661 — —
Trade and other payables P3 (15,164) {13,513) (1,221) {3.089)
{25,612) {30,174) (1,221) (3.089)
Net current liabilities (8,344) {12,001) {303) 1,544
Non-current liabiiities
Bank borrowings end leasss 20 {189,954) {192,833) - -
Deferred tax liabilizy 22 {1,282} 12,270} - —
{191,236) (195,103) - -
Net assets 59,144 34,063 38,612 40,759
Equity
Share capital 18 685 684 685 684
Share premium 4,844 4,844 4,844 4,844
Merger reserve 617 &171 - —
Share-based payment rese:ve 1,037 498 1,037 498
Retained earnings 46,407 21,856 32,046 34,743
Total equity 59,144 34,063 38,612 40,769

Tha accorpanying statement, of accounting policies and rok

5 on pages 85w 10

The Company has reparted a loss of £0.6m for the period. The financial statements on pages 81to 107

e

Pe=asss

GRAHAM BLACKWELL
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

COMPANY NUMBER: 10672521

07 are am integral par of these fin

ANTONY SMITH
CHEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

F

e staterments. The Group Fres talen the 5409 exernption 1o niot show the Corrpany moorne staterment separately.

were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2023 and were signed on its behalf by:
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS STRATIGIE REPORT GOVERKANTE FINANCIALS
FOR THE 53-V/EEK PERIOE ENDED 1 JANUARY 2023
53 weeks to 52 weexs to
1 January 26 December
2023 2021
Group Note £000 FOOD
Cash flows generated from operating activities
Cash generated fron operations 19 61,963 30,827
Corporation -ax (paic)/received {5,024} 2,292
Finance costs paid {7,013} {5,868)
Net cash gererated from cperating activities 49,926 27,251
Cash flows used in investing activities
Purchase of preperty, nlant and equipment (23,366} 7108
Purchase of cite by Tanpin Cirmited (454) —
Loan to Joint venture (1,203) —
Purchase of software (40) (24)
Net cash used in investing activities (25,063) (7132)
Cash flows used in financing activities
_ease prircipal payments (10,233) (10,002)
Dividends pad (2,055) —
Drawdown of bank borrowings - 22,000
Repayment ¢f bank borrowings (14,000) (28,000)
Net cash used in financing activities (26,288) {16,002)
Net {decrease}/increase in cash and cash equivalents {1,425) 4117
Cash and casa equivalents - beginning of period 11,511 7,394
Cash and cash equivalents - end of period 17 10,0846 11,517
53 weeks to 52 weeks to
1 January 26 Docember
2023 pitral
Zompany Note £000 £000
Cash flows used in operating activities
Cash used in operations 19 {4,126) 1153)
Net cash used in operating activities {4,126) {153,
Cash flows generated from financing activities
Dividends receved 2,055 -
Dividends paid {2,055) -
Net cash generated from financing activities - -
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (4,126) (153}
Cash and cas eguivelents - beginning of period 4,424 4577
Cash and casn equivalents - end of period 17 298 4,424

The accompar ying statement of accounting policies and notes on pages 85 to 107 are an integral part of these financ’al staternents.

Ten Entertainment Group ple Annual Report and Accourts 2022



CONSOLIDATEC AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

STRATEGIC REPDRY GHAVIRKARCE FINANCIALS
FOR THE 53-WEEK PERIOD ENDED 1 JANUARY 2023
Share-based

Share Share payment Merger Retained Tot

capital premium reserve reserve earnings equity

Greup £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 27 December 2020 683 4,844 250 6,171 17,861 29,809
Share-based payment charge (note 26) - — 248 — — 248
Issue of sharas net of transaction costs 1 — - — - -
Prefit for the period and total comprohensive income - — — — £,005 4,005
Balance at 2% December 2021 &84 4,844 498 6,171 77,866 34,063
Share-based payment charge {Note 25) - - 839 - - 539
Issue of shares net of transaction costs 1 . - - - 1
Dividends paid - - - - (2,055) {2,055)
Profit for the petiod and total comprehensive income — - - - 16,536 26,596
Balance at 1 January 2023 685 4,844 1,037 6,171 46,407 59,144

Share-based

Share Share payment Merger Retained Total

capital premium reserve reserve earnings equity

Company £600 £000 £000 £000 £000 £0C0
Balance at 27 December 2020 683 4,844 250 — 36,781 42,558
Share-based payment charge {note 26) — — 248 _ _ 248
issue of shares net ¢f trarsaction costs 1 - — — — 1
Less for the seriod - - — - (2,038} 12,038)
Balance at 25 December 2021 684 4,844 498 — 34,743 40,769
Share-based payment charge (Note 26) — — 539 - - LEL
Issue of shares net of transaction costs 1 - — - - 1
Dividends paid - - - - (2,055) (2,055)
Loss for the period - - — - (642} (642)
Balance at1January 2023 685 4,844 1,037 - 32,046 38,612

The accompanying staternent of accounting pelicies and notes on pages 85 to 107 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Authorisation of consolidated financial statemen+s and statement of compliance with IFRS

The consolidated financial staterents for Ten Entertainment Group pic (the ‘Company’} for the 53-week period
enced 1 January 2023 were adthorsed for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2023, and the balance sheet
was signed on the Board’s benalf by Graham Blackwell and Antany Smith.

The consolidated financ.al statemerts comprse the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as

the ‘Group'). The Compeny is a oublic limited company, limitad by shares, incorperated and domiciled in the

United Kingdom and registered in England and Wales. The consolidated #nancial statements have been prepared in
accordance with U-adested International Accounting Standards and with the requirements of the Cornpanies Act
2006 as applicab e te companies reporting under those standards. Tre principal accourting policies adopted by the
Group ana Comgany are set out below.

General information

The Company's crdinary shares are traded on the London Stock Exchange. The address of the registerea office
is Aragon House, University Way, Cranfield Technology Park, Cranfield, Bedford MK43 OEQ. The consolidated
financial staternents of the Group for the 53-week period ended 1 January 2023 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referrec to as the ‘Group’). The principal activity of the Group comprises the operation of
tenpin bowling centres.

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted International
Accounting Standards anc with the requirements of the Comganies Act 2006 as applicable to companies reporting
under those standards.

The accounting pclicies which follow set out those policies which apply in preparing the financial statements for the
53 weeks ended 1 _anuary 2023 and have been applied congiste~tly, to all pericds presented in these consolidated
fimancial staterren-s. The Group and the Company financial stztements are presented in Sterling and all values are
raunded to the nezrest theusand pounds (E00D) except when otherwise indicated  The financial staternents are
prepared using the historical cost basis. On publishing the Comipany financial statements here together with the
Group financial statements, the Company is taking advantage of the exempticn in Section 408 of the Companies
Act 2006 rot to present its individual statement of comprehensive iIncome and related notes that form a part of
these approved finzncial staternents.

STRATEGIC REPORT

GOVERNARCE

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

FINANCIALS

At the date of authorisation of tris financial infermation, certain new standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards applicable to the Group have been published but are not yet effective, and have not been
adopted early by the Groun. These are explained below:

Standard/irterpretation

Content

Date applicable

1AS 1 Classification of
liabilities as current or
~on-current

In January 2020, the IASB issued amendments ‘o paragraphs
69 1o 76 of IAS 1 to specify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments are not
expected to have a material impact on the Group.

Tlanuary 2023

IAS 1 Fresentation of
financial statements and
IFRS Practice Staterment
2 rnaking materality
judgements - disclosure
of accounting policies

The amendments change the requirements in 1AS 1 with
regard to disclosure of accounting pelicies. The amendments
replace all instances of the term "significant accounting
policies” with “material accounting policy information”.

1 January 2023

1AS 8 Definition of
accounting estimates

The amendments replace the definition of a change in
accounting estimates with a defi n of accounting
estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates
are, "monetary amounts in financiat statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty”,

T January 2023

I1AS 12 Deferred tax related
to assets and liab
arising from a single
transaction

The amendments intreduce a further exception from the
Initial recognition exernption. Under the amendments, an
entity does not apply the initial recognition exemption for
transactions that give rise to equal taxable and decuctible
temoorary differences. Foliowing the amerdments to |AS
12, an entity is required to recogrise the related deferred tax
asset and liability.

1 January 2023

IFRS 17 Insurance
contracts

I May 2077, the 1ASB issued IFRS 17 insurance Contracts
['IFRS 177, a comprehensive new accounting standard far
insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement,
presentation and disclosure. Once effective, IFRS 17 wi
replace [FRS 4 Insurance Contracts {'IFRS 4') that was issued
in 2005.

anuary 2023

Lease Liability ir a
Sale and Leaseback
Amendments to IFRS 16

In Septermber 2022 the IASB amended IFRS 16 to add
subsecuent measurement requirements for sale and
leaseback transactions that satisfy the requirements in IFRS
15 to be accounted for as a sale. The amendments require
aseller/lessee to subsequently measure lease liabilities
arising from a leaseback in a way that it does not recognise
any amount of the gain or Ioss that relates to the right of use
it retains

T January 2024
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES =5 fisiice

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures continued

Standard/interpretation Content Date applicable

Non-currert Liabilities
with Covenants
Amendments to [AS

|1 October 2022, the IASB i3sued amendmaents to: a) improve
the current liabilities with ¢ svenants, The [ASB mace the
information an entity provides about liabilities arising from
loan arrangements for which an entity's right to defer
settlement of those liabilities for at least twelve months after
he reporting period is subj2ct to the entity complying with
conditions specified in the oan arrangement {liabilities with
covenants; and b} respord to stakeholders’ concerns about
the outcomes of applying e amendments in Classification
of Liabilities as Current or Mon-current issued in 2020, The
2020 amendmants were cr ticised because: {i) they could
result in an entity classifying a liability as current even if, at
the end of the reporting pe-iod (reporting date), the entity
has no contractual cbligation to settle the liability at that
cate or within twelve montns; (i) they took no account of the
design of covenants negotiated to reflect an entity’s required
financial pasition or performance at specified dates, such as
when a loan arrangemenrt epecifies different covenants at
different dates to reflect th> expected effects of seasonality
or the entity's future performance; and (it} they were unclear
about how an entity would assess, at the reporting date,
whether it would have corplied with covenants that are not
based on an entity’s financial position or performance (ron-
financial covenanrts) and covenants based on cumulative
financial performance or cash flows for a period extending
beyond the reporting pericd (financial performance
covenants).

1 January 2024

None of the above a—endments are expected to have a matenal impact on the Group.

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries a-e all entities (including structured entit'es} over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable retums from its involvernent with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consoclidated from
the date on which cotrol is trarsferrad to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases,
Allintercompany balences and transactiors ard any unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies
are eliminated.

On acquisition of a subsidiary, all of the identifiable acquired assets (including intangible assets), liabilities and
contingent liabilities are recorded at their fair values, reflesting their condit'on on the date control passes. The cost
of an acquistt on is maascred as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed. ~he excess of the cost of the acquisition over the fai- value of the Group's share of the identifiable

net assets accu'red s recarded as goodwill, All accounting policies are applied consistently throughout the

Group companies.

STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNAKCE FINANLIALS

Going concern

in assessing the going concern position of the Group and Company for the Annual Report and the financial
staterments for the year ended 1 January 2023, the Group has considered a base case scenario and a severe but
plausible dowriside scenario. In modelling these scenarios, the Group has considered its liquidity, cash balances,
refinancing pesition, business activities and its principal risks.

Base case

The Group's bank financing facility expires in April 2024 and the intantion is to renew this in 2023. As the renewal
has not happened at the time of the signing of this Annual Report, the performance beyond the current expiry date
in 2024 has been reflected in the base case. The Group is cash posttive, the RCF remains undrawn throughout the
period with all covenarts being passed. The base case is the Group’s FY23 budget plus the 2024 forecast from its
Strategic Plan. This case was prepared with the following key assumptions reflected:

< Like-for-like sales growth versus FY22

Labour inflation and the increases from the National Living Wage are included

Cost inflation is reflected 'n the operating and administrative costs

Site acquisitions and rew builds are reflected in the trade ard in the casnflows

Increased levels of capital spend are reflected in the cashflows to maintain and refurbish the sites
The Group oays out a final and interim dividend

OO0

Downside case

The downside case takes the base case and flexes the assumptions for severe but plausible impacts. These are
summarised as follows:

& 2023 revenues are reducad by 10% on a like-for-like basis against FY22. 2024 revenues are reduced by a further
10% against the 2023 downside. Returns from refurbishments in 2023 and 2024 and returns from one new site
in 2024, are rermoved.

<& All variable and fixed costs from the base case are increased by a further inflationary 10% across the board.

< vitigation on variable costs as cost of sales, labour and cperating costs are ‘neluded as these can be controlled
oy the Group.

The scenario reflects the payment of a final and interm dividend but this has been reduced versus the base case
as these are at Group discretion. The investment in new centres rermains with the removal of just one in 2024, Tre
refurbishment programme spend is also haited in 2023 and 2024. Investments in new centres and refurbishments
are under the Group's control and could be used for further mitigating action if needed. All the mitigating actions
taken, allow the Group to remain cash positive and the RCF undrawn, throughout the period. The Group remains
profitable and all covenants are passed with significant headroom.

Taking the above and the principal risks faced by the Group into consideration, the Directors are satisfied that the
Group has adeguate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future, a period of at least 12 months
from the date of this report. Accordingly, the Group continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing these
Financial Statements,
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES ¢

Use of judgements and estimates

The preparation of finar cial statenents requires the use of accounting estimates and reguires management to
exercise udgenent in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies.

Accounting estimates are based on historical experience and various othe- ‘actors, including expectations of future
events that are felieved to be reasenable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
the judgements about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily available from other sources.

Actual results may differ from these estimates and the estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Ravisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects enly “hat period or in the period of the revision and future periods i the revision affects both
the current and fture pericas. The following assets and labilities or areas have been affected by these estimates
and judgements:

ludgement: Joint ventures

Where the Group collaborates with other entities on contracts and agreements, a judgement is made of the nature
of the relationship that arises from those contracts and agreements and the level of control that each party can
exercise over the Tansactions that arise. Where there is joint control (as described by IFRS 11), the arrangernent is
classified as a joint arrangement and accounted for using the zquity method (for joint ventures). The Group’s joint
ventures are disclosed in Note 11,

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures are intially recognised at cost and adjusted
therea’ter to recocnise the Group's share of profits or losses and movements in other comprehensive income. When
the Group's share of losses 'n a joint venture equals or exceeds s interests in the joint venture, the Group does not
recognise further losses, ualess it has incurred ohligations or made payments on behalf of the joint venture,

Unrealised losses zrising on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairmeant of the asset transfered. The Group funds its joint ventures
through leans fror Tenpin Limited which are secured and incur interest at a market rate. The Directars review the
recoverability of investmer ts anc loans for impairment annually

Judgement: Non-GAAP parformance measures

The Group bas ider tifiad certain measures that it believes will assist in the understanding of the performance of the
business. The meazures are not defined under IFRS and they may not be directly comparable with other companies’
acjusted measures. The non-IFRS measures are not intended to be a substitute for an IFRS performance measure
but the business has includ=d thern as it considers them to be important comparables and key measures used
within the business for assessing performance. These firancial statements make reference to the following ~on-
IFRS measures:

Group adjusted EBITDA - This measurement is earnings before interest, taxation, depraciation, amortisation,
excepticnal items, impairment, loss on Joint venture and profit or foss or disposal of assets. This has been done
to show the underly ng trading performance of the Group which these other costs or income can distort. The
reconciliatior o operating prefitis included in Note 2.
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Group adjusted EBITDA after rental costs - This measurement is eamings before interest, taxation, depreciation,
amortisation, exceptional iterns, impairmert and profit or loss on dispesal of assets, ioss on Joint venture, fess a
deduction for the cash cost of rent. The reconciliation to operating profit is included in Note 2.

EBITDA operating margin - This 's the Group adjusted EBITDA after rental costs divided by sales, expressed as
a percentage.

Cost of goede sold and gross margin - The cost of sales as reflectad in the statement of comprehensive income
consists of direct bar, food, vending, amusements, gaming machine related costs, PDO machine costs and staff
costs. Cost of goods sold excludes staff costs but security and machine ficence costs incurrad by the centres are
included. Deducting cost of goods sald from revenue gives the gross margin. This is how cost of goods sold and
gross margin are reported by tire business monthly and at centre level as labour costs are judged as material and
thus reported separately with operating costs. The reconciliation is included in Note 2.

Operating profit before exceptional items - This is operating profit before exceptional iters and impairment reversal.,

Group adjusted profit before tax - This consists of the profit before tax adjusted for ems Judged as exceptional
and relating to impairment -eversals.

Adjusted underlying profit after tax and adjusted earnings per share - This consists of the profit after tax adjusted
for exceptional items and impairment reversals and is used to determine the adjusted earnings per share, The
reconciliation of this number to profit after tax is included under Note 8.

Exceptional items - These items are those significant cost or income iterns which maragement judges to be
one-off in nature and are not excepted to continue to be incur-ed as part of the regular tading performance of the
business. The separate reporting of these per Note 5 helps to provide a better indication of underlying performance.

Like-for-like sales - These are a measure of growth of sales adjusted for new or divested sites over a comparable
trading period.

Bank net cash/(debt) - This measure is made up of bank borrowings less cash and cash equivalents as perthe
statement of financial position.

Free cash flow - This is cash generated from operations less maintenance capital as reflected in the financial review,
finance costs, finance lease payments, taxation payments or receipts, advance payments to capital suppliers, loars
to Joint ventures and non-cash share-based payments. This is reconciled 1n note 2.

Maintenance capital, existing estate, estate expansion and freeheld purchase outflow - As reconciled in note 2,
cash used in investing activities consists of maintenance capital, spend on the existing estate, estate expansion and
the purchase of a freehold, which totals the cash outflows from capital projects.

Estimate: Intangible assets, right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment

These assets are affected by impairment assessrments and estimates of value in use and residual value. The
calculation of value in use is based on pre-tax cash flow projections from the financial forecast approved by the
Beard covering a three-year period. Cash flows beyond this three-year period are extrapolated over the fife of

the lease relating to that centre at the estimated lang-term growth rate. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the
cash flow projections aporoximates the Group's weighted average cost of capital, adjusted only to reflect the

way in which the market would assess the specific risks associated with the estimated cash flows of the bowling
businesses and to exclude any risks that are not relevant to estimated cash flows of the bowling businesses, or
for which they have already been adjusted. The effect of varying the key assumptions in the goodwill and tangible
property, plant and equipment impairment calculations is presented in Note 13,
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GTATEMENT OF A CCOUNTING POLICES ©f2 75

Use of judgements and estimates continued
Zstimate: Deferred tax

Fstimat on 1s required of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities and their tax
base. Detferred tax [iab lities are recognsed for all taxable temporary differences but, where deductible temporary
differences exist, maragerent’s judgement is required as <o whethera deferred tax asset should be recognised
based on the asailability of future taxable profits. The deferred tax assets actually recoverable may difter from the
arnourts recognised if actual taxable profits differ from rnanagernent’s estimates. The sensl ity 1o tris estirnation
is shown in Noze 22 which reflects the amounts that could be recognised as deferred tax assets.

Estimate: Incremental borrowing rate

The calculatior of lease iabilities requires the Group 1o detarmmne an increncenta borrawing rate {'IBR') to discount
future Finimurn lease sayrrents Judgement is applied in datermining he components of the IBR used for each
lease, ‘nciuding the movementin risk free rates, the Groups borrowing rmargin and any lease-specific adjustments.
The applicable BR for each iease varies between 2.1% and 6.4%, depending on its length of term. To determine the
incremental borrewing rate, the Groug where possible, uses recent third-party finarcing received by the Grous as

a starting point otherwise it as obraned borrowing rates from its lender for a range of maturity terms. The same
approach has Seen used for modifications and new leases during the year where a borrowing rate range of between
6.11% and &.43% has been used depending on the length of the lease extens’on. The BR's a significant area of
eetimation, as the Group obtained arange of barrowing ratzs for differing terms to determine a range of rates for
the modificatons and new leases in the year. A 1% increase in all of these rates would decrease the value of the
right-of-use asseton modification or addition of the new leases by £1.4m, while a 1% decrease in the rates would
increase the va ue by £1.6m.

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract Is, or contains, a lease, at inception of the contract. The Greup recognises
aright-of-use assetand a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangerments in which it is the
lessee fore the date at which the leased asset becorres avilable for use by the Group, except for snort-term [gases
{defined as \zases with & lease serm of 12 months or less) and leases of low-value assets. For these leases, the
Group recognisas the lease payments as an Operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease
unless another systematic basis 1s more representative of t1e time pattern in which economic benefits from the
|eased assets are comsumed.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, kess any accurmulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted
far any remeasurement of lease l:abilities. The cost of right-of-use assats includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognisec, lesz any lezse ‘neentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straig ht-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and the astimated useful lives of t1e assels.

Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of lease cayments to be made over the lease term, The lease
payments incluce fixed payments (ncluding in-substance fi<ed payments) less any lease incentives receivable and
variable lease payments that depend on anindex or a rate. Viariable lease payments that do not depend on an index
Ar a rate are recognised as eXpenses in tre pened In which the event or condition that triggers the payment cLeurs.

in calculating tha present vai.e of lease payrrents, the Group uses its incrermental borrowing rate at the lease
cormencement date because the interest iate imnplicit in the lease is not readily determinable, After the
cormmencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lease ayments made. The lease liability and the right o™ use asset are subsequently remeasured whenever:

_ The lease tarm has changed, inwhich case the loase liablity is remeasured by discounting the revisea lease
paymen:s usirga revised discount rate,
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- The lease payments change due to changes in anindex or rate or a change in expected payment under a
guaranteed residual vaiue, in which cases the |ease liability is rermeasured by discounting the revised lease
paymants using the initiat discount rate.

A lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate fease, in which case the
lease liability 1s remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

The Group applies 145 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impa'red and accounts for any idertified
impairrment loss as described in the 'impairment’ policy.

As a practical expedient, IFRS 16 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components, and instead account for
any lease and associated non-leese components as a single arrangerment. The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption o its short-terrm leases of machinery and equipment {i.e. those leases that have 2 lease
tesen of 17 months of less from the commencament date and do not contain a purchase option). it alse applies the
lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are cansidered to be low value.
Lease payments onh short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognisec as expensc on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Revenue

Reverue is accounted for by identifying the contract with & customer and the particular perfermance ohligations

in that contract. The Group's performance obligations represent the total amounts earned from customers from
bowling, food, beverage, machines and armusements, together with any other goods and services delivered in the
normal course of business, net of VAT, The transaction price is & fixed price set for the goods and services ordered
by the customer and payment of the tramsaction price is due immediately upor: the custemer booking the goods of
services at the centre o call centre, oron the website. The Group is not obliged to provide refunds or returns but

all refunds arc provided at 100% of the original trarsaction price paid for the goors or setvices by the customer.
Revenue for food and drink is recognised when the performance obligation, being the transfer of the products

to the buyer in exchange for consideration, is completed. Revenue arising from bowling is recoghised when the
pe-formance obligation of the customer actually playing is completed. Deposits paid in advance are hold on the
balarce sheet until that time and then recognised as income. Revenue for amusements ard machines is recognised
when the cash is collectad from the amusemert machine. The Group sells bundles whereby bowling is offered

with food and drink at a discounted price versus if they were sold individually. In accordance with IFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers, the discount is allocated amongst the products inthe nundle based on each
product’s standalone selling price as a proportion of the sum of the total standalene selling prices of all the products
in the pundle. Given the nature of the Group's reventue streams, recognition of revenue 15 not consideed to be a
significant area of judgement.

Deferred income

Advance boakings paid for by customers are recognised as deposits and held on the balance sheets as deferred
income untit the customer redeems their booking which becomes ‘paid and played. 1tis then transferred from the
balance sheet and recognised as revenue i {he staternent of comprenensive incorne.

Government grants

Government grants are recagnised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attached conditons will be cornplied with When the grant relaies fo an expense item, it 15 recognised as incorne
on a systematic bagis over the periods that the related costs, farwhich it is interded to compensate, aig expensed.
The Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme {('CJRS Y grantis recognised against staff costs within administrative
expenses and the local council Lockdown grants are recogrised separately within administrative expenses in the
Consalidated Income Statement.

The CIRS grant is recognised against cost of sales and staff costs within administrative expenses inthe
Consolidated Income Statement.
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Intangible assets
Goodwill

Goodwill represents “he excess of the cost of the acguisition of a subsidiary or busiress combination over the fair
value of the Croup’s share of the identifiable met assets acquired, Goodwill is car-ied at cost less impairment, and is
tested annua ly for impairment, or earlier if circumsrance s indicate that impairment may have occurred. Excess of
acquire’s irterest in zhe net fair value of acquiree's iderti-iable assets, liabilities and contirgent liabilities over cost
arising 0~ acquisitior is recegnised immediately in the statement of comprehersive income.

Goodwiltis not allocated to individual cash-generating units (‘CGUs') as the Group considers that the synergies arising
from each acquisitior benefit the Group as a whole, rather than individual centres and monitors goodwill in aggregate
forirternal pirposes. Therefore, for goodwill impairment testing, the CGUs are aggregated into a single group.

Software

Software cos™s are cepitalised and amortised over their estimated useful lives of up to three years an a straight-line
basis. All software has been purchased and generated exzernally.

Fair valued intangibles on acquisition

Customer lists

Custemer lists are recegnised at fair value on acquisition of subsidianes and are amortised over the years from
which their expected benefits are determined to be recoanised in the income statement to nil over a five-year
period with the rate of amortisation decreasing.

Favourable leases

Favourable leases are "ecognised at fair value or acquisition of subsidiaries and are amortised over the period of the
lease on a straight-lire basis.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plart and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value with
property, plart and equiprrent acquired in a business comaination recognised at their fair value. Cost of assets
includes acquisition costs net of VAT, as well as other directly attributable costs in bringing the asset into a working
condition. Deareciation is calculated so as to write off the Zost, less estimated residual value, of each asset on a
straight-line basis over its expected useful economic life, The principal useful lives used for this purpose are as follows:

Fixed furn's-ings Thelower of the length of the lease or their estimated useful lives

Freehold lan and buildings 40 years

Fixtures, fittings anc equisrment Between 3 and 40 years

Amasement machires 4 years

Assets in the course of constructior are not depreciated Jntil they are brought into use. As required by {AS 16,
property, plar t and equipment's expected useful life and residual values are reviewed annually. Residual value is
calculated based upen prices prevailing at the date of acquisition.

impairmen= of non-financial assets

At cach reporting date, all financial and non-financial assets are considered for evidence of impairment. I there is an
indication of impai-ment, the Group carries out an impairnent test by measuring the asset's recoverable amount,
which is the Figher of the fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. f this recoverable amount is below the
carrying value, an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income and the asset is written
down to the racoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash “lows arising from the use of the asset are discounted to their
presert value using a discount rate which reflects cur-ent market assessments of the time value of money and
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the risks specific to the asset. Impairment of the Group's property, plant and equiprnent and right of use assets

is assessed at the cash-generating unit {{ CGU') level being a bowling centre, with goodwill allocated at Company
level and impairment tested for goodwill at Company level, Impairment losses are charged to the staterrent of
comprehensive income in the peried in which they are identified and are allocated first to goodwill then to carrying
armounts of other assets at the CGU level.

Reversals of impairment

Animpairment foss ir respect of good s not reversed. In respect of other assets, an imparrment loss is
reversed when there i< an indication that the impairment loss may no longer exist and there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss Is reversed only to the extent
that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would nave been deterrmined, net of
depreciation or amartisation, If no impairment loss had been recognised.

Property disposals

Disposals of properties and any resultant gain or loss on disposal are recognised in the staterment of comprehansive
income once all conditions of the sale contract become unconditional.

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the underlying
asset s available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of [zase liabilit'es recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencermnent date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are related to the property leases ard
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease lability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee,
except for short-term |eases {defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) ard leases of low-value
assets (such as tablets and personal computers, small items of office furniture and telephones). For these leases,
the Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the

lease, unless another systernatic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which ecanomic benefits from
the leased assets are consumed.

Business combinations

The purchase of a company or bowling centre, being a group of inputs and processes rapable of generating profits,
15 accounted for as a business combination. Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition met-od
of accounting. The consideration for a business combination is measured at fair value on the date of acquisizion
with the assets acquirec anc liabilitics incurred measured at fair value o exchange. Goodwill is recognised as the
surplus of the consideration over the fair value of the net assets acquired and is accounted for as per the accourting
policy on goodwill. Transaction costs that the Group incurs in cornection with business combinations are expensed
as incurred. Management judgements are made in the measurement of fair values to the net assets acquired in 2
business combination, in particular the customer fists, inventories and property, plant and equipment acquired.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net ~eafisable value. Cost is calculated as cost of purchase on a firstin,
first out basis based on normal levels of activity. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling price, less further
costs expected to be incurred to completion and disposal which is the same method used to fair value the inventory
on a business corbination. Provision 's made for obsolete, slow-moving or defective iterns where appropriate.
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Financial instruments

Financial assets and | al¥lities are recognised in the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes party to the
contractual rights and obligations of the instrument.

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Financial agsets

All financial assets are initially recognised at fair value less transact’on costs and then can be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value.

Trade and cther receivables

Trade receivables are measured at fair value at initial recognition, do not carry any irterest and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Other receivables are subsequently measured
at amortised <ost using the e¥fective interest rate method and any interest income is recognised in profit and loss.
Appropriate a lowancas for estirmated irrecoverable amounts are recogrised in the income statement. Allowances
for doubtful debts are recogrised based on management s expectation of losses, without regard to whether an
impairment trigger has occurred or not {an 'expected crecit loss' model under IFRS 9).

Cash and cesh equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call dzposits with an original maturity of three monrths or less
and cash in transit, inzluding transactions paid by ¢redit card which are in transit and have yet to be remitted to
the Group's bank account by the merchant praviders. Bank overdrafts that are repayanle on dernand and form an
integral part ¢f the Group's cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liab'Fties and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that ev dences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities.

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value with attributable debt issue costs capitalised.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrow ngs are stated at amortised cost with any difference
between cost and redemption value being recognised in the statement of comprehensive income over the period
of the borrow ngs on an effective interest basis.

Debtissue costs

lssue costs of debt such as bank arrangement: fees and legal fees incurred in arranging debt are capitalised under
non-current ather receivables and are amortised in the statemert of comprehensive income on an effective interest
rate method,

Trade and other payables

Trade and othar payables are initially recognised at fair val ue and subsequently held at amortised cost using the
effective interast rate rrethod.
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Derecognition of financial assets and finandial liabilities

Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights o receive the contractual cash flows in a trarsaction ir which substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership, and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligaticns are discharged or cancellec, or expire
The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified
liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on the medified terms is recognisec at
fair value. On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the
consideration paid {Including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment

The Group recogrises loss allowances for expected credit losses {('ECLs") on financial assets measured at amortised
cost. These are always measured at an amount equal to 12 montns ECL. The maximum period considered

when estimating ECLs is the maximurm contractual period over which the Group is exposed to credit nisk. When
determining whether there 1s default or the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recegnition and when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without uncue cost or effort. This includes both cualitative and quantitative information and analysis,
based on the Group's historical axperience and informed credit assessment and forward-looking information. This
same information is used to determine if financial instruments have low credit risk upon initial recognition. Loss
allowances for financial assets measured at armortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the
assets. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (eitrer partially or in full) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery.

Pension costs

The Group operates a defined contribution pension plan. The Group pays contributions to privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatery basis. The Company has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are
due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the futura
payments is available.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as the result of a past
event and it is both probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount
of the obligation can be refiably estimated. Where the Group expects to be reimbursed for an outfiow of resources
associated with a provision, for example under an insurance contract, the expected reimbursemant is recognised
as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certai. If the effect of the time value of morney

is material, provisions are calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability
Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the unwinding of the discount ever time 1s charged
to finance costs in the statement of comprehensive income,

Ten Entertainment Group ple Annual Repert and Accounts 2022



STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES <!

STRATEGIC REPORT

Tax

The tax charce comprises current tax payable and deferred tax. The current tax charge represents ar estimate of
the tax payable in respect of the Group's taxable profits and is based on an interpretation of existing tax faws.

As required by IAS "2 [revised), the Group provides deferred income tax using the balance sheet liability method

on all temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying values at the balance
sheet date. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities so r2=cognised are determined using the tax rates and laws that
have beer enacted o~ substantively enacted by the balanze sheet date and are based on the expected manner of
realisatiar or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets or labilities,

Deferred ‘ncame tax assets are recognised *o the extent ~hat it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is not recognised in respect of the
initial recogniton of an asset or liability acquired in a transaction which is not a business combination and at the
time of the transaction does not affect accounting or taxable profits.

Deferred inccme tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilit'es and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxahle entity or d'fferent taxable entities where there is an
intention to szttle the balances on a net basis.

Segment reporting

The Group's segmens {distinguishable components of the Group that are engaged either in providing oroducts or
services) are ts tenpin bowling operations and its central management. The Group wholly operates within the UK,
The Group hes identified the Board of Directors as the Chief Operatirg Decision Maker {{CODM').

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as eqUity. Share premium a-ises on the excess between the fair value of the shares
issued and the par value of the shares issued and the existing shares issuea have none. Incremental costs
drectly attrib.table to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity a5 a deduction, net of tax, against
share prermium.

Share-based payments

Performnance Share Plans {'PSPs’) for the Executive Directars are accounted for in accardance with IFRS 2 Share-
Based Payments. The value of the awards is measured at fair value at the date of the grant and recognised as an
expense. The total amount expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the awards granted, including
any market performance conditions. The cost of the transactions is recognised together with a corresponding
increase in ecuity, ovar the period in which the performance conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which
the relevart Directors become fully entitled to the awarc.

GOVERNANCE

FINANCIALS
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NOTES T THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE 53-WEEK PERIOD ENDED 1 JANUARY 2023

T Segment reporting

Segmental information is presented in respect of the Group's business segments. Strategic decisions are mace
by the Board based on information presented in respect of these segments. There are no differences in the
measurement of segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities for each segrrent.

The Group comprises the following segments:

Tenpin Limited - Tencin Limited {including its subsidiaries Tenpin Five Limited and Quattrole’sure Limited) is a
leading tenpin bowling operator in the UK. All revenue is derived from activities conducted in the UK.

Central - comprises central management, including company secretarial work and the Beard of Directors' and
general head office assets and costs, The segrment results for the 53-week peried ended 1 January 2023 and 52-
week pericd ended 26 Docember 2021 are used by the Board ‘or strategic decision making, and a reconciliation of
those resuls to the reported profit in the Censolidated Statement of Cornprehensive Income, and the segment

assets are as follows:

Tenpin
Limited Central Group
£000 £000 £000

For the 53-week period ended 1 January 2023
Segment revenue - external 126,673 - 126,673
Bowling 55,72% - 55,72%
Food anc drin< 35,327 - 35,327
Machines and amusements 30,475 - 30,475
Other 5,142 - 5,142
Group Adjusted EBITDA after rental costs (Note 2) 42,024 (2,394) 39,630
Segment assess as at | January 2023 271,213 4,779 275,992
Segment fiab s as at 1 lanuary 2023 (211,485) (5,363) (216,848)
Reconciliation of adjusted EBITDA to reported operating profit .
Group acjusted E3ITDA after rental costs (Note 2) 42,024 (2,394) 39,630
Amortisation and depreciation of intangibles, property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (18,727} - (18,727}
Loss on disposals of assets 271) - (271)
Amortisation cf fair value items {120) - {120}
Net impairrmert reversal 631 - 631
Exceptional ‘'ncome [Note 5) 1,263 - 7,263
Add back rental cost 13,105 — 13,105
Operating profit 43905 {2,394) 41,511
Loss on Joint venture - (310) -
Finance costs {(Note 4) {6,709) (497) {7,206)
Profit before taxation 37,196 (3,201) 33,995
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Tenpin
Lirmited Central Group
£000 £000 £000

For the 52-weck peried ended 26 December 2021
Segment revenue - external 67,521 — 67,521
Bowling 29,776 - 29776
Food and drink 19,094 — 19,094
Machines ard amusements 16,280 — %6,280
Other 2,371 — 2,377
Group Adjusted EBITDA after rental costs {Note 2) 16,654 {2,030) 14,623
Segment assets as at 26 December 2021 253,612 5,728 259,340
Segment liabilities as at 26 December 2021 (221,677) {3,600) (225277}
Reconciliation of adjusted EBITDA to reported operating profit
Group adjusted EB|TDA after rental costs {Note 2) 16,654 12,031} 14,623
Amortisation and depreciation of intangibles, property, plant and
equipment and right-cf-use assets [17,426) — (17,426)
Loss on disposals of assets (442) — 442)
Amortisation of fair value items 1130) — (130)
Impairment reversal 1,124 - 5124
Exceptional income [Note 5) 238 - 238
Add back rental cost 12,436 — 12,436
Cperating profit 12,454 (2,030 10,423
Finance costs (Note 4] 15,475) 1510} (5,286
Profit hefare taxation 6,978 (2,541) 4,437

Afl assets have been aliocated to segments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Cithiiate!
FOR THE §3-WEEK PZRIOD ENDED 1 JANUARY 2023

2 Alternative performance measures - non-GAAP measures

The Group hzs identified certain measures that it believes will assist in the understanding of the performance

of the business. The measures are not defined under IFRS and they may not be directly comparable with other
companies’ adjusted measures. The non-IFRS measures are not intended to be a substitute for an IFRS performance
measure but the bus ness has included them as it consid=rs them to be important comparables and key measues
used within te business for assessing performance. These financial statements make reference to the following
non-IFRS measures:

Group adjusted EBITDA - This measurement is earnings bafore interest, taxation, depreciation, amortisation,
exceptional items, i pairment, loss on Joint venture and profit or loss on disposal of assets.

Group adjusted EBITDA after rental costs - This measurament is earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation,
amortisation, exceptional items, impairment, loss on Joirt venture and profit or loss on disposal of assets, less a
deducrion for the cash cost of rent, This has been dene to show the underlying trading performance of the Group
which these other costs or income can distort.

S3weekste 52 weeksto
1January 26 Decermnber

Reconciliation of operating profit to Group adjusted EBITOA and Group adjusted 2023 2021
EBITDA a*ter rental costs £000 £000
Group adjusted EBITDA 52,735 27,059
Rental cost {13,105) (12,436)
Group adjusted EBITDA after rental costs 39,630 14,623
Acd back rertal cost 13,105 12,436
Amortisatior of fair valued items on acquisition (113) {149)
Arnortisatior of software {105) (131
Loss on disposals 271) {442)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets (18,629) (17,276)
Operating profit before exceptional items 33,617 2,061
impairment raversal 4631 1,124
Exceptional items - other 7,163 238
Operating profit 41,511 10,423

Cost of goods sold and gross margin - The cost of sales as reflected in the statement of comprehensive income
consists of diract bar, foed, vending, amusements, gaming machine related costs, PRQ machine costs and staff
costs. Cost of goods sold excludes staff costs but security and machine licence costs incurred by the centres are
incfuded. Dec Jcting cost of goods soid from revenue gives the gross margin. This is how cost of goods sold and
gross margin are reported by the business monthly and at centre level as labour costs are judged as matenal and
thus reported separatzly within operating costs.

STRATEGIC REPBRT GOVERNANCE FINANCIALS
53weeksto 52 weeks o
1January 26 Decemzer
2023 2021
Reconciliation of costs of sales £000 £000
Cost of goods sold per the financial review (18,145) (2,448)
Site labour costs (23,739} {13,547
Machine ficence and security costs in administrative expenses 969 AE2
Costs of sales per the statement of comprehensive income (40,915) 122,51

Adjusted profit before tax - This consists of the profit before tax adjusted for items ‘udged as exceptional and
relating to impairment.

Adjusted underlying profit after tax and adjusted earnings per share - This consists of the profit after tax
adjusted for exceptional items and impairment provisions and as used to determine the adiusted earnings per
share. A judgement has been made to ref'ect these measures 5o they are more comparable by excluding one-off
iterns. The reconciliation of this number to profit after tax is included under Note 8.

Exceptional costs - These items are those significant cast or income items which management judges to be
ore-off in nature and are not expected to continue to be incurred as part of the regular trading performance of the
busiress. The separate reporting of these per Note 5 helps to provide a better indication of underlying performance.

Like-for-like sales - These are a measure of growth of sales adjusted for new or divested sites ove- a comparable
trading period.

Bank net cash/{debt) - This measure is made up of bank borrowings less cash and cash equivalents as per the
staternent of financial position.

Free cash flow - This is cash generated from operations less maintenance capital as reflected in the finance review,
finance costs, finance lease payments, taxation payments or receipts, advance payments to capital suppliers, loans
to Joint ventures and non-cash share-based payments. This is reconciled below:

53 weeksto 52 weeks to
TJanuary 26 December
2023 2021

Reconciliation of free cash flow £000 £000
Cash generated from operations 61,963 30,827
Maintenance capital {4,943) @10y
Finance lease, finance costs and taxation payments {22,270) {13,578)
Exceptional income & non-cash share-based payments charge (7,802) {248)
Movement in advance payments to capital suppliers 1,431 2,803)
Loan to Joint venture {1,204 _
Free cash flow per the financial review 27175 13,288
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NDTES TO THE FINANCLAL STATEMENTS [ g 7iksiEn SIRATERIC REPORT GOVERNARCE FINANCIALS
FOR THE 53-WEEK PERIOD ENDED 1 JANUARY 2023
2 Alternative performance measures - non-GAAP measures continued The average monthly number of persons employed (including Executive Directors) during the period, analysed by
Maintenance capital, existing estate, estate expansion and freehold purchase outflow - This is cash used in category, was as follows:
investing activities as reconciled below:
B3 weeksto 52 wesksto
S3weekste 52 weeksto VJanuary 26 Dmnmzuqm_.
1) 26D b 2023 202
m-._m:owuq“ mnmzmom Staff numbers - Group Number Number
Reconciliation of capital investment octflows to cash used in investing activities £000 £000 Site staff 1,449 n205
Cach umed im ] - - 250863 PR Administration 65 53
ash used in investirg activities (25, ] (7, Unit management 159 157
Analysed as follows: 1673 1499
Maintenance capital {4,943) (910)
Existing estate (8,465) (3,363) 53 weeksto 53 weaks to
Estate expansion (6,882) (56) 1January 26 December
Fraehold purchase {5,000} - Sraff costs - € MMMW Moomm
) ) Staff costs - Company
c ants ¢ 2,80 -
Zo<m30:ﬁ, ir advance payments o capital suppliers 1,431 [ 3) Wages and salaries 913 v
Loar to Joint venture {1,204} — Social security costs 98 83
Cash outflows for cadital projects (25,063) (7132) Other pension costs 14 13
Share-based payments (Note 26) 539 248
3 Staff costs and numbers 1,564 1,318
53weekste 52 weeksto
1January 26 Decernber Staff numbers - Company Nurmber Nurnber
2023 2021 Administration {including Executive Directors) 7 5
Staff costs - Sroup £000 ECDO
Wages and salaries 15,821 16,515 4 Finance costs
Social security costs ‘ 1,906 1,267 53 weeksto 52 weeks fo
Other pensicn costs 322 178 1January 26 December
Share-based saymerts (Note 26) 539 248 2023 2021
28,588 18,208 £ooe £009
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts 334 391
Staff costs included within costs of sales are £22,761k (2021: £13,072k). The balance of staff costs is recorded within Amertisation of debt issuance costs 168 124
administrat've expenses. The 2027 staff costs are net of CIRS which armount to £3,507k with nil in 2022, Detalls of Lease interest 6,682 5,481
Directors’ rer~uneration are set out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 64. No Directors have accrued Oth 22 1)
any ret.rement benefits and Directors that resigned during the year rece’ved no compensation for loss of office. e
The highest paid Director for the 53-week period ended 1 .anuary 2023 received remuneration of £1,197k (2021: Finance costs 7,206 5585

£667k). The 2019 LTIP scheme vested in 2022 and 128,332 awards were exercised at a market value of £327k, All key
ranagement positiors are held by Executive Directars of Ten Entertainment Group plc and, accordingly, no further
disclosure of key management remuneration is deemed necessary.
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NOTES T THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS £

FOR THE 53-WEEK PERIOD ENDED T JAN

5 Profit before taxation

The following iterns have heen included in arriving at profic before taxation:

STRATERIC REPERT GOVERNANCE FINANCIALS

7 Taxation

Recognised inthe consolidatad staterment of comprehensive income:

S3weeksto 52 weeksto B3 weeksto 52 weeksto
1January 26 December 1January 26 December
2023 20n 2023 20
£000 £000 £000 £0Co
Staf* costs (Note 3} 28,588 18,208 Currenttax
Consumables charged to cost of sales 3,086 1,460 Tax on profits for the year 4,013 _
Depreciation of proferty, plant and equipment {Note 13) 6,945 6,130 Deferred tax (Note 22)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 14) 11,685 11,166 Origination and reversal of temporary differences 3,386 1,036
Amortisation of software (Note 10) 105 13 Effect of changes in tax rates - [248)
Arrortisation of fair valued intangibles on acquisition {Note 10) 79 0 Adjustment in respect of prior years - [356)
Loss on disposal of assets mn 442 Tax charge in statement of comprehensive income 7.399 432
Net impairmant reversal (631) 1,124
Government grants “eceived (excluding CIRS) - {1,354) The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs (2021: differs) from the theoretical amount that would arise using -he
CIRS grants received _ (3.507) standard rate of tax in the UK of 19% (2021: 19%). The differences are explained below:
st i nrz (Note 11 310 -
on,m on Joint verturs { ) 53 weeksto 52 weeksto
Variable lease rentals payable — property 298 41 1January 26 Decarmber
Share-based payments (Note 26) 539 248 2023 2021
Repairs on property, plant and equipment 3,289 1,691 £000 £0co
Exceptional items Profit before taxation 33,995 4,437
HMRC VAT claims rezeived and provision for updated HMRC VAT quidance {7,263) (238) Tax using the UK corporation tax rate of 19% [2021: 19%) 6,459 843
Auditors’ remuneration Expenses not deductible 943 353
Fees payzble to the Company’s auditors for the Company and Change in tax rates on defarred tax balances - (248)
Consolidated finarcial staternerts 70 58 Adjustment in respect of prior years (52) a7
Audit of the Company’s subsidiaries 240 135 Permanent differences 211 [30)
Audit-related assurance services 40 37 (Use) of tax losses/loss carry back (162) [5%3)
350 230 Tax charge 7,399 432

6 Results attributable to Ten Entertainment Greup plc

The firancial staternents of the Company, Ten Entertainment Group ple, were approved by the Board of Directors

on 21 March 2023. The resul: for the financial year dealt with in the financial statements of Ten Entertainment Group

plc was a loss of £642k (2021: £2,038k). As permitted by Sectior 408 of the Companies Act 2006, no separate

staterrent of comprenensive Income 1s presented in resp xct of the Company.

On 24 May 2021, the Government confirmed that the corporation tax main rate would remain at 19% and increass
to 25% from 1 April 2023, As such, the rate used to calculate the deferred tax balances as at 1 January 2023 is a
blended rate up to 25% depending on when the deferred tax balance will be released.
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FOR THE 53 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 1 JANUARY 2023

8 Earnings pershare

Basic earnings per share for each period is calculated by caviding the earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders
by the weighted average number of ardinary shares in issze during the period. The total shares in issue at the end of
the b3-week period were 68,496,118 (2021: 68,367,784).

The Company has 507,325 potentially ‘ssuable shares [2027: 274,005), all of which relate to share options issuad to
Directors of the Company. Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing profit for the year and total
comprehensive income attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstaiding during the year together with the dilutive number of ordinary shares.

SIRATEGIC REPDRY BUVERNANEE FINANEIALS

9 Business combination - Harlow

On 15 May 2022, Tenpin Limited entered an Asset Purchase Agreement and acquired the assets and trade of the
Harlow bowling site from Marlow Bowl Limited for £454k.

The table below summarises the consideration paid for the acquisition, the fair value of the assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed on the date of the acquisition.

The following analyses the purchase consideration:

Consideration as at 15 May 2022 £000
Adjusted basix earnings per share has been calculated in order to compare earnings per share year-on-year and to Cash consideration paid 454
aid future comparisors. Earnings has been adjusted to exclude exceptional expenses/(income), impairment reversal N . Rt
- - X - i . . Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
and other one-off costs (and any associated impact on the taxation charge). Adjusted diluted earnings per share
is calculated by applying the same adjustments to earnings as describea in relation to adjusted eamings per share Inventory 5
divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year adjusted by the effect of Property, plant and equipment 59
the outstanding share opticns. Deferred tax asset 1
Other assets and liabilities, net (21
S3weeksto 52 weeksto - — -
1lanuary 26 December Total identifiable net assets 64
Basic and dilLted 2023 2021 Goodwill 390
Profit after tax (£000) 26,596 4,005 Total 454
Basic weighted average number of shares in issue 68,447,94% 68,358,261 A " \ated costs of C8BK have b haraed to admini ) h idated ;
) cquisition-related costs o k nave been cnarged to administrative expenses in the consolidated statement o
Adjustment for share awards (number] 509,325 274,005 comprehensive income for the 53-week period anded 1 January 2023.
Diluted weighted average number of shares in issue 68,957,274 68,632,266 ) ) ) ) )

: : Property, plant and equipment acquired did notinclude the bowling lanes and equipment whick is retained by
Basic earnings per share [pence) 38.86p 5.86p the landlore, which would normally make up the buik of the cost of a site. The acquired aquipment, furniture and
Diluted earnirgs per share {pence) 3B.57p 5.84p fittings on site is hespoke, without a marketplace to easily attain fair values from. The fair value of the acquired

property, plant and equipment has thus been based on the net book value of these assets at the tirme of sale to the
Below is the calculation of the adjusted earnings per share Group, being thelr cost when acquired less accumulated depreciation up to the date of sale,
A deferred tax asset of £1k was recognised on the fair values of assets acquired versus their tax basis. As part of
S3weeksto  52weeksto the due diligence, the sales and profit numbers prior to acquisition from the seller's management accourts were
1January 246 December reviewed. As not all of the information was provided they are not disclosed here to provide a guide to potential
2023 2021 full-year performance. Since the date of the business combination the site generated £620k of sales and made
Adjusted earn ngs per share £000 £000 EBITDA of £82k which has been included in the statement of comprehensive income. The goodwill is made up of
Profit 2fter ax 26 596 4005 the expected benefits to arise from Tenpinisation of the site's operations and processes under the managemert of
. . e it e | [
Net impairment reversal (631) (124 e Terpm brand, Rone of the goodwil s expectad 1o 'be deductivle for tax purposes.
Exceptional income (7,263) (238)
Tax impact or above adjustrments 1,380 45
Adjusted underlying profit afte- tax 20,082 2,688
Adjusted prefit after tax 20,082 2,688
Basic weightec averags number of shares in issue 68,447,949 68,358,261
Adjusted basic earnings per share (pence) 29.34p 5.93p
Adjusted diluted earnings per share (pence) 29.12p 5.90p
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FOR THE 53-AEEK PZRIOCD ENDED 1T JANUARY 2023
10 Goodwi |l and intangible assets 11 Investments in joint venture
Fair valued Group and Company £00D
intangibles At 27 December 2020 310
on . .
acquisition Goodwill Software Total Acau'sitions and disposals -
Group £000 ECO0 £000 E000 At 26 Decemnber 2021 310
Cost Share of post-tax losses in Joint venture {(310)
At 27 Decerrber 2020 2938 29,350 1,301 33,589 At 1 January 2023 -
Additions — — 24 24
At 26 Decerrber 2021 2,738 29,350 ",325 33,613 Country of Ownership Principal
Additiens - 390 40 430 Company incorperation interest % activity
Disposals - - (34) (34) Houdini's Escape Room Experience Limited (Registered address:
At 1January 2023 2,938 29,740 1,331 34,009 Aragon House, Uriversity Way, Cranfield Technology Park, MK43
OF o isura
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses A L 0% Leisure
At 27 Decemoer 2020 2,677 - 1,086 3,763 In December 2019, the Company entered into a Share Purchase Agreement and acquired 50% of the share capital
Charge for thz period - amortisation 20 - 131 221 of Houdini's Escape Roorn Experience Limited ["Houdini's") for £300k. The Company also entered into a joint venture
AL 76 Decermnser 2021 7767 — 1217 3984 agreement to determine the arrangements around the selection of Directors, dividend policy, premises use,
' " _ ision of services, put and call opti
Charge for the period - amortisation 79 _ 105 184 provisi rvices, put and call option arrangements and deadlock procedures.
Disposals — — (34) (34) Tenpin Limited and Houdini's also entered into a £2,500k loan facility agreement whereby Houdini's can borrow
money from Tenpin Limited aver a three-year period to fund the building of escape raorns or their premises.
At1January 2033 2,846 - 1.288 4134 £1,807k has been borrowed as at T January 2023. The loans will incur a market rate of interest and have been
Net book valie secured by a Debenture Agreement that the two parties entered into. As the purpase of the joint venture is wo
At1January 2023 o2 29,740 43 29,875 W;n%;.ﬂ ﬂcﬁawm_]mnwnm rooms iwmﬁjjm is wﬁmmmm“mww: mﬂ the w@mMm:.,mjﬁ Eo%aa the mm<3m3 of dividends by Houdiri’s.
oudini’s na rooms open at the end ¢ P2, h I i 7 .
At 26 Decernber 301 171 25 350 108 29,625 L > p ol w are operated out of nine tenpin centres
At 27 Decemter 202C 261 29,350 215 29826  12Investments

Impairmert testing is carried cut at the cash-generating unit ({CGU" level on an annual basis. A CGU is the smallest
icentifiable grcup of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets o- groups of assets. Each ind'vidual centre is consid=2red to be a CGU. However, for the purposes of testing
goodwill for impairment, it is acceptable under IAS 36 to group CGUs, in order to reflect the level at which goodwill
is monitored b management. The whole Group is considered to be one group of CGUs, for the purposes of
goodwill impaiiment testing, on the basis of the level at which goodwill is mgnitored by management and histoncal
allocation of gcodwili upon acquisition. The overall procese for testing impairment follows the same methedology
as detailed in Note 13 for property, plant and equipment. As part of the busiress combiration accounting for the
acauisition of Essenden Limited in 2015, the fair value o customer lists, rebate contracts and the Tenpin Limited
weheite was recoanised and have heen fully ameortized orer the pened forwhich he benefits were expeciad o be
recognised. The rema’nng value is for the lease acguired a~ the Worcester centre which was significantly below
market value ar d was fair valued and accounted for on acquisition in 2016 and is being amortised until the end of
the lease. The :mortisztion charged on the above intangible assets is included in other administrative expenses in
the statement of cormprehensive income, Bank borrowings are secured on property, plant and equipment for the
value of £25,000k {2027 £39,000k).

Subsidiaries’

shares

Company £000
At 27 December 2020 38,915
Acquisitions and disposals -
At 26 December 2027 38,915
Acquisitions and disposals —
At 1January 2023 38,915

The Directors believe that the carrying value of the investments is supported by the underlying net assets of the
business and the future profits that will be generated by the Group.
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FOR THE 53-AEEK PERIOD ENDED 1 JANUARY 2023

12 Investmants continued

Group investments

The Compane has investmen's in the following subsidiary undertakings, which affected the results and net assets

of the Group:

Parent

Country of Percentage of

reqgistration

shares held

Companies owned cirectly by Ten Entertainment Group ple

TEG Holdings Limited England & Wales 100%
Companies owned indirectly by Ten Entertainment Gro ap plc

Tenpin Limited TEG Heidinge wimited England & Wales 100%
Indoor Bowling Equity _imited TEG Heldings Limited England & Wales 100%
Indoor Bowling Acquisitions Limited Indoor Bowling Equity Limited England & Wales 100%
Essenden Limited Indoor Bowlir g Acguisitions Limited England & Wales 100%
Georgica Lirrited €ssenden Limited England & Wales 100%
Georgica Holdings Limited Georgica Lim ted England & Wales 100%
Tenpin Five L mited Tenpin Limited England & Wales 100%
Tenpin One Limited Tenpin Limited England & Wales 100%
Georgica (Lewisham) Limized Georgica Holdings Limited England & Wales 100%
GNU 5 Limited Geergica Heldings Limited Englard & Wales 100%
Tenpin (Sundzrland) Limited Terpin Limited England & Wales 100%
Quattroleisur= Limited Tenpin Limited England & Wales 100%
Tenpin {Halifax) L'mitad Tenpin Limite 1 England & Wales 100%

Ten Entertainment Group plc and allits Group companies have their registered office at Aragon House, University
Way, Cranfield Technology Pak, Cranfield, Bedford MK43 0EQ.

Tenpin Five Limited and Tenpin One Limited are claiming exemption from the audit and the preparation of financial
staternents in accordance with Section 479A of the Companies Act 2006, A parent guarantee will be issued for

the liabilities o” these companies which only consist of intercompany loans with the parent company and thus the
cuarantee is not expected to be called upon.

STRATEGIL REPORY GOVERNANCE FINANCIALS
13 Property, plant and equipment
Fixtures,
Land and Fixed Armusement  fittings and
buildings furnishings machines equipment Total
Group £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
At 2] December 2020 - 1,368 1,401 42,099 41,868
Additions — — 35 4,270 4,305
Disposals — (263) - (1,282) {1,545)
At 26 Decernber 2021 - 1,105 1,436 52,087 64,628
Additions 5,000 1,142 459 18,259 24,860
Disposals - - - (2,186) (2.186)
At 1 January 2023 5,000 12,247 1,895 68,160 87,302
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
At 27 December 2020 — 3,806 1,159 15,450 20,415
Charge for the period — 101 5,013 6,130
Impairment reversal - — - {264) (264)
Disposals - depreciation - (114) - 1,069) (1,183)
At 26 Decernber 2021 — 4,708 1,260 19,130 25,098
Charge for the period - 994 141 5,810 6,945
Impairment reversal - — - (175) (175)
Digposals - — - (1,764) {1,764}
At 1 January 2023 — 5,702 1,401 23,001 30,104
Net book value
At 1January 2023 5,000 6,545 494 45,159 57,198
At 26 December 2021 — 6,397 176 32,957 39,53C
At 27 December 2020 - 7,562 242 33,649 41,453

Property, plant and equipment and night-of-use assets are reviewed for impairment on an annual basis. The
recoverable amount of each CGU (each of the 48 (2021: 46) centres open as at the period end nas been treated
as a CGU} has been calculated as the higher of 'ts value in use and its fair value less cost to sell. The calculation of
value in use 1s based on pre-tax cash flow projections from the financial forecasts approved by the Board covering
a three-year period. Cash flows beyond this three-year period are extrapolated over the life of the lease relating to
H_:mﬁnm;ﬁm. .
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FOR THE 53-WEEK PERIOD ENDED 1 JANUARY 2023

13 Property, plant and equipment continued

The key assumptions of the value in use calculation are:

1January 26 December

2023 2021
Pericd on whizh management-approved forecasts are based 3 years 3years
Long-term growth rate applied beyond approved forecast period 2% 2%
Pre-tax discount rate 13.25% 12.01%

The pre-tax diszount rate apalied to the cash flow projections approximates the Group's weighted average cost of
capital 'WACCH, adjusted only to reflect the way in which tre market would assess the specific risks associated
with the estimated cash flows of the bowling businesses and to exclude any risks that are not relevant to estimated
cash flows of the bowling businesses, or for which they hav2 aiready been adjusted. This pre-tax discount rate has
been benchmar<ed aga nst the discount rates applied by other companies in the leisure sector The future cash
flows have also >een adjusted to account for climate relatec risks, with outflows tactored in for the purchase of
solar panels to ¢o up at sites 1o help achieve Net Zero targets. The impairment review this year has resulted in an
rmpairment reversal of £1,087k against the £2,522k of impairment charged in 2020. The reversal has been allocated
as £912k to right of use assets and £175k for property, plant and equipment in the sarme propartions that the
irmpairments arose. The reversal has arisen due to the improsed performance of the sites since recpening and thus
tne improvernent of the short-term forecasts in the review compared te prior year, when the impairment resulted.

The key assumptions to which the calculation is sensitive rerain tre growth rate that is expected of each centre
and the pre-tax discount rate. If the discount rate applied in tne calculations is increased by 1%, there is no change
to the Impairmert releasz but there would be an impalrment charge of E116k (2021: £1,292k). If the long-term
growth rate applied is changed to 1%, there is no change to t1e impairment release but there would be an
impairment charce of 48k {2027: £707k). if the trading performance were to significantly reduce in line with the
downside case inthe going concern section for 2023, the impairment reversal would reduce by £747k and the
impairment charge of £3,56% arises.

For the calculatior of fair value less cost to seil, management nas assumed that each Tenpin Limited business could
be sold for a multisle of Sx E3ITDA (2021: 5x EBITDA).

The depreciation 2nd impairment charges and reversal are recagnised in administrative expenses in the statement
of comprehensive income. Bank borrowings are secured on all assets of the Group for the value of £25,000k (2021
£37,000k) including property, plant and equipment.

STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERKANCE FINANCIALS
14 Right-of-use assets
Amusement
machines
Property and other Tota

Group £000 £000 £000
Cost

At 27 December 2020 163,514 10,823 174,337
Lease additions - 442 442
Disposals — (166) (168)
Madification of leases 20,067 20,067
At 26 December 2021 183,581 11,099 194,680
Lease additions 9,547 1,768 11,315
Disposals - (383) [(383)
Modification of leases 3,793 - 3,793
At 1 January 2023 196,921 12,484 209,405
Accumulated depreciation and impairment

At 27 December 2020 10,720 6,472 17,192
Charge for the period 2,013 2153 17,166
Impairment reversal (860} {860)
Disposals - depreciation - (142) {142)
At 26 December 2021 18,873 8,483 27,356
Charge for the period 2,786 1,899 11,685
impairment reversal {912) - {912}
Disposals - depreciation - (375) (375)
At 1 January 2023 27,747 10,007 37,754
Net book value

At 1January 2023 149,174 2,477 171,651
At 26 December 2021 164,708 2,616 167,324
At 27 Decernber 2020 152,794 4,351 157,145
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15 Inventories

Group Company
1lJanuary 26 December 1January 26 December
2023 2021 2023 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000
Goods held for resale 1,493 1,226 - —

The cost of invantories recognised as an expense and includec in cost of sales amounted to £11,548k (2021:

£5,758Kk). There is a prevision of E61k {2021: £80k) for absolete shoes. These are included in the figures above. Bank

borrowings “or the value of £25,000k (2021: £39,000k) are s2cured on all assets of the Groue ingluding inventery,

16 Trade and other receivables

STRAEEGIC REPIRT BOVERNANCE FINANCIALS
18 Share capital
2023 2021
Group and Company Shares £000 Shares £a00
68,367,784 (2021: 68,346,970) ordinary shares of
£0.01 each at the beginning of the year 68,367,784 684 68,346,570 683
Issue of share capital during the period 128,234 1 20 814 1
Ordinary shares of £0.01 each at the end of
the year 68,496,118 685 68,367,784 684

As at 1 January 2023, the Company's authorised share capital was £684,961 [2021: £683,678) divided into a single
class of 68,496,118 (2021: 68,347,784) ordinary shares of 1p each. Allissued ordinary shares are fully paid up. The
share capital of the Group is represented by the share capital of the Company, Ten Entertainment Group plc, which
was incorperated on 15 March 2017, The shares confer on each holder the right to attend, speak and vote at all the
meetings of the Company with one vote per ordinary share on a pell or written reselution,

19 Cash generated from operations

Group Company

1January 26 Decemnber 1January 26 December

2023 20N 2023 2021

Current receivasles €000 £000 £000 £Q00

Trade receivables 118 374 - —
Amounts owed 2y subs diary undertakings

{(Note 24} - — 611 205

Accrued income 107 4 - -

Advance payments to supplier 1,372 2,803 - —

Other receivables 1,453 B44 - —

Prepaymenrts 1,617 1,29 9 4

4.667 5,426 620 209

There is a provision of £300k (2021: £300k) for trade receivables that are beyond their due date and a provision of
£135k {2021: £135k] against other receivables that may not be -ecoverable. Included in other receivables is a foan to
Houdini's for £1,801k, {2021: £600k) which is charged interest 2t the effective interest rate agreed at the time of the

loan. The loans mature at the end of 2024,

17 Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company
1January 26 December 1January 26 December
2023 2021 2023 2021
£020 £000 £000 £000
Cask and cash equivalents 10,086 11,511 298 4,424

Group Company
53weeksto S2weeksto 53 weeksto 52 weeksto
t January 2& December 1January 26 December
2023 2021 2023 20
Cash flows from operating activities £000 £000 £000 £000
Profit/(loss) for the period 26,596 4,005 (2.696) (2,038}
Adjustments for:
Tax 7,399 432 - -
Finance costs 7,206 5986 - é
Non-cash one-off income (239) (238) - —
Mon-cash share-based payments charge/(credit) 539 24% 539 248
ioss on disposal of assets 271 442 - -
Share of loss in Joint venture 310 - 310 -
Amortisation of intangible assets 184 221 - -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 6,945 6,130 - —
Depreciation of right of use assets 11,685 11,1466 - —
Impairment reversal (631) (1,124} - —
Changes in working capital:
Increase In Inventories (267) (720) -~ -
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other recevables 77 {955) (411} [144)
Intieasef {detiewse) in Uade and oiner payables 1,289 5,234 11,868 377
Cash generated from/{used in) operations 61,963 30,827 (4,126) {153
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20 Bank borrowings and lease liabilities

STRATEEIC REPORT

Available borrowings are as follows:

GOVERNANCE

FINANCIALS

Group Company
1January 26 December 1January 24 December
2023 2021 2023 2021
Current fiabilities £000 £000 £000 £000
Bank loans — 4,666 - -
Leases - Machines/other 2,728 3,223 - -
Leases - Properties 7720 8,941 — -
Capitalised financing ~osts - {169) - -
10,448 16,661 — _

Total avaifable  Total drawn
Group Currency Interest rates Maturity £000 F000
Revolving credit facility GBP LIBOR +1.80% Apr-2024 23,000 -
Bank overdraft GBP LIBOR +1.80% Apr-2024 2,000 —
Total borrowings 25,000 -
The payment profile of minimum lease payments under Leases is as follows:
Property leases Machines and other leases Total

1January 26 December

1January 26 Decemnber

1Jlanuary 24 December

In Septerrber 2019, the Group entered into a £25,000k facil ty with the Royal Bank of Scotland ple {RBS') for three 2023 2on 2023 2021 2023 2021
years. This facil'ty consists of 2 committed £25,000k facility split into a £23,000k revolving credit facility and a Net Group £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
m_Nooa,z overdraft facilizy. In January 2021, the @ocm antered _36 a mﬁ‘oao_n D.w__..m term loan facility with RBS for Within one year 7,720 8,047 2.728 3223 10,448 12164
three years until lanuary 2024, The CLBILS facility was fully repaid during 2022. During the year, the Group extended B 4
the expiry date of the £25,000k facility untid April 2024, The interest rates for the facilities are tabled further on. etween one an
two years 7,349 AP 764 1,956 8,113 3,082
Group Company Between tweo and
five years 24,015 23,552 799 434 24,814 23,986
lanuary 26 December 1 January 26 December After five years 157,027 150,430 - —~ 157,027 150,430
2023 2027 2023 20
Non-current liabilities £000 £00D £000 £000 196,111 190,049 4,291 5613 200,402 195,662
Bank loans - 5,334 — _
Leases - Machines/ather 1,560 2,350 _ _ Property leases Machines and other leases Total
Leases - Properzy 183,394 181,108 - - 1January 26 December  1January 26 December  1Janvary 26 December
187.954 192,837 _ Z 2023 2021 2023 2021 2023 2021
Gross £000 £000 €000 £000 £000 £000
Bank borrowings are repayable as follows: Within ane year 14,388 15,149 2,779 3,241 17,167 18,410
Between one and
Group Company two years 13,799 13,069 794 1967 74,593 15,036
1Jaruary 26 December 1lJanuary 26 December Between two and
2023 202 2023 202 five years 41,757 39,842 815 440 42,572 40,282
Bank loars £000 £Q00 £000 £ooo After five years 205,936 197,236 — - 205,936 197,236
Within one year - 4,666 - - 275,880 265,316 4,388 5,648 280,268 270,964
Betwaen ane and two years - 4,667 - - Future finance charges
Between two and five yezrs _ 4,667 _ _ onleases {79,769) (75,267) (97) (35 (79,866) (75.302)
— 14.000 _ _ Present value of lease
labilities 196,111 190,049 4,291 5,613 200,402 195,662

The RCF and overdra®t havz not been drawn down at the end of FY22, with the £14,000k CLBILS term loan fac
being fully repaid d uring the year which cannot be reborrowed.

Leases are in place for all 48 centres (2021: 46) at a value of £196,060k {2021: 190,049k), amuserment machines
from Bandal Narmee Europe Limited with a value of £4,08%k (2021: £5,297x) and coffee machines acquired witha

value of £202k {2021: £316k).
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20 Bank borrowings and lease liabilities continuzd

Analysis of statutory net debt

Net cash/{dett) as analysed by the Group consists of cask and cash equivalents less bark loans and amounts to
£10,086k (2027 (E2,43%k)). Statutory net debt as analysec below includes leases.

Net cash

Cash Bank excluding
and cash loansand  notes and Statutory
equivalents  overdrafts leases Leases net debt
£000 £000 £000 £00Q EQDO
Balance at 27 Deceraker 2020 7,394 {20,000} (12,606} (185,146) (197,752}
nanges from financirg cash flows 4,177 6,000 007 10,006 20,123
Lease modifications in the year - — (20,067) (20,067)
Lease acquisitions - — - {455) {455)
Balance at 26 Cecember 2021 11,511 {14,000} (2,48%9) {195,662) {(198,157)
Changes from financing cash flows (1,425) 14,000 12,575 10,388 22,963
Lease modificazions in the year - - - (3.793) (3,793)
Lease acquisitions - - - (11,335) (11,335)
Balance at 1 January 2023 10,086 - 10,086 (200,402) (190,316)

21 Trade and other payables and other non-current liabilities
Group Company

1January 26 December

1January 26 December

STRATEGIC REPORT BOVERNANCE FINANCIALS
22 Deferred tax
Deferred tax assets and habilities are attributable to the following:
Assets Liabilities Net

1January 26 December 1lanuary 26 December 1January 26 December

2023 2021 2023 2021 2023 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Property, plant and
equipment - — (5,435) [2,184) (5,435) 12,184
Tax losses 757 7h4 — — 757 764
Fair value on business
combination - - {33} (86) (33) (86)
Other 3,429 3,610 - — 3,429 3,610
Total 4186 4,374 (5,468) (2,270) (1,282) 2,104

A deferred tax asset of £757k is recognised on taxable fosses to the extent that there will be probable future taxable
income against which the loss can be utilised. It is expectad the Group will continue to be profitable and so a
defarred tax agset has been provided for on the Group companies, losses generated in the year. The deferred tax
asset of £3,42%k recognised on the impairment loss was accounted for on adoption of IFRS 14 as the impairment is
being utilised against future taxable profits generated by Tenpin Limited.

Movement in deferred tax during the 53-weex period ended 1 January 2023;

2023 2021 2023 2021
Trade and other cayables £000 £EQOD £000 £000
Trace payables 1,330 2,381 -
Arrounts owed tc subsidiary undertakings
{Note 24) - — 827 2,794
Social security and other taxes 2,587 3,327 - —
Other payables 4,567 3,287 - —
Accruals 6,680 4,518 354 295
15,164 13,513 1,221 3,089

Recognised

27 December inincome Taxation 1 January

2021 statement paid 2023

£000 £000 £000 £000
Property, plant and equipment {2,184} (3,251 - {5,425)
Tax losses 764 7 — 757
Fair value on business combination 184) 53 - (33)
Other 3,670 {187 — 3,429
Total deferred tax 2,104 {3.386) — (1,282)
Current income tax 10 {4,013 5,025 1,022
Total taxation 2114 (7.399) 5,025 (260)
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22 Deferred tax continued Financial instruments by category

Movement in deferred tax during the 52-week period ended 26 December 2021:
Financial assets

Recognized 1January 26 December

28 December income Taxation 26 December 2023 2027
2020 statement paid 2021 Group £000 £000
s £000 £000 EDOC Financial assets - measured at amortised cost
Property, plart and equipment (1,426} (758 - (2184) Trade and other receivables 1,679 1,332
Tax losses 1132 (368) - 764 Cash and cash equivalents 10,086 11,511
Fair valde on business combinaticn (156} 70 — (84) 1,765 12843
Other 2,986 624 - 3,610 ‘
Total deferrec tax 2,536 {432) — 2,104 Financial liabilities at
Current income tax 2,302 — (2,292 10 amortised cost
Total taxation 4,838 {432) (2,292} 214 1January 26 December
2023 20
The Group has carry-forward tax losses of an estimated £27.383k {2021: £21,383k} on which no deferred tax has Group €000 £000
been recognised. Of these, £12,202k (2021: £12,202k) are h2ld by Essenden Limited, £8,728k (2021: £8,728k) are P il labilit I -
held by Georgica Limited anc £452k (2021: £42k) are held by Indeor Bowling Acauisitions Limited. The losses in Inancial liabilitias - measured at ameortised cost
the Group companies have nat been recognised as these arz historic brought-forward losses and these companies Borrowings excluding leases - 13,831
are not currently generating profits fer which these losses can be utilised. The potential deferred tax asset not Leases 200,351 195,662
recognised is £5 346k [2021: £5,346k). There are £3,85Tk {2021: £3,851k) of capital losses from disposals of the Trade and other payables 12,587 10187

historic CVA sites o which no deferred tax asset has been recognised as Tenpin Limited is not expected to generate

profit from the d'sposal of sites which these losses could be utilised against. The potential unrecognised deferred 212,938 219,680

tax asset on this would emount to £962k (2021: £%62k).

) o Maturity analysis of financial liabilities
23 Financial instruments

IFRS 7 requires fair value measuremerts to be recognised using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of 1 January 2023 26 December 2021
the inputs used i1 the va ue measuremants: Trade Trade
Level 1: inputs are quoted prices in active markets. Bank and other Bank and other

loans Leases payables Total loans  Leases payables Tota!
Level 2; a valuaticn that Lses observable inputs for the asset or I'ability other than quoted prices in active markets. Group £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Levet 3: a valuation using unchservable inputs, 1.e. a valuation technique. Within one year -~ 10,448 12,587 23,035 4,497 "264 10,187 26,848

B

There were no tra~sfers between levels throughout the perieds under review. ,\Mwﬁmm: ene and two _ 8,113 _ 8,113 4,667 9,082 3749
The Group's princioal financial instruments comprise bark loans, cash and short-term deposits and are held in Between two and five
Sterling. The purpose of these financial instruments is to prov de finance for the Group's gperations The Group years — 24,814 — 24,814 4,667 23986 — 2B.653
,jmm. <m:,or._m other :.ESD.m_ ﬁj.mﬂﬂ.cﬁjm%mu such as trade _‘mnm.EmE.mp Qmﬂm payables m:m,_ leases that w,lmm directly from After five vears — 157,027 — 157,027 150,430 — 150,430
its operations. All the Group's financial instruments are denorrinated in Pounds Sterling. The carrying value of all
the Group's financhal instruments approxirates fair value, and they are classified as financial assets and financial — 200,402 12,587 212,989 13831 195642 10,187 219,480

liabilities measured at amcrtised cost,

The following tables show the fair value of financial assets and financial llabilities within the Group at the balance
sheet date. The carrving vzlue of all financial assets was materially equal to their fair value and hence there has been
no impairment. The carryir g amounts of trade and other payatles are considered to be the same as their fair values,
due o e shor Az nature, Duetothe shor-tern nature of The current receivables, Ther carrying ameountis
considered *© be the sarme as tneir fair value.
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23 Financial instruments continued
Financial rick management

Market risk

parket risk i the 1isk that changes i rarket prices. such &3 foreign gxcnange rates, (nterest 1es and equity prices:
will affect the (Group's income ar the value of its haldings &f financial irstruments. The objective of market risk
management i to manage and control market risk exposues within gcceptable paramelers. while aotimising the
return on Ask. The Group holds no nc:mpﬁ,amsoij&ma Jesets of ablites, mor does 1t hold irvestrnents in shares

of third-party rornpanizs that would pose 2 rnarket risk.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group borrows in Gterlng at floating rates of intarest. The interest rate profile of the Group? financial iablities
gross of debt 1s5U€ cosTs was as follows:

1 January 36 Decamber

2023 20
|nterest rate fis< profile of financiad nabilines €000 £000
Floating rate financial fiabikties - 14,000
_eases 200,402 195,662

200,401

Cach flow intarest rate rigk derves from the Group's floating rate financiz) abilities, being its bank debt and
overdraft Rciity whichae tieked to SONIA plus a mavgin of +.30%. The Group has no fair vaiue interest rate risk.
|n managing interest rate rigk, <he Group aims to reduce the irppact of shart-term fluctuations on the Group's
parnings Over thz ionger rerrr, howeveh sustained changes in interest -ates would have an impacten the Group’s
earmings. A 1%, increase in vhe current imterest rate charged on the vank loans would decrease earrings by £ril
2021 £0.4rm

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the rigk that a counterparty will default on its contractuial obligations: resulting m financial
loss tothe Group. in order t© minienise this risk, the Group endeavours only t© deal with cormpanies which are
gm.ﬁogmﬁm&z crecitwortt™ in agditior a significant proportion of reverue results from cash transactions. The
aggregate firancial expose is continuausty Boz._”o:wa.Asm PraXimLrn EXpOsUTe 1o credit sk i€ the value of the
putstanding armourt of trade recelvables. Managerment does niot coneider that there is any concentration of risk
within either rade orother receivables.

s aimost al of the Group's cales are for cash, the Group o exposed 10 minimal credit ek, The wrade and other
receivables mairly relate t0 rebate incoma of vouchars sold ant ate from companies with strong credit histories and
good credit ratings. A palance o° £0.5m has been made to provide for other receivables that may have an expected
cradit 1055, and a further £0. 1 provision made against & dapos twith 2 Janclord with whom ment negotiations

are being carried out. The majority of Qmﬂﬁﬂjmjﬂm are for service rharges, pusiress (ales ard nELrances which

e to COTNDANIES with streng cradit pisteries and for less ghan sk months in advance, and thus pose 2 Yo ik of
becoming impaired, and thus N provision has been made,

l&l\\!\l:i..\..:lrl.lll.
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Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to mast its Financial abligations 28 they fall due. The Groups
approach 10 managing fiquidity 15 10 ensure, as far as is possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity 1@ meet
15 liabilities when Jue, under both normal and stressed conditions. without incuring unacceptEdle Yosses of riskirg
damage o the Group's reputation. The Group's cash position 4nd cash tlow forecasts are reviewad DY rpanagemant

om a daily basis, with the objective 1o ensure the Group as sufficient funde avatlable ke fnanca its business giratety
The current bank facilities consist of a £25.0m RCF and overdraft £acifity which was nct drawn at tne year end.

The risk 15 rreasured DY cormparing the bank debitin use 1o the total facility availapie which chows that £25 om of
e facility is stil vaitanle for use. The Group also had £10.1min cash reserves at e y2ar end, available for use and
which adds Lo the headioom puffer. The wotal risk would beifthe entire facility were unavailable for use if the Grou
were to defauiton its banking agreement by not meeting s agreed covenants. The Consolidated graternent of
Financial Position shows that the Group has @ met currertt liability position. The facitities are avalable to the Group
ynth Apn! 2024, after peing extended with the royal Bank of Scotland pic during 2022,

Credit quality of financial assets

1lanuary 2 Decermber
2023 2020
£000 £0N0

Group

Cash at bank and short-term bank deposits
e rated 10,375
Orther cash-related malances 1,040

1136
13,51

~oral cash and cash eguivalents

Capital risk management

The Groups capital management abjectives aie 1o enswre the Group's ability t© confinug asa going concem™ and
1o provide an adequate return 1o shareholders by pricing products and services commmensurate with the leval of
risk. The Group paid the 2022 interir dividend of 3.0p after reinstating the dividend policy, with a total of £2,055k
paid in cash 10 chareholders in October 3022. Afinal dnidend of 7.0p has been Bnoﬁj}mama tor FY22. The Group
mMonitos capital on he basis of the carying arnaunt of equity less cash and cash equivalerts 85 Emmmim& on the
face of the Consolidated graternent of Firancial Position-

1 Janmary 28 Decembet
2023 2021
£000 £ooo

59,144 34,063
io.cmﬁ 11,511

Total equity

Cash and cash equivalents [Note 17

Capital

Total financing 49,058 22,552
| eases (Mote pasy] 100,402 195,662
Bank borrowWings {Mote 20 — 14,000
Overall financing 249,460 232,214

Capitalte averall financing ratio
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SERES

24 Related party transactions
Transactions with key management personnel

The Execut've and Non-Executive Directors are deemed to be key management personnei of the Company. It is the
Board which has responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company. There were no
material tranzactions or balances between the Company and its key management personnel or members of their
close family. At the end of the period, key management personnel did not owe the Company any amounts. The
cornpensation of key management personnel is summarnised in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
The remunerztion of <he Directors of Ten Entertainment Group plc is set out in detail in the Directors’ Remuneration
Report, commencing on page 57 with a table of their remneration for the period on page 64,

Transactior s with other related parties

During the pe‘iod the Group entered into transactions, in the ordirary course of business, with related parties.
Transactions entered into, and trading balances ocutstanding with related parties, are as foliows:

Expenses

Sales from from Amounts
transactions  transactions outstanding
with related  with related Loansta  with related
party party  related party party
£000 £EQ00 £000 £000

Related party
27 December 2020 — 12 106 237
Houdini's Escape Room Experience Limited 233 — 421 B9
Source BioSc ence - 1 - —
26 December 2021 233 1 421 899
Houdini's Escape Roem Experience Limitec 44 — 1,158 801
1 January 2023 44 - 1,158 1,801

Sales and purcnascs batween related parties are made at normal market prices. Outstanding balances with
Houaini's are cartially secured and charged interest and are due at the end of 2024,

Allirtercompany transactions and balances have been sliminated on consolidation. The intercompany balances
and transactions incur-ed by the Company relate to loans received to provide funding for the Company to pay its
cperating costs as a ple:

1January 26 December

2023 2021

£000 £000
Sseenden Limited 170 (25)
Tenpin Limited 441 2,794
TEG Holdings Limited (827) (a0}

(216} 2,589

25 Commitmr ents

The Group bas committed to pay an additional £0.3m to a supplier for the purchase of equipment in 2023, being the
rerraining balance on spend it has already incurred and accounted for in these financial statements.

STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNANCE FINANCIALS

26 Performance Share Plan

The Company operates a Perfarmance Share Plan {'PSP') for its Executive Directors. In accordance with IFRS 2
Share-based Payments, the value of the awards is measured at fair value at the date of the grant. The fair value

is writter, off on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on management’s estimate of the number

of shares that will eventually vest. In accordance with the PSP scheme announced on 30 March 2022 ('the 2022
scheme’), the vesting of these awards is conditional upon the achievement of two performance conditions which
will be measured following the announcement of results for the year to 29 Decemnber 2024 {'FY24').

The first performance condition applying to the awards will be basec on earnings per share of the Company {'EPS"
ard will apply to 50% of the total number of share awards granted.

The second performance condition wil! be based on total shareholder return ["TSR") of the Company over the period
from the date of grant to the announcement of results for FY24 relative to a comparator group of companies and
will apply to the remaining 50% of share awards granted.

The assumptions used in the calculation of share-based payments are as follows:

& anexpected term for awards granted under the PSP as being three years from the date of grant on the basis that
these are nil-cost awards, and therefore we assume that participants will exercise their ontions as soon as
possible to oenefit from full sharehclder rights (e.g. voting and sale nghts);

< therisk-free rate has been based on the implied vield of zero-coupon UK Government bonds {'UK Strips’), with a
remaining term equal to the expected term;

< expected dividend yield is 3.59%; and

& the expected volatility is based on historical daily data over a term commensurate with the expected life of
the awards.

The models and model inputs are as follows:

EPS condition with
2-year holding period

TSR condition with
2-year holding pericd

Model used for valuation

Monte Carlo and Black Scholes and

Finnerty Finnerty
Share price at valuation date (£) 2,655 2.655
Exercise price (£) EQI £0."
Risk-free rate 1.47% n/a
Expected dividend yield 3.59% 3.59%
Life of option 3years 3years
Expected volatility 47,69% n/a
Fair value of one share (£} 1.78 1.54

Duning the period ended 1 January 2023, 327,586 (2021: 317,843) share awards were granted under the PSP, nil
{2021: nilj share awards were forfeited, 128,332 (2021: 74,335} lapsed and 128,334 (2021: 20,814) were exercised.
For the exercised awards, these were settled by the allotment of ordinary shares in the Company. For the year, the
Company recognised a net charge of £53%,333) (2021: £248,304). The schemes are equity-settled share-based
payments and the remaining contractual life of the 2021 scherne share options at the period end is one year and
ten months, while the 2020 scheme share options’ remaining contractual life is ten months, and the 2019, 2018 ard
2017 scheme share options have been exercised or lapsed.
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26 Performance Share Plan continued

The following table splits the awards that were granted, e<ercised, lapsed and forfeited oy the Executive Directors:

Number of share

Director

Position

Number of share
awards granted

Diractor Pusition awards granted b:ﬁmi mB;_ﬂ Chief Financial Oicer 149,425
Graham Blackwell Chief Executive Office 178,161
Grants as at 31 December 2018 401,028 . e '
Exercised in the year:
Granted in the year: o . . Graham Blackwell Chief Executive Officer 61,667)
Duncan Garrocd Chief Executive Officer 200,000 Anteny Smith Chief Financial Officer (66,667)
Antony Smit~ Chief Financal m.ui_nmﬂ. 133,333 Lapsed in the year:
OS:m.E E.mnrém: . . Chief Commercial Officer 123,333 Antony Smith Chief Financial Officer (66,668)
Forfeited in the year due to resignation: Graham Blackwell Chief Executive Cfficer (61,665
None _ Total as at 1 January 2023 1,074,001
Grants as at 29 December 2019 857,6%4 -
Split as:
Grantedin ,ﬁrm year: . . ] 2020 scheme 428,572
Antony Srnith Chicf Financial Officer 195,489 2021 scheme 317,843
Graham Blackwell Chief Executive Officer 233,083
2022 scheme 327,586
Forfeited in the year due to resignation: _
Duncan Garrcod Chief Executive Officer (311940y ~ total asatllanuary 2023 1,074,001
Exercised in t1e year: . . . As reflected in the Directors' Remuneration Report, of the 428,572 awards from the 2020 scheme that are
Graham Black vell Chief Executive Officer (36,570} exercisable in 2022, it is expected that 100% of the award will vest and at an average share price for the last three
Lapsed in the year: manths of the 1 January 2023 financial year, giving a fair value of £1,044,429. In accordance with the PSP schemes
Graharm Black well Chief Executive Officer (96.,570) outlined in the Group's Remuneration Policy, the vesting of these awards Is conditional upon the achieverment of an
EPS target set at the time of grant, measured at the end of a three-year period ending 1 January 2023 for the 2020
Total as at 27 December 2020 780,386 scheme, 31 December 2023 for the 2021 scheme and 29 Jecernber 2024 for the 2022 scheme, and the Executive
Granted in the year: Directors’ continued employment at the date of vesting. The awards will vest based on the following adjusted
Antony Smith Chief Financial Officer 144,981 EPStargets:
Graham Blackwell Chiof Executive Officer 172,862 Adjusted EPS in the final year of the performance period (pence}
Exercised in the year: , )
Graham Blackwell Chief Executive Officer {20,814} 022 scheme 2021 scheme 2020 scheme Vesting
Lapsed in the year: 20.50p 17.50p 17.00p 12.5%
Graharm Blackwell Chief Executive Officer (74,234 20.50p - 23.5Cp 17.50p - 20.50p 17.0Cp - 23.0Cp 12.5% - 50%
Total as at 26 Decernber 2021 1003081 More than 23.50p More than 20.50p More than 23.00p 50%

Granted in the year:
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27 Dividends paid and proposed

The following dividerds were declared and proposed:

1January 26 December
2023 2021
£000 £000
The following divide vds were declared and paid by the Group:
~terim divic 2nc dectared and paid by Directors for year ended 1 January 2023 -
3.0p, 26 Decamber 2021 - nil 2,055 —
The below relates to final dividends proposed:
Final eividend year ended 1 Jaruary 2023 - 7.0p per ordirary share, 26 December
2027 - nil pe- oreinary share 4,795 —

The Company received a cividend of £2,054,884 (2021: £ from its subsidiary TEG Holdings Limited. No dividends

have been proposed before the date of approval of these financial statements.

28 Post-balance sheet events

At the time of signinc the Annual Report ang Financial Statements the Group had entered into a lease for a property
in Milton Keyres in February 2023 with a right of use asse: and lease liability value of £4,423k and a lease in Dundee

from February 2023 with a right of use asset and lease liability value of £5,867k. No further leases had been agreed

nor any new centre acguistions made.

Unaudited -“ive-year record

53weeksto 52 weeks to

52 weeksto 52weeksto 52 weeksto 52 weeks to
1January 26 December 27 December 29 Decernber 29 December 1 January
2023 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Sales 126,673 67,521 36,269 84122 76,350 71,040
Cost of sales {40,915} 122,511) 114,0%5) 24.930) 122,423) 121,478)
Gross profit 85,758 45,010 22,174 59,192 53,927 45,562
Administrative and
other (costs) ‘income (44,557) {34,587) {38,025) (46,609) {42,565) (39,640)
Operating prafit/{loss) 41,201 10,423 115,851} 12,583 11,362 9,922
Finance charges (7,206) (5,986) 15,815} 1788) {693) (2,630)
Profit/{loss) nefore
taxation 33,995 4,437 (21,666) 1,785 10,669 7,292
Taxation {7,399) (432) 3919 (2,758} (2,527) (2,111)
Profit/{loss) efter
taxation 26,596 4,005 {17,747) 9,037 8,142 5,181
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